


































·1

·2

·3

·4· · · · · · · ·PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR

·5· · · ·THE BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·OF THE

·7· ·LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·HELD AT

·9· · · · · · · · LASALLE BUILDING

10· · · · · · · 617 NORTH 3RD STREET

11· · · · · · · · · LABELLE ROOM

12· · · · · · ·BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

13· · · · ON THE 29TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016

14· · · · · · COMMENCING AT 10:04 A.M.

15

16

17

18· · ·REPORTED BY:· ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·Appearances of Board Members Present:

·2· ·Charles R. "Robby" Miller

·3

·4· ·Staff members present:

·5· ·Kristen Cheng
· · ·Danielle Clapinski
·6· ·Frank Favaloro
· · ·Secretary Don Pierson
·7

·8

·9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, everyone, for your attendance

·3· ·today.· I know that there's been a lot of effort that's

·4· ·gone into preparing your comments that the department

·5· ·will receive today relative to the executive order and

·6· ·the changes for the Industrial Tax Exemption Program, so

·7· ·I know a lot of thought has gone into this.· We

·8· ·appreciate this as constructive, I won't say, dialog,

·9· ·because you're going to provide us input today, and

10· ·Danielle will talk about those rules of engagement.

11· · · · · · · · · ·We're not here to debate the merits of

12· ·your suggestions, but certainly we want to convey 100

13· ·percent, A, appreciation of this important input, and

14· ·then, B, give it full consideration as we continue to

15· ·develop the rules on behalf of the Governor and the

16· ·Commerce & Industry Board.

17· · · · · · · · · ·So with that, I would like to ask one of

18· ·our C&I Board members, the Tangipahoa Parish President,

19· ·if he would like to make any other additional remarks

20· · · · · · · ·MR. MILLER:

21· · · · · · · · · ·I would just echo what Secretary Pierson

22· ·said that we thank you so much and this has been a very

23· ·large effort.· As y'all all know, my comments at the

24· ·beginning of this were the uncertainty is what causes us

25· ·most heartache, and I think we're close to the

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·uncertainty being gone.· You might not like it 100

·2· ·percent, but at least we know what we're dealing with

·3· ·now and we appreciate the effort and hopefully your

·4· ·comments are going to make us even a little bit better

·5· ·in what we put out there.· And as a Board member here,

·6· ·I'll tell you we're anxiously waiting for this so we can

·7· ·get this process continued through and finished.

·8· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·And in closing, we did not tactically

10· ·select the brief time period between Christmas and New

11· ·Years.· It's hard to gather an audience, but what we

12· ·were we actually doing is trying to get the speed of

13· ·execution to get the rules established and get business

14· ·back on a field of certainty, so that is just the way

15· ·that the calendar happened to dictate the availability

16· ·and the compliance with the APA and those types of

17· ·things.· So thank you for that, and I will now yield to

18· ·Danielle.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Good morning.· For those of y'all

21· ·who don't know, I'm Danielle Clapinski, staff attorney

22· ·here at LED.· I have the pleasure, or misfortune,

23· ·depending on the day, of working with the ITEP program.

24· · · · · · · · · ·This is the public hearing for the rules

25· ·that were published in the 2016 edition of the register.

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·We do have a court reporter here today, so I would ask

·2· ·that when it's your opportunity to give your comment,

·3· ·please state your name, who you represent and speak --

·4· ·we don't have a microphone, so please speak as loudly

·5· ·without shouting as you can.· I don't think there are

·6· ·too many in here that are soft spoken, so we should be

·7· ·okay.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·I don't intend to limit anybody to any

·9· ·set amount of minutes or time at this point in time,

10· ·other than, you know, we do have a good many people here

11· ·that would like to speak, so please be mindful that

12· ·everyone gets an opportunity to speak.· If you have

13· ·submitted written comments, and I've received, I think,

14· ·three or four different versions, please, if you can

15· ·sort of summarize those.· I don't know that we need to

16· ·go through each one because the written comments are

17· ·already part of the record for comments on these rules.

18· · · · · · · · · ·At that, whoever -- I don't think

19· ·there's any formalized process on where we start.· We

20· ·can just start on one side and go around if you'd like.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ZAGOTTI:

22· · · · · · · · · ·My name is Matt Zagotti from Director of

23· ·Ryan, LLC.· My main purpose here was to just kind of

24· ·observe and see what's going on next.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · · · ·I'm Don Allison with Advantous

·2· ·Consulting and member of LIDEA Board of Directors, and

·3· ·Rhonda also with LABI.· I think she submitted some

·4· ·comments.· I don't plan to make any, but I'll defer to

·5· ·Rhonda.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. REAP-CURIEL:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Rhonda Reap-Curiel with CENCOR

·8· ·Consulting representing LIDEA as government legislative

·9· ·committee chair.· I did submit written comments

10· ·yesterday, and I just want to highlight a couple of

11· ·those points.· I know other people around the table

12· ·probably have some similar points or the ones that I

13· ·feel are similar I want to skip over, but when it comes

14· ·to MCA renewals, there's still some confusion out there

15· ·because it appears that even though the second executive

16· ·order provided some clarity on those existing contracts

17· ·with advances that are in renewal state, it does not

18· ·refer to specifically those MCAs which don't have an

19· ·advance tied to them.· So we would like some clarity

20· ·written into the rules so that those companies who may

21· ·not have been attending the meetings to see that the

22· ·last two meetings they've actually been approved,

23· ·understand how they are to be treated and the commitment

24· ·is still there from the State.

25· · · · · · · · · ·We have suggested some language to be

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·added as additional point in that Section 501, and then

·2· ·we also added some additional -- an additional sentence

·3· ·to 501(b) that we would hope you would consider.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·And then under 503(d)(2), it's really

·5· ·more questions than comments because there is concern

·6· ·that the local governmental entities that require

·7· ·resolution, there may be difficulty in them actually

·8· ·holding a hearing or getting on the agenda.· If they

·9· ·just choose to ignore you, they have the luxury to do

10· ·that.· There's nothing that requires that side to be

11· ·responsive back to the business.· It seems that the onus

12· ·is all on the business.· They're required to go get

13· ·these things, but there's nothing that says, "Look, the

14· ·government has to be responsive back to them."

15· · · · · · · · · ·And that section does only say

16· ·resolutions, and we know the sheriff is a letter, but we

17· ·think that should be plain and written out.

18· · · · · · · · · ·And then with 503(e)(2)(a), we'd ask

19· ·that you include "relocation to another parish."  I

20· ·believe Ms. Malone brought that up in the actual

21· ·discussion of the rules at the Board meeting, and if

22· ·you're in the Delta Region or you're in a rural parish,

23· ·it is a challenge sometimes to keep your existing

24· ·industry there, and if this is a tool that we can use to

25· ·keep those companies there and make them just as

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·efficient and profitable by having them move to a more

·2· ·metro area where maybe there's greater workforce or

·3· ·something of that nature, we would like the ability to

·4· ·do that.· We know that with relocation to another parish

·5· ·within the state there's some limitations, but the

·6· ·limitation doesn't include them getting the full benefit

·7· ·of a new facility, and that's something that will be a

·8· ·disadvantage to those parishes where these companies

·9· ·already exist.

10· · · · · · · · · ·And with that, I'll just let you have

11· ·the rest of my comments.· I don't know if you had any

12· ·questions of if you even had time to read them.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

14· · · · · · · · · ·I did.· I don't have any questions on

15· ·what your comments state.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. REAP-CURIEL:

17· · · · · · · · · ·And, I'm sorry.· On 503(j), I know this

18· ·was brought up in the actual rules committee meeting

19· ·about the fees if the Board determines you're not

20· ·meeting the definition of manufacturer or they say, you

21· ·get to your hearing for your application approval and

22· ·they decide, "Oh, well, that equipment doesn't count,"

23· ·you know, your fees are based on what you're submitting

24· ·and requesting in value to be accepted, and we'd like to

25· ·see some mechanism that would allow a return of fees for

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·excluded, of course, keeping, you know, the

·2· ·administrative fee.· And if there's an appeal process,

·3· ·what that would be, we'd like to see that spelled out as

·4· ·well.

·5· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Rhonda, just one before we leave this,

·7· ·if you would just articulate a little bit more for me

·8· ·the parish-to-parish move and no net new -- the concept

·9· ·typically is the state seeks new investment and new job

10· ·creation.· How does a lateral move across the parish

11· ·line qualify for abatement of tax?

12· · · · · · · ·MS. REAP-CURIEL:

13· · · · · · · · · ·A company is getting ready to do an

14· ·expansion, they --

15· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

16· · · · · · · · · ·It would be with that new component.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. REAP-CURIEL:

18· · · · · · · · · ·-- may move within a state, and because

19· ·they could go build a bigger, larger facility as opposed

20· ·to doing an addition at an older facility, that would be

21· ·more attractive because they can get the full benefit of

22· ·a newer, expanded facility as opposed to a partial on

23· ·the addition.· So there should be some mechanism that

24· ·allows the parish to work to try to keep those companies

25· ·that are looking to expand or add additional lines to

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·their facility within that parish.

·2· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·I want to mention one thing before we

·6· ·leave the voir dire comments.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·We did a letter to Industry & Commerce

·8· ·about some definitions, three definitions, of the term

·9· ·"jobs".· Two of them deal with the definition of the

10· ·term "jobs," and they're very important.· The one I want

11· ·to point out is the one that deals with the definition

12· ·of the term "manufacturer."· It's a real bedrock concept

13· ·that is the foundation for much of this program.· This

14· ·is obviously exemptions that are allowed to

15· ·manufacturing establishments, and the term

16· ·"manufacturing establishment" is defined in the

17· ·constitution, and the rules try to define the term

18· ·"manufacturing," and so, you know, the language that --

19· ·actually the words appear three or four times between

20· ·the rules committee, the Board, et cetera, and what was

21· ·published.· I think the language ended up with few too

22· ·many words and some confusing language, and so we have

23· ·some suggestions there about the language that you've

24· ·proposed contains the language from the constitution

25· ·plus some other language, and the additional language is

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·what we're having a problem with, and right now it would

·2· ·say that the definition is -- how does it read?· I'm

·3· ·sorry.· Here we go.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·The definition says -- used the term "by

·5· ·means of mass production or custom fabrication and

·6· ·machinery," and some of those words, we think, are

·7· ·confusing, especially in the order that they read, so

·8· ·our suggestion would be to change it to "mass or custom

·9· ·production, machinery or labor to create -- for use," et

10· ·cetera.· So, anyway, there may be some more discussion

11· ·today about the definition of manufacturing because it's

12· ·so important to the program, and I wanted to point out

13· ·that our comment deals with that same definition.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

15· · · · · · · · · ·If I can just point out, Don, I think

16· ·she knows who you are, but if you do comment again, make

17· ·sure that you identify yourself again so we have on

18· ·record who made the comments.

19· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

20· · · · · · · · · ·And I also want to be confident that

21· ·everyone has signed in.· I know a number of you have

22· ·passed.· As long as we've got a reflection of your

23· ·presence today, that's important.· Thank you.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. PATTERSON:

25· · · · · · · · · ·I'm Jim Patterson with the Louisiana

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·Association of Business and Industry.· I serve as the

·2· ·director of LABI's Taxation and Finance Council.  I

·3· ·appreciate the opportunity to speak to you-all about the

·4· ·rules of the proposed, and I appreciate the

·5· ·consideration that our comments are going to be given.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·I essentially will stand on my comment,

·7· ·but I do want to just highlight a few of them as

·8· ·particular concerns of ours starting with Louisiana

·9· ·residential requirement.· The feeling in part of many of

10· ·our members is that this issue was dealt with back in

11· ·the late 1990s when there was an attempt to install what

12· ·was commonly known as Rule 1 to require that Louisiana

13· ·workers be used in construction work in these kinds of

14· ·projects, and, of course, found Rule 1 to be

15· ·constitutional already.· I think the issue of defining

16· ·manufacturing and the problems attended with that has

17· ·already been sufficiently addressed.

18· · · · · · · · · ·We do believe that some confusion, at

19· ·least our perception, some confusion made elicit from

20· ·parts 2, 3 and 5 in Section 503, where there is

21· ·discussion of the Exhibits A and B and the particular

22· ·control that will operate with one versus the other.

23· ·There seems to be a retention of the right of BCI to

24· ·rule regarding these contracts, but there's also some

25· ·suggestion that what happens with regard to Exhibit B is

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·kind of final say as well, and I think that some

·2· ·clarification may be in order there.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·We still and the general business

·4· ·community feels that there needs to be some clear

·5· ·direction as to what resolution is at our disposal if a

·6· ·particular local entity does not issue the resolution

·7· ·required under Exhibit B.· This is not anywhere within

·8· ·the rules found addressed, and we think there needs to

·9· ·be some clarity there.

10· · · · · · · · · ·And then finally we strongly urge that

11· ·consideration be given to the forms that you-all

12· ·routinely utilize for these applications, ensuring that

13· ·any terms that are utilized on the forms are, in fact,

14· ·addressed in the rules so that essentially the business

15· ·people know what's being talked about when we're trying

16· ·to comply with the requirements.

17· · · · · · · · · ·Again, thank you very much for allowing

18· ·us the opportunity and for coming in, you know, on the

19· ·holiday.· Some of us did, but nevertheless, appreciate

20· ·the fact that you're here, particularly you,

21· ·Mr. Secretary Pierson.· Thanks.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. BOWSER:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Greg Bowser, President of Louisiana

24· ·Chemical Association.· Some brief comments, and I know a

25· ·number of the guys here will cover the same things that

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·I'm concerned about.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·The Louisiana Chemical Association

·3· ·represents 60 chemical manufacturers that operate at 100

·4· ·different locations throughout the State of Louisiana.

·5· ·We also represent different suppliers in our chemical

·6· ·industry alliance, which amounts to over 850 Louisiana

·7· ·companies, and their particular concern, and I'll

·8· ·mention what the real concern for them would be, we

·9· ·understand that these rules are an attempt to comply

10· ·with the Governor's executive order and the changes to

11· ·the Industrial Tax Exemption Program.· Our concern is

12· ·that the changes may make the program so cumbersome to

13· ·use, it may be a detriment to the economic development,

14· ·especially to the chemical industry.

15· · · · · · · · · ·One of the big things that you do is you

16· ·eliminate miscellaneous capital expenditure.· By doing

17· ·that, it's going to go to some other plant that may have

18· ·to do upgrades and do some things to be competitive and

19· ·stay.· We're concerned about that.

20· · · · · · · · · ·The other thing that concerns us when we

21· ·look at it, there's no consideration for the retention

22· ·of jobs or contract jobs, and this is why LCI folks are

23· ·often -- these people are full-time workers.· They may

24· ·be at one plant today and at another plant next week, so

25· ·they're full-time workers, and I don't think there's

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·consideration for any of that, so we would like to see

·2· ·that done.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·The other thing that concerns us is the

·4· ·cooperative endeavor agreements.· All of a sudden we are

·5· ·going to have to go and make those with several

·6· ·different taxing authorities, and so that's a concern

·7· ·when you start talking about confidentiality and you

·8· ·start talking about your public-trade company

·9· ·information, that has an opportunity to get out and

10· ·cause you some problems with respect to stock prices and

11· ·investments.

12· · · · · · · · · ·Under rules, our members are required to

13· ·negotiate with so many different authorities.· One of

14· ·the things that concerns us is that unlike any other

15· ·states, you have to go and negotiate with all of these

16· ·taxing authorities, and then after you've put all of

17· ·your information out there under negotiation, you still

18· ·have to come back to the state and there's a decision

19· ·made at that point whether or not you'll get the

20· ·exemption, whether or not what you've offered and what

21· ·you've negotiated is felt to be fair.· To our knowledge,

22· ·there is no other state that does that.· That puts us in

23· ·a very difficult situation for the State of Louisiana

24· ·from a competitive standpoint.

25· · · · · · · · · ·So I'll stop there.· I'll let the others

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·make some comments.· I know some are going to have the

·2· ·same comments, but I'll be glad to provide to you in

·3· ·writing some of the comments that we have.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·And I will point out just to your one

·6· ·comment, our definition of jobs does allow for contract

·7· ·labor, so that, at least, is addressed in the rules.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Danielle, when you say "contract labor,"

10· ·are you saying the type of contract labor that is at the

11· ·plant on a constant basis, are you talking about

12· ·contract labor that I think Mr. Bowser is talking about

13· ·that is in and out of plants at periods of time, meaning

14· ·that you've got a project that -- and my point I'm

15· ·trying to make is on the application, there was

16· ·construction jobs, for example; okay, well, you may --

17· ·those construction jobs may be on one project at one

18· ·particular time, but may -- those same jobs may be on

19· ·another project at another time, so you have this

20· ·consistent or continuous, I should say, injection of

21· ·contract labor going in and out of those plants all of

22· ·time and that's -- I was listening to your comments, and

23· ·that's the kind of thing that I think that I believe the

24· ·rule changes have not really addressed or how it can be

25· ·very hurtful because of -- you know, it could be some

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·curtailment of projects because -- and those people are

·2· ·going to be the ones that are really going to get hurt.

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·My understanding, and, you know,

·5· ·obviously -- and I should have said this from the

·6· ·beginning.· All of the these comments will go back to

·7· ·the Board, the rules committee and the Board.· They have

·8· ·to make a determination if they're going to choose to

·9· ·make any changes based upon the comments received.

10· ·That's not LED.

11· · · · · · · · · ·But my understanding of the Governor's

12· ·thought was that it would -- he wants to make it a

13· ·job-creation-type program, so I would say -- and there

14· ·will be requirements, my understanding, through the CEA

15· ·with the department and the locals that you maintain a

16· ·job level.· So, to me, that would indicate that whether

17· ·it's employed directly or through contract labor, that

18· ·they would need to be on site at a regular -- maybe not

19· ·every day, but on some sort of regular basis.· So if

20· ·that's to your point, then I understand your concern.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. BOWSER:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Well, the concern further is that --

23· ·Greg Bowser again -- is that when you say they have to

24· ·be on site for a particular time, and nobody knows what

25· ·that is.· Sometimes those guys are there for two months;

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·sometimes they're there for six months.· We have some

·2· ·contract employees that's been at some of our plants for

·3· ·years.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Sure.· And I don't know that it's

·6· ·necessarily tied to the employees as it is tied to the

·7· ·job.· So if it's a contract engineer that comes in on

·8· ·some of these facilities, and that individual person

·9· ·changes out -- I mean, I know all of our job programs,

10· ·and I would imagine that when we're looking at jobs for

11· ·this program as well, that it's going to be the job, not

12· ·the employee, so that -- and I understand your concerns,

13· ·but I think the Governor's intent -- and certainly, you

14· ·know, these comments will all go back and we'll take a

15· ·look at these in that scope -- was that it would be a

16· ·job creation program, so I think having that same job

17· ·potentially count at multiple sites would be

18· ·problematic.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. BOWSER:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Danielle, I'll just give one quick

21· ·example, and, you know, it's from a chemical plant

22· ·perspective, it's like you're in your automobile, you

23· ·know, if something is wrong with your car, you take it

24· ·to a mechanic.· Okay?· You pay that mechanic to do that.

25· ·Well, that mechanic has a full-time job.· When you

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·leave, there's other people there that come to that

·2· ·mechanic, so that's a full-time job.· In the chemical

·3· ·industry, what happens many times is that, you know,

·4· ·Plant A may have this going on today and workers come in

·5· ·and take care of that.· They may be there six months or

·6· ·sometimes two or three years.· That same employee then

·7· ·has to go to the plant next door to do the same work, so

·8· ·that's a full-time job, and we believe under these

·9· ·circumstances, we don't get credit.· They say that's not

10· ·a full-time job that's counted.· And that's our concern.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

12· · · · · · · · · ·I understand.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. GOLLEHER:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Brent Golleher, Louisiana Mid-Continent

15· ·Oil & Gas Association.· Comments were submitted

16· ·yesterday, and at the appropriate time, I will defer to

17· ·Jeff and Bob to get more detail on some of the issues

18· ·that as a property tax committee, we've kind of drawn up

19· ·and come up with.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Phyllis Sims, Kean Miller.· I don't have

22· ·any comments.

23· · · · · · · ·MS. LAWRENCE:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Donna Lawrence with Denbury Resources.

25· ·Observing.

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Joe Baker with Louisiana Mid-Continent

·3· ·Oil & Gas Association.· I chair the property tax

·4· ·committee, and thanks for providing some time for us to

·5· ·make these comments.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·I'm going to defer to Bob in just a

·7· ·minute, but what I would like to ask is, the question

·8· ·is, once you receive all of these comments, what's the

·9· ·mechanics going forward after that for the legal process

10· ·and how does that work?

11· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Sure.· So generally speaking, this

13· ·program is a little bit different because the Board

14· ·itself makes the rules, whereas most of our other

15· ·programs, it's LED.· All of the written comments, as

16· ·well as the transcript from this hearing today, will go

17· ·to the Board, and it will be up to them where they want

18· ·to start with the rules committee and then -- they have

19· ·to make a decision on whether any changes are going to

20· ·be made based upon these comments.· At that point, there

21· ·will be a determination of whether those changes are

22· ·substantive or not substantive, if they choose to make

23· ·some.· Non-substantive changes would not slow down the

24· ·rules process.· Substantive changes basically starts it

25· ·over again.· We'd have to issue another Notice of Intent

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·or a potpourri, but either of those has another public

·2· ·hearing requirement where we might have to do this all

·3· ·again.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·If they decide to not make any changes,

·5· ·then notice would be given to the oversight committees,

·6· ·which are the commerce committees of the house and the

·7· ·senate, and they have 30 days to call their own

·8· ·oversight hearing should they choose to.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·If they do not choose to, then those 30

10· ·days run and the department can proceed with final

11· ·promulgation of the rules.· So it really depends from

12· ·here on what the Board decides to do with the comments

13· ·they receive.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:

15· · · · · · · · · ·And if the oversight committees were to

16· ·suggest accepting some of these proposed --

17· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

18· · · · · · · · · ·It's an up or down at that point.· It's

19· ·an approval or non approval of the rules.· And I do

20· ·believe there may be the opportunity for the Governor to

21· ·override the oversight committees as well.· So there are

22· ·a lot of different scenarios on where we could go from

23· ·here.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Understood.· Thank you.

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·No problem.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·So I'm going to defer to Bob.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Let me ask before we get there.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Phyllis Sims, for the record.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Danielle, are these going to the Board

·9· ·for the February meeting then?

10· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

11· · · · · · · · · ·I don't know that.· That is the next

12· ·regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board.· If they chose

13· ·to call a meeting prior to then to address it, that is

14· ·the Board's right, and it would obviously be properly

15· ·noticed in accordance with open meetings and all of

16· ·those.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Now I'll defer to Bob.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ADAIR:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Bob Adair representing Louisiana

21· ·Mid-Continent Oil & Gas Association and I'm a member of

22· ·the Property Tax Committee and I will not read into

23· ·record the letter that we submitted.· I will use it as a

24· ·guide.

25· · · · · · · · · ·Before I get to that, I thought I would

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·give you a little perspective of where we're coming

·2· ·from.· I have significant depth of experience of about

·3· ·15 states and I've worked in about 25 states, so and I

·4· ·realize that LED has worked with other -- you compare

·5· ·other states and how they compete, too.· I also chair

·6· ·the Project Tax Committee of the Texas Taxpayers and

·7· ·Research Association, which is the primary tax committee

·8· ·in Texas -- or tax group in Texas, and also chair the

·9· ·Tax Relief for Pollution Control Properties with the

10· ·Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

11· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· I'll jump into -- the first point

12· ·is LMOGA supports LABI's presented testimony and their

13· ·written submittal, but so we don't want to duplicate

14· ·what they're doing, but I'll cover some high-level

15· ·comments.· We acknowledge that the proposed rules are

16· ·intended to align with the executive orders from the

17· ·Governor, but I'll also say that -- so our comments are

18· ·more high-level rather than detailed from LABI.

19· · · · · · · · · ·So the first point, and I won't dwell on

20· ·this, but for the record, I will mention that

21· ·environmental grades -- upgrades have, of course, been

22· ·excluded in the executive orders, and we want to point

23· ·out that whereas Number 4 said that most -- had

24· ·misstated that most states do not have this.· Well, in

25· ·fact, 27 states exempt pollution control property

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·permanently, and another six, I believe, has a

·2· ·significant reduction in value.· For example, Illinois,

·3· ·that I work in, they have, it's like, one and a half

·4· ·percent of depreciated value is the value on pollution

·5· ·control, so it's significantly discounted.· Some states

·6· ·also have a lower tax rate for pollution control.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·In Texas, since -- and I'll discuss

·8· ·Texas several times because Texas has been brought up in

·9· ·both the Governor's and other discussions because we're

10· ·trying to be more like Texas.· So in regarding

11· ·environmental upgrades, Texas -- the Texas legislature,

12· ·their intent was basically they do not want to require

13· ·businesses to pay property taxes to government on top of

14· ·unfunded mandates by the same government, although there

15· ·might be a difference in state versus local level, but

16· ·they intentionally did not want to put that burden on

17· ·businesses.

18· · · · · · · · · ·The second point that we have concerns

19· ·about is the process, and I won't go through this -- we

20· ·have significant questions that remain on how this is

21· ·going to work out.· A couple people asked about the

22· ·logistics, how this is going to work, and I know LED is

23· ·still working it and I've heard different parishes are

24· ·working how that's going to work, but I do want to

25· ·observe that, of course, the current process you've got

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·just the Board of Commerce & Industry and the Governor,

·2· ·which we call a -- I'll call it a pause or in process,

·3· ·significant amount of time that it's going to take some

·4· ·decision.· In the attachment to what we submitted, I

·5· ·have what we call "stop signs."· That's not intended to

·6· ·offend anyone.· It's just a recognition that there is

·7· ·there's more time added to the process it seems in this

·8· ·process, so that is a concern.· And it's time that's, of

·9· ·course, significant in management as a review processes

10· ·or review a project to consider multiple sites, where

11· ·are they going to build or are they going to build at

12· ·all.· If the economics don't work out, that project can

13· ·be shelved, which is very common, so that is a concern.

14· · · · · · · ·And just for the record that the stop signs,

15· ·or the pauses, I will say, are now -- or the additional

16· ·ones are Exhibit A, which is the cooperative endeavor

17· ·with LED and the local government.· There could be

18· ·multiple, up to four, depending on if you're in the city

19· ·limits or not.· And then you've got the Department of

20· ·Revenue has to issue a letter of no objection or letter

21· ·of approval, and that's -- before it gets to the process

22· ·where it was before for the BCI to be reviewed.· So I

23· ·know you're aware of that.· I just mention that for the

24· ·record we're concerned about those additional pauses in

25· ·the process.

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · · · ·So enough about processes unless we have

·2· ·questions.· I'll be glad to answer those.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·The next point is competition for

·4· ·economic development.· I don't have to -- and,

·5· ·Mr. Pierson, you're much more aware of this than I am.

·6· ·I see it from a company perspective and throughout my

·7· ·career.· I've been a business development teams, so I

·8· ·see it from that perspective, so I realize you're well

·9· ·aware that there's competition for a very limited

10· ·capital within a company and also between states,

11· ·between countries, and as I said earlier, whether it

12· ·will be built at all.· It has to meet other certain

13· ·hurdle rate or a certain return.· So all of those items

14· ·are very important.

15· · · · · · · · · ·The tax foundation makes -- I will not

16· ·quote their -- I will only reference their comments,

17· ·which we have in writing here.· They make the point that

18· ·taxes matter to business.· It's a big -- I've never said

19· ·that it's the only consideration in site selection, but

20· ·it is a significant consideration.· It also states do

21· ·not enact tax changes in a vacuum.· That's kind of a

22· ·given, too.· Whenever you make significant changes in

23· ·tax policy, you will -- if you treat something in one

24· ·place, it's kind of like a balloon that's squeezed,

25· ·something else pops up somewhere else, so there should

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·be some concern there.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·And, also, we said for decades, as long

·3· ·as I've been working with the business associations,

·4· ·that we've always been very open to working with ITEP as

·5· ·long as it's considered with the entire tax structure.

·6· ·So we're a little concerned with the changes in just the

·7· ·ITEP that can affect business in capital investment

·8· ·decisions.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·So I'll -- for decades, Louisiana has

10· ·been successful in using the ITEP, and speaking from

11· ·someone from Texas, a resident of Texas, and observing

12· ·people over there in business decisions, it's -- I've

13· ·been on the other end of it, too, that Louisiana's been

14· ·successful.· And I met with county judges and others,

15· ·and even recently.· They're very aware of what you're

16· ·doing.· And I'm aware that states, even local

17· ·governments, use not only what you're doing, but what

18· ·you're considering doing.· We use it against each other,

19· ·and you're very aware of that.

20· · · · · · · · · ·One last point that I won't dwell on

21· ·very much, we included a comment on miscellaneous

22· ·capital additions, and there's a misperception that -- I

23· ·don't think there's a misperception in Mr. Pierson or

24· ·Mr. Miller, who is here, because you accurately

25· ·explained what an MCA is in the last BCI meeting, but we

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·include that here because the intent of an MCA is never

·2· ·to try to have a, for example, $60-million project and

·3· ·divide it by five and say each one of those projects is

·4· ·an MCA.· That's never the intent.· I've never even heard

·5· ·of that in all of the years that I've worked with this.

·6· ·So as the rules state, it is an accumulation of multiple

·7· ·projects to get to the $5-million level.· So I wish when

·8· ·we requested the Board to reconsider that -- and I only

·9· ·bring that up in case the Governor and his

10· ·representative were actually thinking they put that in

11· ·executive order because they thought that an MCA is just

12· ·a division of a big project to circumvent your rules.

13· · · · · · · · · ·With that, we respectfully request you

14· ·consider the LABI comments that were presented, also the

15· ·presented comments that we have in more detail here.

16· · · · · · · · · ·So I'll close with that.· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

18· · · · · · · · · ·As this dialog, anybody that may have

19· ·passed has something discussed that you feel you want to

20· ·articulate a little bit more on that topic so that it's

21· ·fully embedded in our analysis, it's a question to the

22· ·group and your opportunity to respond before we close

23· ·out the record today.

24· · · · · · · · · ·(No response.)

25· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · · · ·Well, this has been enormously helpful.

·2· ·I know that you've spent a lot of time with it.

·3· ·Certainly we appreciate the analysis that's here.· Our

·4· ·goal is the same as your goal.· It's a vibrant economy

·5· ·in Louisiana that can only be happening if we are in

·6· ·concert with business industry providing that certainty

·7· ·that's necessary for a business to make investments with

·8· ·confidence.· It's not static.· It is a global

·9· ·competition.· It is a competition across America for

10· ·this capital, for these jobs, for these investments.

11· ·The number of manufacturing jobs over the last 10 years

12· ·has significantly decreased, 1.4-million fewer

13· ·manufacturing jobs today than just 10 years ago, so

14· ·they're very important to us.· We do prioritize this.

15· ·We do understand that taxation is a very import part of

16· ·the equation.

17· · · · · · · · · ·So, again, thank you for your thoughtful

18· ·analysis, the input that you've provided, and we will

19· ·take that our best to help craft a set of rules that can

20· ·be navigated by a business with confidence.· And, again,

21· ·we have to be patient with the process.· There is a lot

22· ·of new here, and while we are going to have a learning

23· ·curve to come up, it will be part of my responsibility

24· ·and the department's responsibility to make sure that

25· ·this doesn't become a permanent climb up Mount Everest.

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·We want to do the necessary training, understanding

·2· ·clarifications so that it is a smooth and streamlined

·3· ·process.· I believe that it can be.· I know that today

·4· ·it's different than it was prior to June 24, but I think

·5· ·over time, once there's these clear understandings in a

·6· ·now way of doing business, that we'll get to a point

·7· ·where we're very efficient with it.· That's the goal.

·8· ·If we don't meet that goal, then I'll ask that you

·9· ·continue to bring that to my attention so that we can

10· ·continually improve until we get to that position.

11· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you for your time and attention

12· ·today.

13· · · · · · · · · ·Danielle, anything else before we close

14· ·the record?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:

16· · · · · · · · · ·I have a quick question.

17· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:

20· · · · · · · · · ·It looks like based on what we heard

21· ·today and received comments from LIDEA, LABI, LCA and

22· ·LMOGA.· Did you receive any other comments?

23· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

24· · · · · · · · · ·I don't think we received any written

25· ·comments.

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Well, we still have mail coming in today

·3· ·that was just delivered to the Board that can be

·4· ·attached to this before we close out the record, so we

·5· ·can't probably accurately tell you all of the input that

·6· ·we've had because of the mail was just delivered.· But

·7· ·the permanent record will reflect all of the input that

·8· ·we receive to include the letters from the various

·9· ·organizations.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:

11· · · · · · · · · ·And, Danielle, we just come to you to

12· ·get a copy of the permanent record?

13· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Well, it's going to be at least a couple

15· ·of weeks we have the -- about two weeks --

16· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Before we have the transcript?

18· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

19· · · · · · · · · ·-- before we have the transcript from

20· ·the court reporter.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:

22· · · · · · · · · ·But you're the point person to

23· ·request --

24· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· If it's a public records request,

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·technically it's supposed to start in our communications

·2· ·division, but I'll be the one pulling all of the

·3· ·records.

·4· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·But we do plan to aggregate the

·6· ·information and provide it to the Board members, in

·7· ·particular the chair of the rules committee and the

·8· ·rules committee so that the input is utilized to its

·9· ·fullest advantage.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:

11· · · · · · · · · ·What about those -- are we going to be

12· ·able to get a copy of the records?

13· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· It will be public record, and

15· ·we'll be happy to provide it.· You don't have to ask us

16· ·for a copy of what we're going to put together for the

17· ·rules committee.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Do you know at this time if you received

20· ·more than just the four today?

21· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Mail is delivered, so I have to see

23· ·what's in the mail.· We've got to separate it and see

24· ·what's --

25· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · · · ·With the holiday and such, I know mail

·2· ·has been stacking up, and so Danielle hasn't had a

·3· ·chance to go through all of that to accurately your

·4· ·question, but we'll be happy to, you know, share all of

·5· ·the input that we have.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. LAWRENCE:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·And, Danielle, I have a question.· Donna

·8· ·Lawrence from Denbury.· If there are projects in the

·9· ·pipeline, you know, that a company is looking at, what

10· ·is the timeline that we're jumping from pre-June to

11· ·post-June to have rules under which a new -- a company

12· ·wants to look at a new project?· How do we know where --

13· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

14· · · · · · · · · ·You just call LED and we'll assign a

15· ·project manager and we'll move you forward.· There's no

16· ·disparity or -- we have a new set of rules, but we know

17· ·how to follow those.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. LAWRENCE:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.

20· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

21· · · · · · · · · ·And we don't want to do anything that's

22· ·going to hold up investments.· Let me know, and we'll

23· ·jump right on it.

24· · · · · · · ·MS. LAWRENCE:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· With no other comments,

·3· ·meeting adjourned.

·4· · · · · · · ·(Meeting concludes at 10:44 a.m.)

·5

·6

·7

·8

·9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

http://www.torresreporting.com/


·1· ·REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:

·2· · · · · · · ·I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court

·3· ·Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the

·4· ·officer before whom this meeting for the Board of

·5· ·Commerce and Industry of the Louisiana Economic

·6· ·Development Corporation, do hereby certify that this

·7· ·meeting was reported by me in the stenotype reporting

·8· ·method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my

·9· ·personal direction and supervision, and is a true and

10· ·correct transcript to the best of my ability and

11· ·understanding;

12· · · · · · · ·That the transcript has been prepared in

13· ·compliance with transcript format required by statute or

14· ·by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance

15· ·with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as

16· ·defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article

17· ·1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;

18· · · · · · · ·That I am not related to counsel or to the

19· ·parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the

20· ·outcome of this matter.

21
· · ·Dated this 13th day of January, 2017.
22

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·___________________________

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER

http://www.torresreporting.com/


http://www.torresreporting.com/


http://www.torresreporting.com/


http://www.torresreporting.com/


http://www.torresreporting.com/


http://www.torresreporting.com/


http://www.torresreporting.com/


http://www.torresreporting.com/


http://www.torresreporting.com/


ATTACHMENT B 
 

NOTICE OF INTENT 
Department of Economic Development 

Office of Business Development 

Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Program (LAC 13:I.Chapter 5) 

These rules are being published in the Louisiana Register as required by LA R.S. 47:4351, et seq. The Department 
of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, as authorized by and pursuant to the provisions of the 
Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq., and R.S. 36:104 hereby proposes to enact Section 501 and 502 and 
to amend and reenact Sections 503 – Section 537 for the administration of the Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption 
Program in LAC 13:I.Chapter 5 to implement programmatic changes in alignment with Executive Orders 16-26 and 
16-73.  

Title 13 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Part I.  Financial Incentive Programs 
Chapter 5.  Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Program 

 
§ 501 Statement of Purpose 

A. New Rules 

1. These rules amend and restate prior rules and upon adoption are to implement two important policies for the 
Industrial Tax Exemption Property Tax Exemption. The first is as a competitive incentive for job creation and under 
compelling circumstances, job retention. The second is to provide for input from local parish and municipal 
governments, school boards and sheriffs as to the extent of, and other terms and conditions for the Industrial Tax 
Exemption. 

2. On all projects, applicant manufacturers are to demonstrate a genuine commitment to investing in the 
communities in which they operate, and a genuine commitment to creating and retaining jobs in those communities. 
These are the expectations for the program’s future, and the Board will continue to operate it in a way that makes 
Louisiana competitive with other states in securing good jobs for our citizens while giving local governments a voice 
in their taxation. These rules are to be interpreted in a manner so as to promote these goals. 

B. Applicability of Prior Rules. Just as the Board is promoting job growth and economic development and extending 
fairness to communities, the Board is promoting fairness to manufacturers who have acted in accordance with prior 
rules. Contracts for the Industrial Property Tax Exemption and the renewal of the exemption and projects found to be 
pending as defined by Executive Orders JBE 16-26 and JBE 16-73 are to be treated fairly under the rules that were in 
place at the time of the Contracts and prior to the new rules. Louisiana honors its commitments and the rules governing 
existing contracts and applications not subject to the new rules are to be interpreted in order to promote fairness and 
commitment. Therefore, only those applications with an advance notification form filed after June 24, 2016, are 
subject to the 2017 rules changes.  

C. Going Forward.  

1. Louisiana values its manufacturers and their contributions to its economy. The Board’s policies going forward 
are to provide all a seat at the table to determine the best investment outcome for our industries and our communities. 

2. All rules in this chapter are intended to align with the above purpose while providing a process that balances 
accountability with reasonable administrative burden for state and local government and applicants. 

§502 Definitions 

Addition to a manufacturing establishment— 
1. a capital expenditure for property that would meet the standard of a new manufacturing establishment if the 
addition were treated as a stand-alone establishment;  

Formatted: English (United States)



ATTACHMENT B 
 

2. a capital expenditure for property that is directly related to the manufacturing operations of an existing 
manufacturing establishment; or  
3. an installation or physical change made to a manufacturing establishment that increases its value, utility or 
competitiveness.  
4. Maintenance capital, environmentally required capital upgrades, and replacement parts, except those replacements 
required in the rehabilitation or restoration of an establishment, to conserve as nearly, and as long as possible, 
original condition, shall not qualify as an addition to a manufacturing establishment. 
5. Expenses associated with the rehabilitation or restoration of an establishment as provided for in Section 511 shall 
be included as an addition to a manufacturing establishment 

Beginning of Construction—the first day on which foundations are started or, where foundations are unnecessary, 
the first day on which installations of the manufacturing establishment begins 

Board—Board of Commerce and Industry 

Capital Expenditure—the cost associated with a new manufacturing establishment or an addition to an existing 
manufacturing establishment, including the purchasing or improving real property and tangible personal property, 
whose useful life exceeds one year and which is used in the conduct of business 

Environmentally Required Capital Upgrades—upgrades required by any state or federal governmental agency in 
order to avoid fines, closures or other penalty 

Establishment -- an economic unit at a single physical location 

Integral—required to make whole the product being produced 
 
Job—positions of employment that are: 

1. New (not previously existing in the state) or retained; 
2. Permanent (without specific term); 
3. Full-time (working 30 or more hours per week); 
4. Employed directly, by an affiliate or through contract labor; 
5. Based at the manufacturing establishment; 
6. Filled by a United States citizen who is domiciled in Louisiana or who becomes domiciled in Louisiana within 60 
days of employment; and 
7. Any others terms of employment as negotiated in the Exhibit A or Exhibit B.  

LED—Louisiana Economic Development 

Local Governmental Entity—parish governing authority, school board, Sheriff, and any municipality in which the 
manufacturing establishment is or will be located 

Maintenance Capital—costs incurred to conserve as nearly as possible the original condition 

Manufacturer—a person or business who engages in manufacturing at a manufacturing establishment 

Manufacturing-- working raw materials by means of mass or custom production, including fabrication, applying 
manual labor or or custom fabrication and machinery into wares suitable for use or which gives new shapes, 
qualities or combinations to matter which already has gone through some artificial process. The resulting products 
must be “suitable for use” as manufactured products that are placed into commerce for sale or sold for use as a 
component of another product to be placed, and placed into commerce for sale.  

Obsolescence—the inadequacy, disuse, outdated or non-functionality of facilities, infrastructure, equipment or 
product technologies due to the effects of time, decay, changing market conditions, invention and adoption of new 
product technologies or changing consumer demands.  

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

 

 

Qualified Disaster— 

1. A disaster which results from: 
a. An act of terror directed against the United States of any of its allies; or  
b. Any military action involving the Armed Forces of the United States and resulting from violence or 

aggression against the United States or any of its allies (or threat thereof), but not including training 
exercises 

2. Any disaster which, with respect to the area in which the property is located, resulted in a subsequent 
determination by the President of the United States that such area warrants assistance by the federal 
government under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act; 

3. A disaster which is determined by an applicable federal, state, or local authority (as determined by the 
Secretary) to warrant assistance from the federal state or local government or agency of instrumentality 
thereof; or  

4. Any other extraordinary event that destroys or renders all or a portion of the manufacturing establishment 
inoperable 

Rehabilitation—the extensive renovation of a building or project that is intended to cure obsolescence or to 
repurpose a facility 

Restoration—repairs to bring a building or structure to at least its original form or an improved condition  

Secretary—Secretary of Louisiana Economic Development 

Site—One or more contiguous parcels of land which are under the control of the manufacturing establishment or 
which contains certain assets of the manufacturing establishment. 

 §503. Advance Notification; Application 

A. An advance notification of intent to apply for tax exemption shall be filed with the LED Office of Business 
Development (OBD) on the prescribed form prior to the beginning of construction or installation of facilities on all 
projects for tax exemption except as provided in Section 505(A) and (B) of these rules. An advance notification fee of 
$250 shall be submitted with the form. The advance notification will expire and become void if no application is filed 
within 12 months of the estimated project ending date stated in the advance notification. The estimated project ending 
date as stated on the advance notification may be amended by the applicant if the amendment is made prior to the 
estimated project ending date. 

B. All financial incentive programs for a given project shall be filed at the same time and on the same advance 
notification. The applicable advance notification fee for each program for which the applicant anticipates applying 
shall be submitted with the advance notification.  

C.  An application for tax exemption may be filed with OBD on the prescribed form: 

1. either concurrent with or after filing the advance notification, but no later than 90 days after the beginning of 
operations or end of construction, whichever occurs first; 

2. the deadline for filing the application may be extended pursuant to §523; 

3. an applicant filing an application prior to the beginning of operations or end of construction of the project 
shall file an annual status report with OBD on the prescribed form by December 31, until the Project Completion 
Report and Affidavit of Final Cost are filed. If the applicant fails to timely file a status report the board may, after 
notice to the applicant, terminate the contract. 

D. In order to receive the Board’s approval, applications with advance notifications filed after June 24, 2016, shall 
contain both of the following: 

1. An Exhibit “A” consisting of a fully executed cooperative endeavor agreement between the state, Louisiana 
Economic Development and the applicant specifying the terms and conditions of the granting of the exemption 
contract.  



ATTACHMENT B 
 

a. The terms and conditions of the Exhibit “A” shall include the following: 

(i) either number of jobs and payroll to be created at the project site or the number of jobs and payroll to be 
retained at the project site where applicable; 

(ii) the term of the exemption contract which shall be for up to, but no more than five (5) years and may provide 
for an ad valorem exemption of up to 100% and terms for renewal may be included provided that the renewal of the 
contract shall be for a period up to, but no more than three (3) years and may provide for an ad valorem tax exemption 
of up to, but no more than 80%;  

(iii) the percentage of property eligible for the exemption;  

(iv) any penalty provisions for failure to create the requisite number of jobs or payroll at the project site, including 
but not limited to, a reduction in term, reduction in percentage of exemption, or termination of the exemption; and  

(v) a statement of Return on Investment (ROI) as determined by the Secretary. 

2. An Exhibit “B” consisting of resolutions adopted by the parish governing authority (speaking on behalf of the 
parish and all parish bodies who receive a millage), the school board, the Sheriff, and any municipality (speaking on 
behalf of the municipality and all municipal bodies who receive a millage ) and a letter from the Sheriff approving the 
project in which the manufacturing establishment is or will be located signifying whether each of these authorities is 
in favor of the project. 

a. Exhibit “B” shall include provisions addressing the following: 

(i) The number of jobs and payroll to be created at the project site required by the local governmental entity for 
approval of the exemption; 

(ii) The term of the exemption contract approved by the local governmental entity; and 

(iii) the percentage of property eligible for the exemption approved by the local governmental entity. 

c. b. Failure of the parish governing authority, the school board, or the municipality to issue a resolution or 
failure of the Sheriff to issue a letter within 90 days of a business’ request for such resolution shall be deemed to result 
in the continuation of the millage without exemption.   

c. LED will provide guidance to local governmental entities as to suggested alternatives as it relates parameters 
for job creation, payroll, percentage of exemption and length of contract. 

3. The Board shall consider the information collected and the provisions of Exhibits “A” and “B” in determining 
whether to approve the contract for exemption and the renewal thereof. 

4. If the terms of Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” as it relates to the term of the exemption, and the percentage of 
property tax eligible for exemption are not the same, the provisions of Exhibit “B” shall prevail.  

E. 1. Applications which provide for a new manufacturing establishment or which provide for an addition to a 
manufacturing establishment with the creation of new jobs or a compelling reason for the retention of existing jobs 
shall be favored by the Board. 

2. In determining whether a company has presented a compelling reason for the retention of existing jobs, the 
following situations may be considered: 

a. to prevent relocation to another state or country; 

b. to provide an advantage for investment from a company with multi-state operations with an established 
competitive capital project program; 

c. to employ best practice or innovative, state of the art technology for the establishment’s industry;  

d. to increase maximum capacity or efficiency; or 

e. to provide the state a competitive advantage as determined by the Secretary or by the Board.  

F. An application fee shall be submitted with the application in the amount equal to 0.5 percent of the estimated 
total amount of taxes to be exempted. In no case shall an application fee be smaller than $500 and in no case shall a 
fee exceed $15,000 per project. 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.25",  No bullets or

numbering



ATTACHMENT B 
 

G. OBD reserves the right to return the advance notification, application, or Affidavit of Final Cost to the applicant 
if the form is incomplete or incorrect. or the correct fee is not submitted. The document may be resubmitted with the 
correct information and fee.  

H. If the application is submitted after the filing deadline, the term of exemption available under an initial contract 
and renewal thereof shall be reduced by one year for each year or portion thereof that the application is late, up to a 
maximum reduction up to the maximum remaining term. The board may impose any other penalty for late filing that 
it deems appropriate. 

I. The department will provide a copy of the application and all relative information to the Louisiana Department 
of Revenue (LDR) for review. LDR may require additional information from the applicant. The department must 
receive a letter-of-no-objection or a letter-of-approval from the LDR, prior to submitting the application to the board 
for action. 

J. Eligibility of the applicant and the property for the exemption, including whether the activities at the site meet 
the definition of manufacturing, will be reviewed by the board based upon the facts and circumstances existing at the 
time the application is considered by the Board of Commerce and Industry. The property exempted may be increased 
or decreased based upon review of the application, Project Completion Report or Affidavit of Final Cost. An 
application filed prior to completion of construction may be considered by the board and a contract may be executed 
based upon the best available estimates, subject to review and approval of the Project Completion Report and Affidavit 
of Final Cost. If the applicant fails to timely file the Project Completion Report or Affidavit of Final Cost the board 
may, after notice to the applicant, terminate the contract. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated 

by Department of Commerce, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 11:97 (February 1985), LR 12:662 (October 1986), amended 
by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:864 (August 1994), amended by the 
Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2376 (August 2011), LR 41:2318 (November 
2015). 

§505. Miscellaneous Capital Additions 

A. Miscellaneous capital additions which had pending contractual applications on June 24, 2016, and which provide 
for new jobs at the completed manufacturing establishment shall be considered by the Board. 

B. Miscellaneous capital additions which did not have a pending contractual application as of June 24, 2016 or those with pending 
applications as of June 24, 2016, but do not provide for new jobs, are not eligible for the property tax exemption. AUTHORITY 
NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Commerce, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 11:97 (February 
1985), amended LR 12:662 (October 1986), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and 
Industry, LR 20:865 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 
37:2377 (August 2011), LR 41:2318 (November 2015). 

§507. Eligible Property – Buildings and Facilities Used in Manufacturing; Leased Property; Capitalized 
Materials   

A.  

 The board shall consider for tax exemption buildings and facilities used in the operation of new manufacturing 
establishments located within the state of Louisiana (subject to the limitations stated in §517 and 519) and additions 
to  manufacturing establishments within the state of Louisiana. Exemptions are granted to the owners of buildings that 
house a manufacturing establishment and facilities that are operated specifically in the manufacturing of a product. 
The board recognizes two categories of ownership: 

1. owners who engage in manufacturing at said facilities; and 

2. owners who are not engaged in manufacturing at said manufacturing establishment, but who have provided 
either or both of the following for a predetermined manufacturing establishment: 

a. buildings to house a manufacturing establishment; 

b. facilities that consist of manufacturing equipment operated specifically in the manufacturing process. 

3. Owners who are not engaged in manufacturing at the manufacturing establishment are eligible for the 
exemption only if the manufacturer at the site is obligated to pay the property taxes if the exemption were not granted.  



ATTACHMENT B 
 

B. Leased property is eligible for the exemption, if the property is used in the manufacturing process, is and 
remains on the plant site, and the manufacturer is obligated under the lease agreement to pay the property taxes if the 
exemption were not granted.  

C. Capitalized materials which are an essential and integral part of a manufacturing process, but do not form part 
of the finished product, may be exempted along with the manufacturing establishment. Some examples of these are:  

1. ammonia in a freezing plant;  

2. solvent in an extraction plant; and  

3. catalyst in a manufacturing process. 

D. To be eligible for exemption, a manufacturing establishment must be in an operational status and engaged in 
manufacturing . An owner of a new manufacturing establishment under construction may apply for an exemption with 
the expectation that the manufacturing establishment  will become operational. If the manufacturing establishment 
fails to become operational or ceases operations without a reasonable expectation of recommencing operations, the 
facility shall no longer be eligible for exemption and its contract shall be subject to termination under Section 531. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Pan 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated 

by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:865 (August 1994), amended by the 
Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2377 (August 2011). 

§509. Integral Parts of the Manufacturing Operation 

A. Property that is an integral part of the manufacturing operation is eligible for the tax exemption. . 

B. The following activities are considered to be integral to the manufacturing process: 

1. Quality Control/Quality Assurance 

2. Packaging  

3. Transportation of goods on the site during the manufacturing process 

4. Other on site essential activities as approved by the Secretary and the Board. 

. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 

20:866 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2378 
(August 2011). 

§511. Rehabilitation and Restoration of Property 

A.  Capital expenditures  for  the rehabilitation or restoration of an existing  establishment may be exempted if it 
is not maintenance. If replacements or upgrades are made as part of a rehabilitation or restoration to an establishment, 
only the capital expenditures in excess of original cost shall be eligible for tax exemption. A deduction for the original 
cost of property to be replaced shall not be made if the project will result in capital additions that exceed $50,000,000. 

B. Exemption may be granted on the costs of rehabilitation or restoration of  a partially or completely damaged 
facility, but only on the amount in excess of the original cost. 

C. Original costs deducted from rehabilitation or restoration  made or rebuilding shall be clearly documented. 

D. A deduction for the original cost of property to be replaced as part of a rehabilitation or restoration, as provided 
by Subsections A or B, shall not be made if the project is related to the replacement or reconstruction of property after 
the destruction of or damage to such property, as a result of a qualified disaster. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 

20:866 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2378 
(August 2011). 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

§513. Relocations  

A. A manufacturing establishment moved from one location in the state to another place within the state shall be 
eligible for the unexpired consecutive years, if any, of the tax exemption contract granted at the original 
location.  

B. If a manufacturing establishment moves from one location in the state to another location within the state, the 
company shall be required to seek approval of the parish governing authority, the school board, the Sheriff, and 
any municipality in which the manufacturing establishment will be located if these local governing authorities 
are different than those that approved the exemption at the original site. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974.  
HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946. amended and promulgated 

by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:866 (August 1994), amended by the 
Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 29:2633 (December 2003), LR  
37:2378 (August 2011). 

§515. Used Equipment  

A. Used equipment is eligible for tax exemption provided no ad valorem property taxes have been paid in 
Louisiana on said property. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VD, Pan 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 

20:886 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2378 
(August 2011). 

§517. Ineligible Property  

A. Maintenance capital, environmentally required capital upgrades and new replacements to existing machinery 
and equipment, except those replacements required in the rehabilitation or restoration of a facility, are not eligible for 
the tax exemption. 

B. If the establishment or addition is on the taxable rolls and property taxes have not been paid, the establishment 
or addition is not eligible for the exemption unless the assessor and local governmental entity agree in writing to 
remove the establishment or addition from the taxable rolls should the tax exemption be granted. 

C. The board shall not consider for tax exemption any property listed on an application on which ad valorem 
property taxes have been paid.  

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated 

by the Department of Commerce, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 11:97 (February 1985), amended by the Department of 
Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:866 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic 
Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2378 (August 2011). 

§519. Land  

A. The land on which a manufacturing establishment is located is not eligible for tax exemption. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VU, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 
1974. 

HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated 
by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:866 (August 1994), amended by the 
Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2379 (August 2011). 

§521. Inventories  

A. The following are not eligible for tax exemption: 

1. inventories of raw materials used in the course of manufacturing; 

2. inventories of work-in-progress or finished products; 

3. any other consumable items. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated by the 
Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:866 (August 1994), amended by the Department 
of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2379 (August 2011). 

§523. Extension of Time 

A. OBD may grant an extension of up to six months for the filing of an application (§503.B.), a Project Completion 
Report (§525), or an Affidavit of Final Cost (§527), provided the request for extension is received prior to the filing 
deadline.  

B. Additional extensions of time may be granted for good cause. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 

20:867 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2379 
(August 2011). 

§525. Effective Date of Contract; Project Completion Report 

A. The owner of a new manufacturing establishment or addition shall document the beginning date of operations 
and the date that construction is substantially complete. The owner must file that information with OBD on the 
prescribed project completion report form not later than 90 days after the beginning of operations, completion of 
construction, or receipt of the fully executed contract, whichever occurs last. A project completion report fee of $250 
shall be submitted with the form. The deadline for filing the project completion report may be extended pursuant to 
§523. 

B. The effective date of tax exemption contracts for property located in parishes other than Orleans Parish shall 
be December 31 of the year in which effective operation began or construction was essentially completed, whichever 
occurs first. The effective date of tax exemption contracts for property located in Orleans Parish shall be July 31 of 
the applicable year. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated 

by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:867 (August 1994), amended by the 
Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development LR 37:2379 (August 2011), LR 41:2318 (November 
2015). 

§527. Affidavit of Final Cost 

A. Within six months of the beginning of operations, completion of construction, or receipt of the executed 
contract, whichever occurs last, the owner of a manufacturing establishment or addition shall file on the prescribed 
form an affidavit of final cost showing complete cost of the exempted project. A fee of $250 shall be filed with the 
affidavit of final cost or any amendment to the affidavit of final cost. Upon request by OBD, a map showing the 
location of all facilities exempted in the project shall be submitted in order that the exempted property may be clearly 
identifiable. The deadline for filing the affidavit of final cost may be extended pursuant to §523. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated 

by the Department of Commerce, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 12:662 (October 1986), amended by the Department of 
Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:867 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic 
Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2379 (August 2011), LR 41:2319 (November 2015). 

§529. Renewal of Tax Exemption Contract 

A. Application for renewal of the exemption must be filed with OBD on the prescribed form not more than six 
months before, and not later than ,the expiration of the initial contract. A fee of $250 shall be filed with the renewal 
application. The document shall not be considered officially received and accepted until the appropriate fee is 
submitted. Upon proper showing of full compliance with the initial contract of exemption, the contract may be 
approved by the board for an additional period of up to but not exceeding five years. 

B. Eligibility of the applicant and the property for renewal of the exemption will be reviewed by the Board using 
the same criteria that was used for the initial contract, and based upon the facts and circumstances existing at the time 
the renewal application is considered. The property exempted for the renewal period may be increased or decreased 
based upon review of the renewal application. The term of the renewal contract shall  be reduced by one year for each 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

calendar month, or portion thereof, that the renewal application is filed late. The board may impose any other penalty 
for late renewal submission that it deems appropriate. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Pan 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated 

by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:867 (August 1994), amended by the 
Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2379 (August 2011), LR 41:2319 (November 
2015). 

§531. Violation of Rules or Documents; Final Inspection 

A. The board reserves the right, on its own initiative or upon written complaint of an alleged violation of terms of 
tax exemption rules or documents, to conduct a final inspection. During the final inspection OBD may cause to be 
made a full investigation on behalf of the board and shall have full authority for such investigation including authority 
to demand reports or pertinent records and information from the applicant and complainants. Results of the 
investigation will be presented to the board. 

B. All contracts of exemption shall be subject to the final inspection. If a final inspection indicates that the 
applicant has violated any terms of the contract or rules, or that the exempt facility is not engaged in manufacturing, 
the board may conduct a hearing to reconsider the contract of exemption, after giving the applicant not less than 60 
days notice. 

C. If the board determines that there has been a violation of the terms of the contract or the rules, that the property 
exempted by the contract is not eligible because it is not used in a manufacturing process, or that the facility has not 
commenced or has ceased manufacturing operations, the board may terminate or otherwise modify the contract. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VU, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 
1974. 

HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the State Board of Commerce and Industry, December 9, 1946, amended and promulgated 
by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 20:867 (August 1994), amended by the 
Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2380 (August 2011). 

§533. Reporting Requirements for Changes in Operations 

A. OBD is to be notified immediately of any change which affects the tax exemption contract. This includes any 
changes in the ownership or operational name of a firm holding a tax exemption contract. A fee of $250 shall be filed 
with a request for any contract amendment, including but not limited to, a change of ownership, change in name, or 
change in location. The board may consider restrictions or cancellation of a contract for cessation of the manufacturing 
operation, or retirement of any portion of the exempted equipment. Failure to report any material changes constitutes 
a breach of contract and, with approval by the board, shall result in restriction or termination.  

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 

20:867 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2380 
(August 2011), LR 41:2319 (November 2015). 

§535. Sale or Transfer of Exempted Manufacturing Establishment 

A. In the event an applicant should sell or otherwise dispose of property covered by a contract of exemption, the 
purchaser of the said plant or property may, within three months of the date of such act of sale, apply to the board for 
a transfer of the contract. A fee of $250 shall be filed with a request to transfer the contract. The board shall consider 
all such applications for transfer of contracts of exemption strictly on the merits of the application for such transfer. 
No such transfer shall in any way impair or amend any of the provisions of the contract so transferred other than to 
change the name of the contracting applicant. Failure to request or apply for a transfer within the stipulated time period 
shall constitute a violation of the contract. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Commerce and Industry, LR 

20:868 (August 1994), amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Business Development, LR 37:2380 
(August 2011), LR 41:2319 (November 2015). 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

§537. Reporting to the Parish Assessor 

A. The applicant shall file annually with the assessor of the parish in which the manufacturing establishment is 
located, a complete taxpayer’s report on forms approved by the Louisiana Tax Commission, in order that the exempted 
property may be separately listed on the assessment rolls. 

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with Article VII, Part 2, Section 21(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
HISTORICAL NOTE: Adopted by the Department of Commerce, Office of Commerce and Industry, Division of Financial 
Programs Administration, September 1974, amended by the Department of Economic Development, Office of Business 
Development, LR 37:2380 (August 2011). 
 

Provider Impact Statement 

    The proposed rulemaking should have no provider impact as described in HCR 170 of 2014. 

Family Impact Statement 
The proposed Rule changes have no impact on family formation, stability or autonomy, as described in R.S. 49.972. 

Poverty Statement 
The proposed rulemaking will have no impact on poverty as described in R.S. 49:973. 

 
Public Comments 

Interested persons may submit written comments to Danielle Clapinski, Louisiana Department of Economic 
Development, P.O. Box 94185, Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9185; or physically delivered to Capitol Annex Building, 
Office of the Secretary, Second Floor, 1051 North Third Street, Baton Rouge, LA, 70802. Comments may also be sent 
by email to danielle.clapinski@la.gov. All comments must be received no later than 5 p.m., on December 28, 2016. 

Public Hearing 
A public hearing to receive comments on the Notice of Intent will be held on December 29, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. at 

the Department of Economic Development, 617 North Third Street, Baton Rouge, LA 70802. 

Anne G. Villa 
UnderSecretary 

 
FISCAL AND ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT FOR ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

RULE TITLE: Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Program 
 

I. ESTIMATED IMPLEMENTATION COSTS (SAVINGS) TO STATE OR LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL 
 UNITS (Summary) 

There will be no significant costs or savings to state or local governmental units as a result of the 
proposed rule changes. The Department of Economic Development (DED) intends to administer the 
program with existing resources and personnel. However, the DED, as well as the LA Department 
of Revenue may incur marginal administrative costs associated with implementing the proposed 
rule changes 

Executive orders JBE 16-26 and 16-73 made significant changes to the Industrial Tax Exemption 
Program (ITEP) and the Board of Commerce and Industry is codifying those changes in the rules 
for the program. These changes include requiring all projects to file an advance notification, 
eliminating the miscellaneous capital addition process, and eliminating maintenance, repairs and 
environmentally required upgrades from eligibility for the tax exemption.  

Additionally, the rule changes require that companies who want to participate in the program seek 
and receive approval from both local and state governments. Firms wishing to participate must file 
two exhibits, Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B,” which have separate requirements regarding state and 
local requirements to be eligible for the exemption, respectively. If the terms of Exhibits “A” and 
“B” differ on the term of the exemption and/for the percentage of property tax eligible for the 
exemption, the provisions of Exhibit “B” will take precedent.  

Furthermore, the term of the renewal contracts is now limited to 3 years and the percentage of 
exemption for renewed contracts is now 80%. This is a change from the previous practice of 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

renewing contracts for up to 5 years at a 100% exemption percentage. However, advances filed and 
miscellaneous capital additions approved prior to June 24, 2016 are grandfathered in to the past 
practice of being renewed for up to 5 years at a 100% exemption percentage. Lastly, the rules 
establish a definitions section to further clarify and explain portions of the rules. 

 
II.  ESTIMATED EFFECT ON REVENUE COLLECTIONS OF STATE OR LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL 
 UNITS (Summary) 
The proposed rule changes may increase revenues for local governments by an indeterminable 
amount for a number of reasons. First, some projects that previously filed miscellaneous capital 
additions, the process for which is being eliminated by the proposed rule changes, could previously 
file advances. Second, the DED has not previously captured how many ITEP program contracts are 
for maintenance, repairs, etc., that are no longer eligible for the exemption. As a result the 
corresponding aggregate value of the aforementioned contract types cannot be determined. Lastly, 
the DED does not know how many years or percentage of exemption local governing entities will 
grant, as local governing authorities have the ability to set contract terms and exemption 
percentages and supersede state terms and percentages under the authority of the proposed rule 
changes. 

The proposed rule changes will not affect revenue collections for state governmental units.  

 
III.  ESTIMATED COSTS AND/OR ECONOMIC BENEFITS TO DIRECTLY AFFECTED PERSONS OR 
 NON-GOVERNMENTAL GROUPS (Summary) 
The incomes of companies that are no longer eligible to participate in the program will decrease in 
the same amount as any increases in local revenues, as fewer exemptions will likely be granted due 
to the Executive Orders and the rule changes. The proposed rule changes narrow the scope of ITEP, 
eliminating the miscellaneous capital additions process and the eligibility of maintenance, repairs, 
and environmentally required upgrades from eligibility. Additionally, firms must file advance 
notices with the state if they seek approval to participate in ITEP. Furthermore, contract renewals 
for firms participating in the program will only have terms of three years at an exemption percentage 
of 80%, a reduction from the previous five-year terms at a 100% exemption percentage, though there 
is an exception for firms who filed advances or had miscellaneous capital additions approved prior 
to June 24, 2016. As a result of the narrowed scope of ITEP, the economic benefits available to firms 
who wish to participate in the program are similarly reduced.  

 
IV.  ESTIMATED EFFECT ON COMPETITION AND EMPLOYMENT (Summary) 
Companies receiving benefits under this program will gain competitively over companies that do 
not receive the program’s benefits. While employment may increase in participating businesses, 
employment may be lessened in other competing businesses that do not participate in the program. 
 
 

Anne G. Villa    Greg Albrecht 
Undersecretary, LED    Chief Economist 

 


	Attachement A-Written Comments and Minutes from ITEP NOI Public Hearing
	Written Comments to 11.20.2016 ITEP NOI
	Minutes from ITEP NOI public hearing
	Transcript
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35

	Word Index
	Index: $5-million..Brent
	Index: bring..day
	Index: days..formalized
	Index: forms..limit
	Index: limitation..percent
	Index: perception..residential
	Index: resolution..times
	Index: today..Zagotti



	Attachment B - ITEP NOI November 2016-redline with changes


0001
 1
 2
 3
 4               PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR
 5       THE BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY
 6                     OF THE
 7   LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
 8                     HELD AT
 9                LASALLE BUILDING
10              617 NORTH 3RD STREET
11                  LABELLE ROOM
12             BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA
13        ON THE 29TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016
14            COMMENCING AT 10:04 A.M.
15
16
17
18     REPORTED BY:  ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
0002
 1   Appearances of Board Members Present:
 2   Charles R. "Robby" Miller
 3
 4   Staff members present:
 5   Kristen Cheng
     Danielle Clapinski
 6   Frank Favaloro
     Secretary Don Pierson
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
0003
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   Thank you, everyone, for your attendance
 3   today.  I know that there's been a lot of effort that's
 4   gone into preparing your comments that the department
 5   will receive today relative to the executive order and
 6   the changes for the Industrial Tax Exemption Program, so
 7   I know a lot of thought has gone into this.  We
 8   appreciate this as constructive, I won't say, dialog,
 9   because you're going to provide us input today, and
10   Danielle will talk about those rules of engagement.
11                   We're not here to debate the merits of
12   your suggestions, but certainly we want to convey 100
13   percent, A, appreciation of this important input, and
14   then, B, give it full consideration as we continue to
15   develop the rules on behalf of the Governor and the
16   Commerce & Industry Board.
17                   So with that, I would like to ask one of
18   our C&I Board members, the Tangipahoa Parish President,
19   if he would like to make any other additional remarks
20               MR. MILLER:
21                   I would just echo what Secretary Pierson
22   said that we thank you so much and this has been a very
23   large effort.  As y'all all know, my comments at the
24   beginning of this were the uncertainty is what causes us
25   most heartache, and I think we're close to the
0004
 1   uncertainty being gone.  You might not like it 100
 2   percent, but at least we know what we're dealing with
 3   now and we appreciate the effort and hopefully your
 4   comments are going to make us even a little bit better
 5   in what we put out there.  And as a Board member here,
 6   I'll tell you we're anxiously waiting for this so we can
 7   get this process continued through and finished.
 8               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 9                   And in closing, we did not tactically
10   select the brief time period between Christmas and New
11   Years.  It's hard to gather an audience, but what we
12   were we actually doing is trying to get the speed of
13   execution to get the rules established and get business
14   back on a field of certainty, so that is just the way
15   that the calendar happened to dictate the availability
16   and the compliance with the APA and those types of
17   things.  So thank you for that, and I will now yield to
18   Danielle.
19               MS. CLAPINSKI:
20                   Okay.  Good morning.  For those of y'all
21   who don't know, I'm Danielle Clapinski, staff attorney
22   here at LED.  I have the pleasure, or misfortune,
23   depending on the day, of working with the ITEP program.
24                   This is the public hearing for the rules
25   that were published in the 2016 edition of the register.
0005
 1   We do have a court reporter here today, so I would ask
 2   that when it's your opportunity to give your comment,
 3   please state your name, who you represent and speak --
 4   we don't have a microphone, so please speak as loudly
 5   without shouting as you can.  I don't think there are
 6   too many in here that are soft spoken, so we should be
 7   okay.
 8                   I don't intend to limit anybody to any
 9   set amount of minutes or time at this point in time,
10   other than, you know, we do have a good many people here
11   that would like to speak, so please be mindful that
12   everyone gets an opportunity to speak.  If you have
13   submitted written comments, and I've received, I think,
14   three or four different versions, please, if you can
15   sort of summarize those.  I don't know that we need to
16   go through each one because the written comments are
17   already part of the record for comments on these rules.
18                   At that, whoever -- I don't think
19   there's any formalized process on where we start.  We
20   can just start on one side and go around if you'd like.
21               MR. ZAGOTTI:
22                   My name is Matt Zagotti from Director of
23   Ryan, LLC.  My main purpose here was to just kind of
24   observe and see what's going on next.
25               MR. ALLISON:
0006
 1                   I'm Don Allison with Advantous
 2   Consulting and member of LIDEA Board of Directors, and
 3   Rhonda also with LABI.  I think she submitted some
 4   comments.  I don't plan to make any, but I'll defer to
 5   Rhonda.
 6               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
 7                   Rhonda Reap-Curiel with CENCOR
 8   Consulting representing LIDEA as government legislative
 9   committee chair.  I did submit written comments
10   yesterday, and I just want to highlight a couple of
11   those points.  I know other people around the table
12   probably have some similar points or the ones that I
13   feel are similar I want to skip over, but when it comes
14   to MCA renewals, there's still some confusion out there
15   because it appears that even though the second executive
16   order provided some clarity on those existing contracts
17   with advances that are in renewal state, it does not
18   refer to specifically those MCAs which don't have an
19   advance tied to them.  So we would like some clarity
20   written into the rules so that those companies who may
21   not have been attending the meetings to see that the
22   last two meetings they've actually been approved,
23   understand how they are to be treated and the commitment
24   is still there from the State.
25                   We have suggested some language to be
0007
 1   added as additional point in that Section 501, and then
 2   we also added some additional -- an additional sentence
 3   to 501(b) that we would hope you would consider.
 4                   And then under 503(d)(2), it's really
 5   more questions than comments because there is concern
 6   that the local governmental entities that require
 7   resolution, there may be difficulty in them actually
 8   holding a hearing or getting on the agenda.  If they
 9   just choose to ignore you, they have the luxury to do
10   that.  There's nothing that requires that side to be
11   responsive back to the business.  It seems that the onus
12   is all on the business.  They're required to go get
13   these things, but there's nothing that says, "Look, the
14   government has to be responsive back to them."
15                   And that section does only say
16   resolutions, and we know the sheriff is a letter, but we
17   think that should be plain and written out.
18                   And then with 503(e)(2)(a), we'd ask
19   that you include "relocation to another parish."  I
20   believe Ms. Malone brought that up in the actual
21   discussion of the rules at the Board meeting, and if
22   you're in the Delta Region or you're in a rural parish,
23   it is a challenge sometimes to keep your existing
24   industry there, and if this is a tool that we can use to
25   keep those companies there and make them just as
0008
 1   efficient and profitable by having them move to a more
 2   metro area where maybe there's greater workforce or
 3   something of that nature, we would like the ability to
 4   do that.  We know that with relocation to another parish
 5   within the state there's some limitations, but the
 6   limitation doesn't include them getting the full benefit
 7   of a new facility, and that's something that will be a
 8   disadvantage to those parishes where these companies
 9   already exist.
10                   And with that, I'll just let you have
11   the rest of my comments.  I don't know if you had any
12   questions of if you even had time to read them.
13               MS. CLAPINSKI:
14                   I did.  I don't have any questions on
15   what your comments state.
16               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
17                   And, I'm sorry.  On 503(j), I know this
18   was brought up in the actual rules committee meeting
19   about the fees if the Board determines you're not
20   meeting the definition of manufacturer or they say, you
21   get to your hearing for your application approval and
22   they decide, "Oh, well, that equipment doesn't count,"
23   you know, your fees are based on what you're submitting
24   and requesting in value to be accepted, and we'd like to
25   see some mechanism that would allow a return of fees for
0009
 1   excluded, of course, keeping, you know, the
 2   administrative fee.  And if there's an appeal process,
 3   what that would be, we'd like to see that spelled out as
 4   well.
 5               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 6                   Rhonda, just one before we leave this,
 7   if you would just articulate a little bit more for me
 8   the parish-to-parish move and no net new -- the concept
 9   typically is the state seeks new investment and new job
10   creation.  How does a lateral move across the parish
11   line qualify for abatement of tax?
12               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
13                   A company is getting ready to do an
14   expansion, they --
15               SECRETARY PIERSON:
16                   It would be with that new component.
17               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
18                   -- may move within a state, and because
19   they could go build a bigger, larger facility as opposed
20   to doing an addition at an older facility, that would be
21   more attractive because they can get the full benefit of
22   a newer, expanded facility as opposed to a partial on
23   the addition.  So there should be some mechanism that
24   allows the parish to work to try to keep those companies
25   that are looking to expand or add additional lines to
0010
 1   their facility within that parish.
 2               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 3                   Okay.
 4               MR. ALLISON:
 5                   I want to mention one thing before we
 6   leave the voir dire comments.
 7                   We did a letter to Industry & Commerce
 8   about some definitions, three definitions, of the term
 9   "jobs".  Two of them deal with the definition of the
10   term "jobs," and they're very important.  The one I want
11   to point out is the one that deals with the definition
12   of the term "manufacturer."  It's a real bedrock concept
13   that is the foundation for much of this program.  This
14   is obviously exemptions that are allowed to
15   manufacturing establishments, and the term
16   "manufacturing establishment" is defined in the
17   constitution, and the rules try to define the term
18   "manufacturing," and so, you know, the language that --
19   actually the words appear three or four times between
20   the rules committee, the Board, et cetera, and what was
21   published.  I think the language ended up with few too
22   many words and some confusing language, and so we have
23   some suggestions there about the language that you've
24   proposed contains the language from the constitution
25   plus some other language, and the additional language is
0011
 1   what we're having a problem with, and right now it would
 2   say that the definition is -- how does it read?  I'm
 3   sorry.  Here we go.
 4                   The definition says -- used the term "by
 5   means of mass production or custom fabrication and
 6   machinery," and some of those words, we think, are
 7   confusing, especially in the order that they read, so
 8   our suggestion would be to change it to "mass or custom
 9   production, machinery or labor to create -- for use," et
10   cetera.  So, anyway, there may be some more discussion
11   today about the definition of manufacturing because it's
12   so important to the program, and I wanted to point out
13   that our comment deals with that same definition.
14               MS. CLAPINSKI:
15                   If I can just point out, Don, I think
16   she knows who you are, but if you do comment again, make
17   sure that you identify yourself again so we have on
18   record who made the comments.
19               SECRETARY PIERSON:
20                   And I also want to be confident that
21   everyone has signed in.  I know a number of you have
22   passed.  As long as we've got a reflection of your
23   presence today, that's important.  Thank you.
24               MR. PATTERSON:
25                   I'm Jim Patterson with the Louisiana
0012
 1   Association of Business and Industry.  I serve as the
 2   director of LABI's Taxation and Finance Council.  I
 3   appreciate the opportunity to speak to you-all about the
 4   rules of the proposed, and I appreciate the
 5   consideration that our comments are going to be given.
 6                   I essentially will stand on my comment,
 7   but I do want to just highlight a few of them as
 8   particular concerns of ours starting with Louisiana
 9   residential requirement.  The feeling in part of many of
10   our members is that this issue was dealt with back in
11   the late 1990s when there was an attempt to install what
12   was commonly known as Rule 1 to require that Louisiana
13   workers be used in construction work in these kinds of
14   projects, and, of course, found Rule 1 to be
15   constitutional already.  I think the issue of defining
16   manufacturing and the problems attended with that has
17   already been sufficiently addressed.
18                   We do believe that some confusion, at
19   least our perception, some confusion made elicit from
20   parts 2, 3 and 5 in Section 503, where there is
21   discussion of the Exhibits A and B and the particular
22   control that will operate with one versus the other.
23   There seems to be a retention of the right of BCI to
24   rule regarding these contracts, but there's also some
25   suggestion that what happens with regard to Exhibit B is
0013
 1   kind of final say as well, and I think that some
 2   clarification may be in order there.
 3                   We still and the general business
 4   community feels that there needs to be some clear
 5   direction as to what resolution is at our disposal if a
 6   particular local entity does not issue the resolution
 7   required under Exhibit B.  This is not anywhere within
 8   the rules found addressed, and we think there needs to
 9   be some clarity there.
10                   And then finally we strongly urge that
11   consideration be given to the forms that you-all
12   routinely utilize for these applications, ensuring that
13   any terms that are utilized on the forms are, in fact,
14   addressed in the rules so that essentially the business
15   people know what's being talked about when we're trying
16   to comply with the requirements.
17                   Again, thank you very much for allowing
18   us the opportunity and for coming in, you know, on the
19   holiday.  Some of us did, but nevertheless, appreciate
20   the fact that you're here, particularly you,
21   Mr. Secretary Pierson.  Thanks.
22               MR. BOWSER:
23                   Greg Bowser, President of Louisiana
24   Chemical Association.  Some brief comments, and I know a
25   number of the guys here will cover the same things that
0014
 1   I'm concerned about.
 2                   The Louisiana Chemical Association
 3   represents 60 chemical manufacturers that operate at 100
 4   different locations throughout the State of Louisiana.
 5   We also represent different suppliers in our chemical
 6   industry alliance, which amounts to over 850 Louisiana
 7   companies, and their particular concern, and I'll
 8   mention what the real concern for them would be, we
 9   understand that these rules are an attempt to comply
10   with the Governor's executive order and the changes to
11   the Industrial Tax Exemption Program.  Our concern is
12   that the changes may make the program so cumbersome to
13   use, it may be a detriment to the economic development,
14   especially to the chemical industry.
15                   One of the big things that you do is you
16   eliminate miscellaneous capital expenditure.  By doing
17   that, it's going to go to some other plant that may have
18   to do upgrades and do some things to be competitive and
19   stay.  We're concerned about that.
20                   The other thing that concerns us when we
21   look at it, there's no consideration for the retention
22   of jobs or contract jobs, and this is why LCI folks are
23   often -- these people are full-time workers.  They may
24   be at one plant today and at another plant next week, so
25   they're full-time workers, and I don't think there's
0015
 1   consideration for any of that, so we would like to see
 2   that done.
 3                   The other thing that concerns us is the
 4   cooperative endeavor agreements.  All of a sudden we are
 5   going to have to go and make those with several
 6   different taxing authorities, and so that's a concern
 7   when you start talking about confidentiality and you
 8   start talking about your public-trade company
 9   information, that has an opportunity to get out and
10   cause you some problems with respect to stock prices and
11   investments.
12                   Under rules, our members are required to
13   negotiate with so many different authorities.  One of
14   the things that concerns us is that unlike any other
15   states, you have to go and negotiate with all of these
16   taxing authorities, and then after you've put all of
17   your information out there under negotiation, you still
18   have to come back to the state and there's a decision
19   made at that point whether or not you'll get the
20   exemption, whether or not what you've offered and what
21   you've negotiated is felt to be fair.  To our knowledge,
22   there is no other state that does that.  That puts us in
23   a very difficult situation for the State of Louisiana
24   from a competitive standpoint.
25                   So I'll stop there.  I'll let the others
0016
 1   make some comments.  I know some are going to have the
 2   same comments, but I'll be glad to provide to you in
 3   writing some of the comments that we have.
 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 5                   And I will point out just to your one
 6   comment, our definition of jobs does allow for contract
 7   labor, so that, at least, is addressed in the rules.
 8               MR. BAKER:
 9                   Danielle, when you say "contract labor,"
10   are you saying the type of contract labor that is at the
11   plant on a constant basis, are you talking about
12   contract labor that I think Mr. Bowser is talking about
13   that is in and out of plants at periods of time, meaning
14   that you've got a project that -- and my point I'm
15   trying to make is on the application, there was
16   construction jobs, for example; okay, well, you may --
17   those construction jobs may be on one project at one
18   particular time, but may -- those same jobs may be on
19   another project at another time, so you have this
20   consistent or continuous, I should say, injection of
21   contract labor going in and out of those plants all of
22   time and that's -- I was listening to your comments, and
23   that's the kind of thing that I think that I believe the
24   rule changes have not really addressed or how it can be
25   very hurtful because of -- you know, it could be some
0017
 1   curtailment of projects because -- and those people are
 2   going to be the ones that are really going to get hurt.
 3               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 4                   My understanding, and, you know,
 5   obviously -- and I should have said this from the
 6   beginning.  All of the these comments will go back to
 7   the Board, the rules committee and the Board.  They have
 8   to make a determination if they're going to choose to
 9   make any changes based upon the comments received.
10   That's not LED.
11                   But my understanding of the Governor's
12   thought was that it would -- he wants to make it a
13   job-creation-type program, so I would say -- and there
14   will be requirements, my understanding, through the CEA
15   with the department and the locals that you maintain a
16   job level.  So, to me, that would indicate that whether
17   it's employed directly or through contract labor, that
18   they would need to be on site at a regular -- maybe not
19   every day, but on some sort of regular basis.  So if
20   that's to your point, then I understand your concern.
21               MR. BOWSER:
22                   Well, the concern further is that --
23   Greg Bowser again -- is that when you say they have to
24   be on site for a particular time, and nobody knows what
25   that is.  Sometimes those guys are there for two months;
0018
 1   sometimes they're there for six months.  We have some
 2   contract employees that's been at some of our plants for
 3   years.
 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 5                   Sure.  And I don't know that it's
 6   necessarily tied to the employees as it is tied to the
 7   job.  So if it's a contract engineer that comes in on
 8   some of these facilities, and that individual person
 9   changes out -- I mean, I know all of our job programs,
10   and I would imagine that when we're looking at jobs for
11   this program as well, that it's going to be the job, not
12   the employee, so that -- and I understand your concerns,
13   but I think the Governor's intent -- and certainly, you
14   know, these comments will all go back and we'll take a
15   look at these in that scope -- was that it would be a
16   job creation program, so I think having that same job
17   potentially count at multiple sites would be
18   problematic.
19               MR. BOWSER:
20                   Danielle, I'll just give one quick
21   example, and, you know, it's from a chemical plant
22   perspective, it's like you're in your automobile, you
23   know, if something is wrong with your car, you take it
24   to a mechanic.  Okay?  You pay that mechanic to do that.
25   Well, that mechanic has a full-time job.  When you
0019
 1   leave, there's other people there that come to that
 2   mechanic, so that's a full-time job.  In the chemical
 3   industry, what happens many times is that, you know,
 4   Plant A may have this going on today and workers come in
 5   and take care of that.  They may be there six months or
 6   sometimes two or three years.  That same employee then
 7   has to go to the plant next door to do the same work, so
 8   that's a full-time job, and we believe under these
 9   circumstances, we don't get credit.  They say that's not
10   a full-time job that's counted.  And that's our concern.
11               MS. CLAPINSKI:
12                   I understand.  Thank you.
13               MR. GOLLEHER:
14                   Brent Golleher, Louisiana Mid-Continent
15   Oil & Gas Association.  Comments were submitted
16   yesterday, and at the appropriate time, I will defer to
17   Jeff and Bob to get more detail on some of the issues
18   that as a property tax committee, we've kind of drawn up
19   and come up with.
20               MS. SIMS:
21                   Phyllis Sims, Kean Miller.  I don't have
22   any comments.
23               MS. LAWRENCE:
24                   Donna Lawrence with Denbury Resources.
25   Observing.
0020
 1               MR. BAKER:
 2                   Joe Baker with Louisiana Mid-Continent
 3   Oil & Gas Association.  I chair the property tax
 4   committee, and thanks for providing some time for us to
 5   make these comments.
 6                   I'm going to defer to Bob in just a
 7   minute, but what I would like to ask is, the question
 8   is, once you receive all of these comments, what's the
 9   mechanics going forward after that for the legal process
10   and how does that work?
11               MS. CLAPINSKI:
12                   Sure.  So generally speaking, this
13   program is a little bit different because the Board
14   itself makes the rules, whereas most of our other
15   programs, it's LED.  All of the written comments, as
16   well as the transcript from this hearing today, will go
17   to the Board, and it will be up to them where they want
18   to start with the rules committee and then -- they have
19   to make a decision on whether any changes are going to
20   be made based upon these comments.  At that point, there
21   will be a determination of whether those changes are
22   substantive or not substantive, if they choose to make
23   some.  Non-substantive changes would not slow down the
24   rules process.  Substantive changes basically starts it
25   over again.  We'd have to issue another Notice of Intent
0021
 1   or a potpourri, but either of those has another public
 2   hearing requirement where we might have to do this all
 3   again.
 4                   If they decide to not make any changes,
 5   then notice would be given to the oversight committees,
 6   which are the commerce committees of the house and the
 7   senate, and they have 30 days to call their own
 8   oversight hearing should they choose to.
 9                   If they do not choose to, then those 30
10   days run and the department can proceed with final
11   promulgation of the rules.  So it really depends from
12   here on what the Board decides to do with the comments
13   they receive.
14               MR. BAKER:
15                   And if the oversight committees were to
16   suggest accepting some of these proposed --
17               MS. CLAPINSKI:
18                   It's an up or down at that point.  It's
19   an approval or non approval of the rules.  And I do
20   believe there may be the opportunity for the Governor to
21   override the oversight committees as well.  So there are
22   a lot of different scenarios on where we could go from
23   here.
24               MR. BAKER:
25                   Understood.  Thank you.
0022
 1               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 2                   No problem.
 3               MR. BAKER:
 4                   So I'm going to defer to Bob.
 5               MS. SIMS:
 6                   Let me ask before we get there.
 7                   Phyllis Sims, for the record.
 8                   Danielle, are these going to the Board
 9   for the February meeting then?
10               MS. CLAPINSKI:
11                   I don't know that.  That is the next
12   regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board.  If they chose
13   to call a meeting prior to then to address it, that is
14   the Board's right, and it would obviously be properly
15   noticed in accordance with open meetings and all of
16   those.
17               MR. BAKER:
18                   Now I'll defer to Bob.
19               MR. ADAIR:
20                   Bob Adair representing Louisiana
21   Mid-Continent Oil & Gas Association and I'm a member of
22   the Property Tax Committee and I will not read into
23   record the letter that we submitted.  I will use it as a
24   guide.
25                   Before I get to that, I thought I would
0023
 1   give you a little perspective of where we're coming
 2   from.  I have significant depth of experience of about
 3   15 states and I've worked in about 25 states, so and I
 4   realize that LED has worked with other -- you compare
 5   other states and how they compete, too.  I also chair
 6   the Project Tax Committee of the Texas Taxpayers and
 7   Research Association, which is the primary tax committee
 8   in Texas -- or tax group in Texas, and also chair the
 9   Tax Relief for Pollution Control Properties with the
10   Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.
11                   Okay.  I'll jump into -- the first point
12   is LMOGA supports LABI's presented testimony and their
13   written submittal, but so we don't want to duplicate
14   what they're doing, but I'll cover some high-level
15   comments.  We acknowledge that the proposed rules are
16   intended to align with the executive orders from the
17   Governor, but I'll also say that -- so our comments are
18   more high-level rather than detailed from LABI.
19                   So the first point, and I won't dwell on
20   this, but for the record, I will mention that
21   environmental grades -- upgrades have, of course, been
22   excluded in the executive orders, and we want to point
23   out that whereas Number 4 said that most -- had
24   misstated that most states do not have this.  Well, in
25   fact, 27 states exempt pollution control property
0024
 1   permanently, and another six, I believe, has a
 2   significant reduction in value.  For example, Illinois,
 3   that I work in, they have, it's like, one and a half
 4   percent of depreciated value is the value on pollution
 5   control, so it's significantly discounted.  Some states
 6   also have a lower tax rate for pollution control.
 7                   In Texas, since -- and I'll discuss
 8   Texas several times because Texas has been brought up in
 9   both the Governor's and other discussions because we're
10   trying to be more like Texas.  So in regarding
11   environmental upgrades, Texas -- the Texas legislature,
12   their intent was basically they do not want to require
13   businesses to pay property taxes to government on top of
14   unfunded mandates by the same government, although there
15   might be a difference in state versus local level, but
16   they intentionally did not want to put that burden on
17   businesses.
18                   The second point that we have concerns
19   about is the process, and I won't go through this -- we
20   have significant questions that remain on how this is
21   going to work out.  A couple people asked about the
22   logistics, how this is going to work, and I know LED is
23   still working it and I've heard different parishes are
24   working how that's going to work, but I do want to
25   observe that, of course, the current process you've got
0025
 1   just the Board of Commerce & Industry and the Governor,
 2   which we call a -- I'll call it a pause or in process,
 3   significant amount of time that it's going to take some
 4   decision.  In the attachment to what we submitted, I
 5   have what we call "stop signs."  That's not intended to
 6   offend anyone.  It's just a recognition that there is
 7   there's more time added to the process it seems in this
 8   process, so that is a concern.  And it's time that's, of
 9   course, significant in management as a review processes
10   or review a project to consider multiple sites, where
11   are they going to build or are they going to build at
12   all.  If the economics don't work out, that project can
13   be shelved, which is very common, so that is a concern.
14               And just for the record that the stop signs,
15   or the pauses, I will say, are now -- or the additional
16   ones are Exhibit A, which is the cooperative endeavor
17   with LED and the local government.  There could be
18   multiple, up to four, depending on if you're in the city
19   limits or not.  And then you've got the Department of
20   Revenue has to issue a letter of no objection or letter
21   of approval, and that's -- before it gets to the process
22   where it was before for the BCI to be reviewed.  So I
23   know you're aware of that.  I just mention that for the
24   record we're concerned about those additional pauses in
25   the process.
0026
 1                   So enough about processes unless we have
 2   questions.  I'll be glad to answer those.
 3                   The next point is competition for
 4   economic development.  I don't have to -- and,
 5   Mr. Pierson, you're much more aware of this than I am.
 6   I see it from a company perspective and throughout my
 7   career.  I've been a business development teams, so I
 8   see it from that perspective, so I realize you're well
 9   aware that there's competition for a very limited
10   capital within a company and also between states,
11   between countries, and as I said earlier, whether it
12   will be built at all.  It has to meet other certain
13   hurdle rate or a certain return.  So all of those items
14   are very important.
15                   The tax foundation makes -- I will not
16   quote their -- I will only reference their comments,
17   which we have in writing here.  They make the point that
18   taxes matter to business.  It's a big -- I've never said
19   that it's the only consideration in site selection, but
20   it is a significant consideration.  It also states do
21   not enact tax changes in a vacuum.  That's kind of a
22   given, too.  Whenever you make significant changes in
23   tax policy, you will -- if you treat something in one
24   place, it's kind of like a balloon that's squeezed,
25   something else pops up somewhere else, so there should
0027
 1   be some concern there.
 2                   And, also, we said for decades, as long
 3   as I've been working with the business associations,
 4   that we've always been very open to working with ITEP as
 5   long as it's considered with the entire tax structure.
 6   So we're a little concerned with the changes in just the
 7   ITEP that can affect business in capital investment
 8   decisions.
 9                   So I'll -- for decades, Louisiana has
10   been successful in using the ITEP, and speaking from
11   someone from Texas, a resident of Texas, and observing
12   people over there in business decisions, it's -- I've
13   been on the other end of it, too, that Louisiana's been
14   successful.  And I met with county judges and others,
15   and even recently.  They're very aware of what you're
16   doing.  And I'm aware that states, even local
17   governments, use not only what you're doing, but what
18   you're considering doing.  We use it against each other,
19   and you're very aware of that.
20                   One last point that I won't dwell on
21   very much, we included a comment on miscellaneous
22   capital additions, and there's a misperception that -- I
23   don't think there's a misperception in Mr. Pierson or
24   Mr. Miller, who is here, because you accurately
25   explained what an MCA is in the last BCI meeting, but we
0028
 1   include that here because the intent of an MCA is never
 2   to try to have a, for example, $60-million project and
 3   divide it by five and say each one of those projects is
 4   an MCA.  That's never the intent.  I've never even heard
 5   of that in all of the years that I've worked with this.
 6   So as the rules state, it is an accumulation of multiple
 7   projects to get to the $5-million level.  So I wish when
 8   we requested the Board to reconsider that -- and I only
 9   bring that up in case the Governor and his
10   representative were actually thinking they put that in
11   executive order because they thought that an MCA is just
12   a division of a big project to circumvent your rules.
13                   With that, we respectfully request you
14   consider the LABI comments that were presented, also the
15   presented comments that we have in more detail here.
16                   So I'll close with that.  Thank you.
17               SECRETARY PIERSON:
18                   As this dialog, anybody that may have
19   passed has something discussed that you feel you want to
20   articulate a little bit more on that topic so that it's
21   fully embedded in our analysis, it's a question to the
22   group and your opportunity to respond before we close
23   out the record today.
24                   (No response.)
25               SECRETARY PIERSON:
0029
 1                   Well, this has been enormously helpful.
 2   I know that you've spent a lot of time with it.
 3   Certainly we appreciate the analysis that's here.  Our
 4   goal is the same as your goal.  It's a vibrant economy
 5   in Louisiana that can only be happening if we are in
 6   concert with business industry providing that certainty
 7   that's necessary for a business to make investments with
 8   confidence.  It's not static.  It is a global
 9   competition.  It is a competition across America for
10   this capital, for these jobs, for these investments.
11   The number of manufacturing jobs over the last 10 years
12   has significantly decreased, 1.4-million fewer
13   manufacturing jobs today than just 10 years ago, so
14   they're very important to us.  We do prioritize this.
15   We do understand that taxation is a very import part of
16   the equation.
17                   So, again, thank you for your thoughtful
18   analysis, the input that you've provided, and we will
19   take that our best to help craft a set of rules that can
20   be navigated by a business with confidence.  And, again,
21   we have to be patient with the process.  There is a lot
22   of new here, and while we are going to have a learning
23   curve to come up, it will be part of my responsibility
24   and the department's responsibility to make sure that
25   this doesn't become a permanent climb up Mount Everest.
0030
 1   We want to do the necessary training, understanding
 2   clarifications so that it is a smooth and streamlined
 3   process.  I believe that it can be.  I know that today
 4   it's different than it was prior to June 24, but I think
 5   over time, once there's these clear understandings in a
 6   now way of doing business, that we'll get to a point
 7   where we're very efficient with it.  That's the goal.
 8   If we don't meet that goal, then I'll ask that you
 9   continue to bring that to my attention so that we can
10   continually improve until we get to that position.
11                   Thank you for your time and attention
12   today.
13                   Danielle, anything else before we close
14   the record?
15               MR. ALLISON:
16                   I have a quick question.
17               SECRETARY PIERSON:
18                   Yes.
19               MR. ALLISON:
20                   It looks like based on what we heard
21   today and received comments from LIDEA, LABI, LCA and
22   LMOGA.  Did you receive any other comments?
23               MS. CLAPINSKI:
24                   I don't think we received any written
25   comments.
0031
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   Well, we still have mail coming in today
 3   that was just delivered to the Board that can be
 4   attached to this before we close out the record, so we
 5   can't probably accurately tell you all of the input that
 6   we've had because of the mail was just delivered.  But
 7   the permanent record will reflect all of the input that
 8   we receive to include the letters from the various
 9   organizations.
10               MS. SIMS:
11                   And, Danielle, we just come to you to
12   get a copy of the permanent record?
13               MS. CLAPINSKI:
14                   Well, it's going to be at least a couple
15   of weeks we have the -- about two weeks --
16               MS. SIMS:
17                   Before we have the transcript?
18               MS. CLAPINSKI:
19                   -- before we have the transcript from
20   the court reporter.
21               MS. SIMS:
22                   But you're the point person to
23   request --
24               MS. CLAPINSKI:
25                   Yes.  If it's a public records request,
0032
 1   technically it's supposed to start in our communications
 2   division, but I'll be the one pulling all of the
 3   records.
 4               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 5                   But we do plan to aggregate the
 6   information and provide it to the Board members, in
 7   particular the chair of the rules committee and the
 8   rules committee so that the input is utilized to its
 9   fullest advantage.
10               MR. ALLISON:
11                   What about those -- are we going to be
12   able to get a copy of the records?
13               SECRETARY PIERSON:
14                   Yes.  It will be public record, and
15   we'll be happy to provide it.  You don't have to ask us
16   for a copy of what we're going to put together for the
17   rules committee.
18               MR. ALLISON:
19                   Do you know at this time if you received
20   more than just the four today?
21               MS. CLAPINSKI:
22                   Mail is delivered, so I have to see
23   what's in the mail.  We've got to separate it and see
24   what's --
25               SECRETARY PIERSON:
0033
 1                   With the holiday and such, I know mail
 2   has been stacking up, and so Danielle hasn't had a
 3   chance to go through all of that to accurately your
 4   question, but we'll be happy to, you know, share all of
 5   the input that we have.
 6               MS. LAWRENCE:
 7                   And, Danielle, I have a question.  Donna
 8   Lawrence from Denbury.  If there are projects in the
 9   pipeline, you know, that a company is looking at, what
10   is the timeline that we're jumping from pre-June to
11   post-June to have rules under which a new -- a company
12   wants to look at a new project?  How do we know where --
13               SECRETARY PIERSON:
14                   You just call LED and we'll assign a
15   project manager and we'll move you forward.  There's no
16   disparity or -- we have a new set of rules, but we know
17   how to follow those.
18               MS. LAWRENCE:
19                   Okay.
20               SECRETARY PIERSON:
21                   And we don't want to do anything that's
22   going to hold up investments.  Let me know, and we'll
23   jump right on it.
24               MS. LAWRENCE:
25                   Thank you.
0034
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   All right.  With no other comments,
 3   meeting adjourned.
 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:44 a.m.)
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
0035
 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:
 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court
 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the
 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of
 5   Commerce and Industry of the Louisiana Economic
 6   Development Corporation, do hereby certify that this
 7   meeting was reported by me in the stenotype reporting
 8   method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my
 9   personal direction and supervision, and is a true and
10   correct transcript to the best of my ability and
11   understanding;
12               That the transcript has been prepared in
13   compliance with transcript format required by statute or
14   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance
15   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as
16   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article
17   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;
18               That I am not related to counsel or to the
19   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the
20   outcome of this matter.
21
     Dated this 13th day of January, 2017.
22
23                               ___________________________
24                                 ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR
25                                 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



		Index		MediaGroup		SourceCase		FirstName		LastName		Date		StartPage		EndPage		LinesPerPage		Complete

		1		BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY, LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - Vol. I.093603_100		PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY OF LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOP 		THE BOARD OF COMMERCE		AND INDUSTRY		12/29/2016		1		35		25		true



		Index		Timecode		TimeStamp		Temp		PageNum		LineNum		NoDisplay		Text		Native		Redact

		1						PG		1		0		false		page 1				false

		2						LN		1		1		false		 1				false

		3						LN		1		2		false		 2				false

		4						LN		1		3		false		 3				false

		5						LN		1		4		false		 4               PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR				false

		6						LN		1		5		false		 5       THE BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY				false

		7						LN		1		6		false		 6                     OF THE				false

		8						LN		1		7		false		 7   LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION				false

		9						LN		1		8		false		 8                     HELD AT				false

		10						LN		1		9		false		 9                LASALLE BUILDING				false

		11						LN		1		10		false		10              617 NORTH 3RD STREET				false

		12						LN		1		11		false		11                  LABELLE ROOM				false

		13						LN		1		12		false		12             BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA				false

		14						LN		1		13		false		13        ON THE 29TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016				false

		15						LN		1		14		false		14            COMMENCING AT 10:04 A.M.				false

		16						LN		1		15		false		15				false

		17						LN		1		16		false		16				false

		18						LN		1		17		false		17				false

		19						LN		1		18		false		18     REPORTED BY:  ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR				false

		20						LN		1		19		false		19				false

		21						LN		1		20		false		20				false

		22						LN		1		21		false		21				false

		23						LN		1		22		false		22				false

		24						LN		1		23		false		23				false

		25						LN		1		24		false		24				false

		26						LN		1		25		false		25				false

		27						PG		2		0		false		page 2				false

		28						LN		2		1		false		 1   Appearances of Board Members Present:				false

		29						LN		2		2		false		 2   Charles R. "Robby" Miller				false

		30						LN		2		3		false		 3				false

		31						LN		2		4		false		 4   Staff members present:				false

		32						LN		2		5		false		 5   Kristen Cheng				false

		33						LN		2		5		false		     Danielle Clapinski				false

		34						LN		2		6		false		 6   Frank Favaloro				false

		35						LN		2		6		false		     Secretary Don Pierson				false

		36						LN		2		7		false		 7				false

		37						LN		2		8		false		 8				false

		38						LN		2		9		false		 9				false

		39						LN		2		10		false		10				false

		40						LN		2		11		false		11				false

		41						LN		2		12		false		12				false

		42						LN		2		13		false		13				false

		43						LN		2		14		false		14				false

		44						LN		2		15		false		15				false

		45						LN		2		16		false		16				false

		46						LN		2		17		false		17				false

		47						LN		2		18		false		18				false

		48						LN		2		19		false		19				false

		49						LN		2		20		false		20				false

		50						LN		2		21		false		21				false

		51						LN		2		22		false		22				false

		52						LN		2		23		false		23				false

		53						LN		2		24		false		24				false

		54						LN		2		25		false		25				false

		55						PG		3		0		false		page 3				false

		56						LN		3		1		false		 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		57						LN		3		2		false		 2                   Thank you, everyone, for your attendance				false

		58						LN		3		3		false		 3   today.  I know that there's been a lot of effort that's				false

		59						LN		3		4		false		 4   gone into preparing your comments that the department				false

		60						LN		3		5		false		 5   will receive today relative to the executive order and				false

		61						LN		3		6		false		 6   the changes for the Industrial Tax Exemption Program, so				false

		62						LN		3		7		false		 7   I know a lot of thought has gone into this.  We				false

		63						LN		3		8		false		 8   appreciate this as constructive, I won't say, dialog,				false

		64						LN		3		9		false		 9   because you're going to provide us input today, and				false

		65						LN		3		10		false		10   Danielle will talk about those rules of engagement.				false

		66						LN		3		11		false		11                   We're not here to debate the merits of				false

		67						LN		3		12		false		12   your suggestions, but certainly we want to convey 100				false

		68						LN		3		13		false		13   percent, A, appreciation of this important input, and				false

		69						LN		3		14		false		14   then, B, give it full consideration as we continue to				false

		70						LN		3		15		false		15   develop the rules on behalf of the Governor and the				false

		71						LN		3		16		false		16   Commerce & Industry Board.				false

		72						LN		3		17		false		17                   So with that, I would like to ask one of				false

		73						LN		3		18		false		18   our C&I Board members, the Tangipahoa Parish President,				false

		74						LN		3		19		false		19   if he would like to make any other additional remarks				false

		75						LN		3		20		false		20               MR. MILLER:				false

		76						LN		3		21		false		21                   I would just echo what Secretary Pierson				false

		77						LN		3		22		false		22   said that we thank you so much and this has been a very				false

		78						LN		3		23		false		23   large effort.  As y'all all know, my comments at the				false

		79						LN		3		24		false		24   beginning of this were the uncertainty is what causes us				false

		80						LN		3		25		false		25   most heartache, and I think we're close to the				false

		81						PG		4		0		false		page 4				false

		82						LN		4		1		false		 1   uncertainty being gone.  You might not like it 100				false

		83						LN		4		2		false		 2   percent, but at least we know what we're dealing with				false

		84						LN		4		3		false		 3   now and we appreciate the effort and hopefully your				false

		85						LN		4		4		false		 4   comments are going to make us even a little bit better				false

		86						LN		4		5		false		 5   in what we put out there.  And as a Board member here,				false

		87						LN		4		6		false		 6   I'll tell you we're anxiously waiting for this so we can				false

		88						LN		4		7		false		 7   get this process continued through and finished.				false

		89						LN		4		8		false		 8               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		90						LN		4		9		false		 9                   And in closing, we did not tactically				false

		91						LN		4		10		false		10   select the brief time period between Christmas and New				false

		92						LN		4		11		false		11   Years.  It's hard to gather an audience, but what we				false

		93						LN		4		12		false		12   were we actually doing is trying to get the speed of				false

		94						LN		4		13		false		13   execution to get the rules established and get business				false

		95						LN		4		14		false		14   back on a field of certainty, so that is just the way				false

		96						LN		4		15		false		15   that the calendar happened to dictate the availability				false

		97						LN		4		16		false		16   and the compliance with the APA and those types of				false

		98						LN		4		17		false		17   things.  So thank you for that, and I will now yield to				false

		99						LN		4		18		false		18   Danielle.				false

		100						LN		4		19		false		19               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		101						LN		4		20		false		20                   Okay.  Good morning.  For those of y'all				false

		102						LN		4		21		false		21   who don't know, I'm Danielle Clapinski, staff attorney				false

		103						LN		4		22		false		22   here at LED.  I have the pleasure, or misfortune,				false

		104						LN		4		23		false		23   depending on the day, of working with the ITEP program.				false

		105						LN		4		24		false		24                   This is the public hearing for the rules				false

		106						LN		4		25		false		25   that were published in the 2016 edition of the register.				false

		107						PG		5		0		false		page 5				false

		108						LN		5		1		false		 1   We do have a court reporter here today, so I would ask				false

		109						LN		5		2		false		 2   that when it's your opportunity to give your comment,				false

		110						LN		5		3		false		 3   please state your name, who you represent and speak --				false

		111						LN		5		4		false		 4   we don't have a microphone, so please speak as loudly				false

		112						LN		5		5		false		 5   without shouting as you can.  I don't think there are				false

		113						LN		5		6		false		 6   too many in here that are soft spoken, so we should be				false

		114						LN		5		7		false		 7   okay.				false

		115						LN		5		8		false		 8                   I don't intend to limit anybody to any				false

		116						LN		5		9		false		 9   set amount of minutes or time at this point in time,				false

		117						LN		5		10		false		10   other than, you know, we do have a good many people here				false

		118						LN		5		11		false		11   that would like to speak, so please be mindful that				false

		119						LN		5		12		false		12   everyone gets an opportunity to speak.  If you have				false

		120						LN		5		13		false		13   submitted written comments, and I've received, I think,				false

		121						LN		5		14		false		14   three or four different versions, please, if you can				false

		122						LN		5		15		false		15   sort of summarize those.  I don't know that we need to				false

		123						LN		5		16		false		16   go through each one because the written comments are				false

		124						LN		5		17		false		17   already part of the record for comments on these rules.				false

		125						LN		5		18		false		18                   At that, whoever -- I don't think				false

		126						LN		5		19		false		19   there's any formalized process on where we start.  We				false

		127						LN		5		20		false		20   can just start on one side and go around if you'd like.				false

		128						LN		5		21		false		21               MR. ZAGOTTI:				false

		129						LN		5		22		false		22                   My name is Matt Zagotti from Director of				false

		130						LN		5		23		false		23   Ryan, LLC.  My main purpose here was to just kind of				false

		131						LN		5		24		false		24   observe and see what's going on next.				false

		132						LN		5		25		false		25               MR. ALLISON:				false

		133						PG		6		0		false		page 6				false

		134						LN		6		1		false		 1                   I'm Don Allison with Advantous				false

		135						LN		6		2		false		 2   Consulting and member of LIDEA Board of Directors, and				false

		136						LN		6		3		false		 3   Rhonda also with LABI.  I think she submitted some				false

		137						LN		6		4		false		 4   comments.  I don't plan to make any, but I'll defer to				false

		138						LN		6		5		false		 5   Rhonda.				false

		139						LN		6		6		false		 6               MS. REAP-CURIEL:				false

		140						LN		6		7		false		 7                   Rhonda Reap-Curiel with CENCOR				false

		141						LN		6		8		false		 8   Consulting representing LIDEA as government legislative				false

		142						LN		6		9		false		 9   committee chair.  I did submit written comments				false

		143						LN		6		10		false		10   yesterday, and I just want to highlight a couple of				false

		144						LN		6		11		false		11   those points.  I know other people around the table				false

		145						LN		6		12		false		12   probably have some similar points or the ones that I				false

		146						LN		6		13		false		13   feel are similar I want to skip over, but when it comes				false

		147						LN		6		14		false		14   to MCA renewals, there's still some confusion out there				false

		148						LN		6		15		false		15   because it appears that even though the second executive				false

		149						LN		6		16		false		16   order provided some clarity on those existing contracts				false

		150						LN		6		17		false		17   with advances that are in renewal state, it does not				false

		151						LN		6		18		false		18   refer to specifically those MCAs which don't have an				false

		152						LN		6		19		false		19   advance tied to them.  So we would like some clarity				false

		153						LN		6		20		false		20   written into the rules so that those companies who may				false

		154						LN		6		21		false		21   not have been attending the meetings to see that the				false

		155						LN		6		22		false		22   last two meetings they've actually been approved,				false

		156						LN		6		23		false		23   understand how they are to be treated and the commitment				false

		157						LN		6		24		false		24   is still there from the State.				false

		158						LN		6		25		false		25                   We have suggested some language to be				false

		159						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		160						LN		7		1		false		 1   added as additional point in that Section 501, and then				false

		161						LN		7		2		false		 2   we also added some additional -- an additional sentence				false

		162						LN		7		3		false		 3   to 501(b) that we would hope you would consider.				false

		163						LN		7		4		false		 4                   And then under 503(d)(2), it's really				false

		164						LN		7		5		false		 5   more questions than comments because there is concern				false

		165						LN		7		6		false		 6   that the local governmental entities that require				false

		166						LN		7		7		false		 7   resolution, there may be difficulty in them actually				false

		167						LN		7		8		false		 8   holding a hearing or getting on the agenda.  If they				false

		168						LN		7		9		false		 9   just choose to ignore you, they have the luxury to do				false

		169						LN		7		10		false		10   that.  There's nothing that requires that side to be				false

		170						LN		7		11		false		11   responsive back to the business.  It seems that the onus				false

		171						LN		7		12		false		12   is all on the business.  They're required to go get				false

		172						LN		7		13		false		13   these things, but there's nothing that says, "Look, the				false

		173						LN		7		14		false		14   government has to be responsive back to them."				false

		174						LN		7		15		false		15                   And that section does only say				false

		175						LN		7		16		false		16   resolutions, and we know the sheriff is a letter, but we				false

		176						LN		7		17		false		17   think that should be plain and written out.				false

		177						LN		7		18		false		18                   And then with 503(e)(2)(a), we'd ask				false

		178						LN		7		19		false		19   that you include "relocation to another parish."  I				false

		179						LN		7		20		false		20   believe Ms. Malone brought that up in the actual				false

		180						LN		7		21		false		21   discussion of the rules at the Board meeting, and if				false

		181						LN		7		22		false		22   you're in the Delta Region or you're in a rural parish,				false

		182						LN		7		23		false		23   it is a challenge sometimes to keep your existing				false

		183						LN		7		24		false		24   industry there, and if this is a tool that we can use to				false

		184						LN		7		25		false		25   keep those companies there and make them just as				false

		185						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		186						LN		8		1		false		 1   efficient and profitable by having them move to a more				false

		187						LN		8		2		false		 2   metro area where maybe there's greater workforce or				false

		188						LN		8		3		false		 3   something of that nature, we would like the ability to				false

		189						LN		8		4		false		 4   do that.  We know that with relocation to another parish				false

		190						LN		8		5		false		 5   within the state there's some limitations, but the				false

		191						LN		8		6		false		 6   limitation doesn't include them getting the full benefit				false

		192						LN		8		7		false		 7   of a new facility, and that's something that will be a				false

		193						LN		8		8		false		 8   disadvantage to those parishes where these companies				false

		194						LN		8		9		false		 9   already exist.				false

		195						LN		8		10		false		10                   And with that, I'll just let you have				false

		196						LN		8		11		false		11   the rest of my comments.  I don't know if you had any				false

		197						LN		8		12		false		12   questions of if you even had time to read them.				false

		198						LN		8		13		false		13               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		199						LN		8		14		false		14                   I did.  I don't have any questions on				false

		200						LN		8		15		false		15   what your comments state.				false

		201						LN		8		16		false		16               MS. REAP-CURIEL:				false

		202						LN		8		17		false		17                   And, I'm sorry.  On 503(j), I know this				false

		203						LN		8		18		false		18   was brought up in the actual rules committee meeting				false

		204						LN		8		19		false		19   about the fees if the Board determines you're not				false

		205						LN		8		20		false		20   meeting the definition of manufacturer or they say, you				false

		206						LN		8		21		false		21   get to your hearing for your application approval and				false

		207						LN		8		22		false		22   they decide, "Oh, well, that equipment doesn't count,"				false

		208						LN		8		23		false		23   you know, your fees are based on what you're submitting				false

		209						LN		8		24		false		24   and requesting in value to be accepted, and we'd like to				false

		210						LN		8		25		false		25   see some mechanism that would allow a return of fees for				false

		211						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		212						LN		9		1		false		 1   excluded, of course, keeping, you know, the				false

		213						LN		9		2		false		 2   administrative fee.  And if there's an appeal process,				false

		214						LN		9		3		false		 3   what that would be, we'd like to see that spelled out as				false

		215						LN		9		4		false		 4   well.				false

		216						LN		9		5		false		 5               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		217						LN		9		6		false		 6                   Rhonda, just one before we leave this,				false

		218						LN		9		7		false		 7   if you would just articulate a little bit more for me				false

		219						LN		9		8		false		 8   the parish-to-parish move and no net new -- the concept				false

		220						LN		9		9		false		 9   typically is the state seeks new investment and new job				false

		221						LN		9		10		false		10   creation.  How does a lateral move across the parish				false

		222						LN		9		11		false		11   line qualify for abatement of tax?				false

		223						LN		9		12		false		12               MS. REAP-CURIEL:				false

		224						LN		9		13		false		13                   A company is getting ready to do an				false

		225						LN		9		14		false		14   expansion, they --				false

		226						LN		9		15		false		15               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		227						LN		9		16		false		16                   It would be with that new component.				false

		228						LN		9		17		false		17               MS. REAP-CURIEL:				false

		229						LN		9		18		false		18                   -- may move within a state, and because				false

		230						LN		9		19		false		19   they could go build a bigger, larger facility as opposed				false

		231						LN		9		20		false		20   to doing an addition at an older facility, that would be				false

		232						LN		9		21		false		21   more attractive because they can get the full benefit of				false

		233						LN		9		22		false		22   a newer, expanded facility as opposed to a partial on				false

		234						LN		9		23		false		23   the addition.  So there should be some mechanism that				false

		235						LN		9		24		false		24   allows the parish to work to try to keep those companies				false

		236						LN		9		25		false		25   that are looking to expand or add additional lines to				false

		237						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		238						LN		10		1		false		 1   their facility within that parish.				false

		239						LN		10		2		false		 2               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		240						LN		10		3		false		 3                   Okay.				false

		241						LN		10		4		false		 4               MR. ALLISON:				false

		242						LN		10		5		false		 5                   I want to mention one thing before we				false

		243						LN		10		6		false		 6   leave the voir dire comments.				false

		244						LN		10		7		false		 7                   We did a letter to Industry & Commerce				false

		245						LN		10		8		false		 8   about some definitions, three definitions, of the term				false

		246						LN		10		9		false		 9   "jobs".  Two of them deal with the definition of the				false

		247						LN		10		10		false		10   term "jobs," and they're very important.  The one I want				false

		248						LN		10		11		false		11   to point out is the one that deals with the definition				false

		249						LN		10		12		false		12   of the term "manufacturer."  It's a real bedrock concept				false

		250						LN		10		13		false		13   that is the foundation for much of this program.  This				false

		251						LN		10		14		false		14   is obviously exemptions that are allowed to				false

		252						LN		10		15		false		15   manufacturing establishments, and the term				false

		253						LN		10		16		false		16   "manufacturing establishment" is defined in the				false

		254						LN		10		17		false		17   constitution, and the rules try to define the term				false

		255						LN		10		18		false		18   "manufacturing," and so, you know, the language that --				false

		256						LN		10		19		false		19   actually the words appear three or four times between				false

		257						LN		10		20		false		20   the rules committee, the Board, et cetera, and what was				false

		258						LN		10		21		false		21   published.  I think the language ended up with few too				false

		259						LN		10		22		false		22   many words and some confusing language, and so we have				false

		260						LN		10		23		false		23   some suggestions there about the language that you've				false

		261						LN		10		24		false		24   proposed contains the language from the constitution				false

		262						LN		10		25		false		25   plus some other language, and the additional language is				false

		263						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		264						LN		11		1		false		 1   what we're having a problem with, and right now it would				false

		265						LN		11		2		false		 2   say that the definition is -- how does it read?  I'm				false

		266						LN		11		3		false		 3   sorry.  Here we go.				false

		267						LN		11		4		false		 4                   The definition says -- used the term "by				false

		268						LN		11		5		false		 5   means of mass production or custom fabrication and				false

		269						LN		11		6		false		 6   machinery," and some of those words, we think, are				false

		270						LN		11		7		false		 7   confusing, especially in the order that they read, so				false

		271						LN		11		8		false		 8   our suggestion would be to change it to "mass or custom				false

		272						LN		11		9		false		 9   production, machinery or labor to create -- for use," et				false

		273						LN		11		10		false		10   cetera.  So, anyway, there may be some more discussion				false

		274						LN		11		11		false		11   today about the definition of manufacturing because it's				false

		275						LN		11		12		false		12   so important to the program, and I wanted to point out				false

		276						LN		11		13		false		13   that our comment deals with that same definition.				false

		277						LN		11		14		false		14               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		278						LN		11		15		false		15                   If I can just point out, Don, I think				false

		279						LN		11		16		false		16   she knows who you are, but if you do comment again, make				false

		280						LN		11		17		false		17   sure that you identify yourself again so we have on				false

		281						LN		11		18		false		18   record who made the comments.				false

		282						LN		11		19		false		19               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		283						LN		11		20		false		20                   And I also want to be confident that				false

		284						LN		11		21		false		21   everyone has signed in.  I know a number of you have				false

		285						LN		11		22		false		22   passed.  As long as we've got a reflection of your				false

		286						LN		11		23		false		23   presence today, that's important.  Thank you.				false

		287						LN		11		24		false		24               MR. PATTERSON:				false

		288						LN		11		25		false		25                   I'm Jim Patterson with the Louisiana				false

		289						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		290						LN		12		1		false		 1   Association of Business and Industry.  I serve as the				false

		291						LN		12		2		false		 2   director of LABI's Taxation and Finance Council.  I				false

		292						LN		12		3		false		 3   appreciate the opportunity to speak to you-all about the				false

		293						LN		12		4		false		 4   rules of the proposed, and I appreciate the				false

		294						LN		12		5		false		 5   consideration that our comments are going to be given.				false

		295						LN		12		6		false		 6                   I essentially will stand on my comment,				false

		296						LN		12		7		false		 7   but I do want to just highlight a few of them as				false

		297						LN		12		8		false		 8   particular concerns of ours starting with Louisiana				false

		298						LN		12		9		false		 9   residential requirement.  The feeling in part of many of				false

		299						LN		12		10		false		10   our members is that this issue was dealt with back in				false

		300						LN		12		11		false		11   the late 1990s when there was an attempt to install what				false

		301						LN		12		12		false		12   was commonly known as Rule 1 to require that Louisiana				false

		302						LN		12		13		false		13   workers be used in construction work in these kinds of				false

		303						LN		12		14		false		14   projects, and, of course, found Rule 1 to be				false

		304						LN		12		15		false		15   constitutional already.  I think the issue of defining				false

		305						LN		12		16		false		16   manufacturing and the problems attended with that has				false

		306						LN		12		17		false		17   already been sufficiently addressed.				false

		307						LN		12		18		false		18                   We do believe that some confusion, at				false

		308						LN		12		19		false		19   least our perception, some confusion made elicit from				false

		309						LN		12		20		false		20   parts 2, 3 and 5 in Section 503, where there is				false

		310						LN		12		21		false		21   discussion of the Exhibits A and B and the particular				false

		311						LN		12		22		false		22   control that will operate with one versus the other.				false

		312						LN		12		23		false		23   There seems to be a retention of the right of BCI to				false

		313						LN		12		24		false		24   rule regarding these contracts, but there's also some				false

		314						LN		12		25		false		25   suggestion that what happens with regard to Exhibit B is				false

		315						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		316						LN		13		1		false		 1   kind of final say as well, and I think that some				false

		317						LN		13		2		false		 2   clarification may be in order there.				false

		318						LN		13		3		false		 3                   We still and the general business				false

		319						LN		13		4		false		 4   community feels that there needs to be some clear				false

		320						LN		13		5		false		 5   direction as to what resolution is at our disposal if a				false

		321						LN		13		6		false		 6   particular local entity does not issue the resolution				false

		322						LN		13		7		false		 7   required under Exhibit B.  This is not anywhere within				false

		323						LN		13		8		false		 8   the rules found addressed, and we think there needs to				false

		324						LN		13		9		false		 9   be some clarity there.				false

		325						LN		13		10		false		10                   And then finally we strongly urge that				false

		326						LN		13		11		false		11   consideration be given to the forms that you-all				false

		327						LN		13		12		false		12   routinely utilize for these applications, ensuring that				false

		328						LN		13		13		false		13   any terms that are utilized on the forms are, in fact,				false

		329						LN		13		14		false		14   addressed in the rules so that essentially the business				false

		330						LN		13		15		false		15   people know what's being talked about when we're trying				false

		331						LN		13		16		false		16   to comply with the requirements.				false

		332						LN		13		17		false		17                   Again, thank you very much for allowing				false

		333						LN		13		18		false		18   us the opportunity and for coming in, you know, on the				false

		334						LN		13		19		false		19   holiday.  Some of us did, but nevertheless, appreciate				false

		335						LN		13		20		false		20   the fact that you're here, particularly you,				false

		336						LN		13		21		false		21   Mr. Secretary Pierson.  Thanks.				false

		337						LN		13		22		false		22               MR. BOWSER:				false

		338						LN		13		23		false		23                   Greg Bowser, President of Louisiana				false

		339						LN		13		24		false		24   Chemical Association.  Some brief comments, and I know a				false

		340						LN		13		25		false		25   number of the guys here will cover the same things that				false

		341						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		342						LN		14		1		false		 1   I'm concerned about.				false

		343						LN		14		2		false		 2                   The Louisiana Chemical Association				false

		344						LN		14		3		false		 3   represents 60 chemical manufacturers that operate at 100				false

		345						LN		14		4		false		 4   different locations throughout the State of Louisiana.				false

		346						LN		14		5		false		 5   We also represent different suppliers in our chemical				false

		347						LN		14		6		false		 6   industry alliance, which amounts to over 850 Louisiana				false

		348						LN		14		7		false		 7   companies, and their particular concern, and I'll				false

		349						LN		14		8		false		 8   mention what the real concern for them would be, we				false

		350						LN		14		9		false		 9   understand that these rules are an attempt to comply				false

		351						LN		14		10		false		10   with the Governor's executive order and the changes to				false

		352						LN		14		11		false		11   the Industrial Tax Exemption Program.  Our concern is				false

		353						LN		14		12		false		12   that the changes may make the program so cumbersome to				false

		354						LN		14		13		false		13   use, it may be a detriment to the economic development,				false

		355						LN		14		14		false		14   especially to the chemical industry.				false

		356						LN		14		15		false		15                   One of the big things that you do is you				false

		357						LN		14		16		false		16   eliminate miscellaneous capital expenditure.  By doing				false

		358						LN		14		17		false		17   that, it's going to go to some other plant that may have				false

		359						LN		14		18		false		18   to do upgrades and do some things to be competitive and				false

		360						LN		14		19		false		19   stay.  We're concerned about that.				false

		361						LN		14		20		false		20                   The other thing that concerns us when we				false

		362						LN		14		21		false		21   look at it, there's no consideration for the retention				false

		363						LN		14		22		false		22   of jobs or contract jobs, and this is why LCI folks are				false

		364						LN		14		23		false		23   often -- these people are full-time workers.  They may				false

		365						LN		14		24		false		24   be at one plant today and at another plant next week, so				false

		366						LN		14		25		false		25   they're full-time workers, and I don't think there's				false

		367						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		368						LN		15		1		false		 1   consideration for any of that, so we would like to see				false

		369						LN		15		2		false		 2   that done.				false

		370						LN		15		3		false		 3                   The other thing that concerns us is the				false

		371						LN		15		4		false		 4   cooperative endeavor agreements.  All of a sudden we are				false

		372						LN		15		5		false		 5   going to have to go and make those with several				false

		373						LN		15		6		false		 6   different taxing authorities, and so that's a concern				false

		374						LN		15		7		false		 7   when you start talking about confidentiality and you				false

		375						LN		15		8		false		 8   start talking about your public-trade company				false

		376						LN		15		9		false		 9   information, that has an opportunity to get out and				false

		377						LN		15		10		false		10   cause you some problems with respect to stock prices and				false

		378						LN		15		11		false		11   investments.				false

		379						LN		15		12		false		12                   Under rules, our members are required to				false

		380						LN		15		13		false		13   negotiate with so many different authorities.  One of				false

		381						LN		15		14		false		14   the things that concerns us is that unlike any other				false

		382						LN		15		15		false		15   states, you have to go and negotiate with all of these				false

		383						LN		15		16		false		16   taxing authorities, and then after you've put all of				false

		384						LN		15		17		false		17   your information out there under negotiation, you still				false

		385						LN		15		18		false		18   have to come back to the state and there's a decision				false

		386						LN		15		19		false		19   made at that point whether or not you'll get the				false

		387						LN		15		20		false		20   exemption, whether or not what you've offered and what				false

		388						LN		15		21		false		21   you've negotiated is felt to be fair.  To our knowledge,				false

		389						LN		15		22		false		22   there is no other state that does that.  That puts us in				false

		390						LN		15		23		false		23   a very difficult situation for the State of Louisiana				false

		391						LN		15		24		false		24   from a competitive standpoint.				false

		392						LN		15		25		false		25                   So I'll stop there.  I'll let the others				false

		393						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		394						LN		16		1		false		 1   make some comments.  I know some are going to have the				false

		395						LN		16		2		false		 2   same comments, but I'll be glad to provide to you in				false

		396						LN		16		3		false		 3   writing some of the comments that we have.				false

		397						LN		16		4		false		 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		398						LN		16		5		false		 5                   And I will point out just to your one				false

		399						LN		16		6		false		 6   comment, our definition of jobs does allow for contract				false

		400						LN		16		7		false		 7   labor, so that, at least, is addressed in the rules.				false

		401						LN		16		8		false		 8               MR. BAKER:				false

		402						LN		16		9		false		 9                   Danielle, when you say "contract labor,"				false

		403						LN		16		10		false		10   are you saying the type of contract labor that is at the				false

		404						LN		16		11		false		11   plant on a constant basis, are you talking about				false

		405						LN		16		12		false		12   contract labor that I think Mr. Bowser is talking about				false

		406						LN		16		13		false		13   that is in and out of plants at periods of time, meaning				false

		407						LN		16		14		false		14   that you've got a project that -- and my point I'm				false

		408						LN		16		15		false		15   trying to make is on the application, there was				false

		409						LN		16		16		false		16   construction jobs, for example; okay, well, you may --				false

		410						LN		16		17		false		17   those construction jobs may be on one project at one				false

		411						LN		16		18		false		18   particular time, but may -- those same jobs may be on				false

		412						LN		16		19		false		19   another project at another time, so you have this				false

		413						LN		16		20		false		20   consistent or continuous, I should say, injection of				false

		414						LN		16		21		false		21   contract labor going in and out of those plants all of				false

		415						LN		16		22		false		22   time and that's -- I was listening to your comments, and				false

		416						LN		16		23		false		23   that's the kind of thing that I think that I believe the				false

		417						LN		16		24		false		24   rule changes have not really addressed or how it can be				false

		418						LN		16		25		false		25   very hurtful because of -- you know, it could be some				false

		419						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		420						LN		17		1		false		 1   curtailment of projects because -- and those people are				false

		421						LN		17		2		false		 2   going to be the ones that are really going to get hurt.				false

		422						LN		17		3		false		 3               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		423						LN		17		4		false		 4                   My understanding, and, you know,				false

		424						LN		17		5		false		 5   obviously -- and I should have said this from the				false

		425						LN		17		6		false		 6   beginning.  All of the these comments will go back to				false

		426						LN		17		7		false		 7   the Board, the rules committee and the Board.  They have				false

		427						LN		17		8		false		 8   to make a determination if they're going to choose to				false

		428						LN		17		9		false		 9   make any changes based upon the comments received.				false

		429						LN		17		10		false		10   That's not LED.				false

		430						LN		17		11		false		11                   But my understanding of the Governor's				false

		431						LN		17		12		false		12   thought was that it would -- he wants to make it a				false

		432						LN		17		13		false		13   job-creation-type program, so I would say -- and there				false

		433						LN		17		14		false		14   will be requirements, my understanding, through the CEA				false

		434						LN		17		15		false		15   with the department and the locals that you maintain a				false

		435						LN		17		16		false		16   job level.  So, to me, that would indicate that whether				false

		436						LN		17		17		false		17   it's employed directly or through contract labor, that				false

		437						LN		17		18		false		18   they would need to be on site at a regular -- maybe not				false

		438						LN		17		19		false		19   every day, but on some sort of regular basis.  So if				false

		439						LN		17		20		false		20   that's to your point, then I understand your concern.				false

		440						LN		17		21		false		21               MR. BOWSER:				false

		441						LN		17		22		false		22                   Well, the concern further is that --				false

		442						LN		17		23		false		23   Greg Bowser again -- is that when you say they have to				false

		443						LN		17		24		false		24   be on site for a particular time, and nobody knows what				false

		444						LN		17		25		false		25   that is.  Sometimes those guys are there for two months;				false

		445						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		446						LN		18		1		false		 1   sometimes they're there for six months.  We have some				false

		447						LN		18		2		false		 2   contract employees that's been at some of our plants for				false

		448						LN		18		3		false		 3   years.				false

		449						LN		18		4		false		 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		450						LN		18		5		false		 5                   Sure.  And I don't know that it's				false

		451						LN		18		6		false		 6   necessarily tied to the employees as it is tied to the				false

		452						LN		18		7		false		 7   job.  So if it's a contract engineer that comes in on				false

		453						LN		18		8		false		 8   some of these facilities, and that individual person				false

		454						LN		18		9		false		 9   changes out -- I mean, I know all of our job programs,				false

		455						LN		18		10		false		10   and I would imagine that when we're looking at jobs for				false

		456						LN		18		11		false		11   this program as well, that it's going to be the job, not				false

		457						LN		18		12		false		12   the employee, so that -- and I understand your concerns,				false

		458						LN		18		13		false		13   but I think the Governor's intent -- and certainly, you				false

		459						LN		18		14		false		14   know, these comments will all go back and we'll take a				false

		460						LN		18		15		false		15   look at these in that scope -- was that it would be a				false

		461						LN		18		16		false		16   job creation program, so I think having that same job				false

		462						LN		18		17		false		17   potentially count at multiple sites would be				false

		463						LN		18		18		false		18   problematic.				false

		464						LN		18		19		false		19               MR. BOWSER:				false

		465						LN		18		20		false		20                   Danielle, I'll just give one quick				false

		466						LN		18		21		false		21   example, and, you know, it's from a chemical plant				false

		467						LN		18		22		false		22   perspective, it's like you're in your automobile, you				false

		468						LN		18		23		false		23   know, if something is wrong with your car, you take it				false

		469						LN		18		24		false		24   to a mechanic.  Okay?  You pay that mechanic to do that.				false

		470						LN		18		25		false		25   Well, that mechanic has a full-time job.  When you				false

		471						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		472						LN		19		1		false		 1   leave, there's other people there that come to that				false

		473						LN		19		2		false		 2   mechanic, so that's a full-time job.  In the chemical				false

		474						LN		19		3		false		 3   industry, what happens many times is that, you know,				false

		475						LN		19		4		false		 4   Plant A may have this going on today and workers come in				false

		476						LN		19		5		false		 5   and take care of that.  They may be there six months or				false

		477						LN		19		6		false		 6   sometimes two or three years.  That same employee then				false

		478						LN		19		7		false		 7   has to go to the plant next door to do the same work, so				false

		479						LN		19		8		false		 8   that's a full-time job, and we believe under these				false

		480						LN		19		9		false		 9   circumstances, we don't get credit.  They say that's not				false

		481						LN		19		10		false		10   a full-time job that's counted.  And that's our concern.				false

		482						LN		19		11		false		11               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		483						LN		19		12		false		12                   I understand.  Thank you.				false

		484						LN		19		13		false		13               MR. GOLLEHER:				false

		485						LN		19		14		false		14                   Brent Golleher, Louisiana Mid-Continent				false

		486						LN		19		15		false		15   Oil & Gas Association.  Comments were submitted				false

		487						LN		19		16		false		16   yesterday, and at the appropriate time, I will defer to				false

		488						LN		19		17		false		17   Jeff and Bob to get more detail on some of the issues				false

		489						LN		19		18		false		18   that as a property tax committee, we've kind of drawn up				false

		490						LN		19		19		false		19   and come up with.				false

		491						LN		19		20		false		20               MS. SIMS:				false

		492						LN		19		21		false		21                   Phyllis Sims, Kean Miller.  I don't have				false

		493						LN		19		22		false		22   any comments.				false

		494						LN		19		23		false		23               MS. LAWRENCE:				false

		495						LN		19		24		false		24                   Donna Lawrence with Denbury Resources.				false

		496						LN		19		25		false		25   Observing.				false

		497						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		498						LN		20		1		false		 1               MR. BAKER:				false

		499						LN		20		2		false		 2                   Joe Baker with Louisiana Mid-Continent				false

		500						LN		20		3		false		 3   Oil & Gas Association.  I chair the property tax				false

		501						LN		20		4		false		 4   committee, and thanks for providing some time for us to				false

		502						LN		20		5		false		 5   make these comments.				false

		503						LN		20		6		false		 6                   I'm going to defer to Bob in just a				false

		504						LN		20		7		false		 7   minute, but what I would like to ask is, the question				false

		505						LN		20		8		false		 8   is, once you receive all of these comments, what's the				false

		506						LN		20		9		false		 9   mechanics going forward after that for the legal process				false

		507						LN		20		10		false		10   and how does that work?				false

		508						LN		20		11		false		11               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		509						LN		20		12		false		12                   Sure.  So generally speaking, this				false

		510						LN		20		13		false		13   program is a little bit different because the Board				false

		511						LN		20		14		false		14   itself makes the rules, whereas most of our other				false

		512						LN		20		15		false		15   programs, it's LED.  All of the written comments, as				false

		513						LN		20		16		false		16   well as the transcript from this hearing today, will go				false

		514						LN		20		17		false		17   to the Board, and it will be up to them where they want				false

		515						LN		20		18		false		18   to start with the rules committee and then -- they have				false

		516						LN		20		19		false		19   to make a decision on whether any changes are going to				false

		517						LN		20		20		false		20   be made based upon these comments.  At that point, there				false

		518						LN		20		21		false		21   will be a determination of whether those changes are				false

		519						LN		20		22		false		22   substantive or not substantive, if they choose to make				false

		520						LN		20		23		false		23   some.  Non-substantive changes would not slow down the				false

		521						LN		20		24		false		24   rules process.  Substantive changes basically starts it				false

		522						LN		20		25		false		25   over again.  We'd have to issue another Notice of Intent				false

		523						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		524						LN		21		1		false		 1   or a potpourri, but either of those has another public				false

		525						LN		21		2		false		 2   hearing requirement where we might have to do this all				false

		526						LN		21		3		false		 3   again.				false

		527						LN		21		4		false		 4                   If they decide to not make any changes,				false

		528						LN		21		5		false		 5   then notice would be given to the oversight committees,				false

		529						LN		21		6		false		 6   which are the commerce committees of the house and the				false

		530						LN		21		7		false		 7   senate, and they have 30 days to call their own				false

		531						LN		21		8		false		 8   oversight hearing should they choose to.				false

		532						LN		21		9		false		 9                   If they do not choose to, then those 30				false

		533						LN		21		10		false		10   days run and the department can proceed with final				false

		534						LN		21		11		false		11   promulgation of the rules.  So it really depends from				false

		535						LN		21		12		false		12   here on what the Board decides to do with the comments				false

		536						LN		21		13		false		13   they receive.				false

		537						LN		21		14		false		14               MR. BAKER:				false

		538						LN		21		15		false		15                   And if the oversight committees were to				false

		539						LN		21		16		false		16   suggest accepting some of these proposed --				false

		540						LN		21		17		false		17               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		541						LN		21		18		false		18                   It's an up or down at that point.  It's				false

		542						LN		21		19		false		19   an approval or non approval of the rules.  And I do				false

		543						LN		21		20		false		20   believe there may be the opportunity for the Governor to				false

		544						LN		21		21		false		21   override the oversight committees as well.  So there are				false

		545						LN		21		22		false		22   a lot of different scenarios on where we could go from				false

		546						LN		21		23		false		23   here.				false

		547						LN		21		24		false		24               MR. BAKER:				false

		548						LN		21		25		false		25                   Understood.  Thank you.				false

		549						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		550						LN		22		1		false		 1               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		551						LN		22		2		false		 2                   No problem.				false

		552						LN		22		3		false		 3               MR. BAKER:				false

		553						LN		22		4		false		 4                   So I'm going to defer to Bob.				false

		554						LN		22		5		false		 5               MS. SIMS:				false

		555						LN		22		6		false		 6                   Let me ask before we get there.				false

		556						LN		22		7		false		 7                   Phyllis Sims, for the record.				false

		557						LN		22		8		false		 8                   Danielle, are these going to the Board				false

		558						LN		22		9		false		 9   for the February meeting then?				false

		559						LN		22		10		false		10               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		560						LN		22		11		false		11                   I don't know that.  That is the next				false

		561						LN		22		12		false		12   regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board.  If they chose				false

		562						LN		22		13		false		13   to call a meeting prior to then to address it, that is				false

		563						LN		22		14		false		14   the Board's right, and it would obviously be properly				false

		564						LN		22		15		false		15   noticed in accordance with open meetings and all of				false

		565						LN		22		16		false		16   those.				false

		566						LN		22		17		false		17               MR. BAKER:				false

		567						LN		22		18		false		18                   Now I'll defer to Bob.				false

		568						LN		22		19		false		19               MR. ADAIR:				false

		569						LN		22		20		false		20                   Bob Adair representing Louisiana				false

		570						LN		22		21		false		21   Mid-Continent Oil & Gas Association and I'm a member of				false

		571						LN		22		22		false		22   the Property Tax Committee and I will not read into				false

		572						LN		22		23		false		23   record the letter that we submitted.  I will use it as a				false

		573						LN		22		24		false		24   guide.				false

		574						LN		22		25		false		25                   Before I get to that, I thought I would				false

		575						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		576						LN		23		1		false		 1   give you a little perspective of where we're coming				false

		577						LN		23		2		false		 2   from.  I have significant depth of experience of about				false

		578						LN		23		3		false		 3   15 states and I've worked in about 25 states, so and I				false

		579						LN		23		4		false		 4   realize that LED has worked with other -- you compare				false

		580						LN		23		5		false		 5   other states and how they compete, too.  I also chair				false

		581						LN		23		6		false		 6   the Project Tax Committee of the Texas Taxpayers and				false

		582						LN		23		7		false		 7   Research Association, which is the primary tax committee				false

		583						LN		23		8		false		 8   in Texas -- or tax group in Texas, and also chair the				false

		584						LN		23		9		false		 9   Tax Relief for Pollution Control Properties with the				false

		585						LN		23		10		false		10   Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.				false

		586						LN		23		11		false		11                   Okay.  I'll jump into -- the first point				false

		587						LN		23		12		false		12   is LMOGA supports LABI's presented testimony and their				false

		588						LN		23		13		false		13   written submittal, but so we don't want to duplicate				false

		589						LN		23		14		false		14   what they're doing, but I'll cover some high-level				false

		590						LN		23		15		false		15   comments.  We acknowledge that the proposed rules are				false

		591						LN		23		16		false		16   intended to align with the executive orders from the				false

		592						LN		23		17		false		17   Governor, but I'll also say that -- so our comments are				false

		593						LN		23		18		false		18   more high-level rather than detailed from LABI.				false

		594						LN		23		19		false		19                   So the first point, and I won't dwell on				false

		595						LN		23		20		false		20   this, but for the record, I will mention that				false

		596						LN		23		21		false		21   environmental grades -- upgrades have, of course, been				false

		597						LN		23		22		false		22   excluded in the executive orders, and we want to point				false

		598						LN		23		23		false		23   out that whereas Number 4 said that most -- had				false

		599						LN		23		24		false		24   misstated that most states do not have this.  Well, in				false

		600						LN		23		25		false		25   fact, 27 states exempt pollution control property				false

		601						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		602						LN		24		1		false		 1   permanently, and another six, I believe, has a				false

		603						LN		24		2		false		 2   significant reduction in value.  For example, Illinois,				false

		604						LN		24		3		false		 3   that I work in, they have, it's like, one and a half				false

		605						LN		24		4		false		 4   percent of depreciated value is the value on pollution				false

		606						LN		24		5		false		 5   control, so it's significantly discounted.  Some states				false

		607						LN		24		6		false		 6   also have a lower tax rate for pollution control.				false

		608						LN		24		7		false		 7                   In Texas, since -- and I'll discuss				false

		609						LN		24		8		false		 8   Texas several times because Texas has been brought up in				false

		610						LN		24		9		false		 9   both the Governor's and other discussions because we're				false

		611						LN		24		10		false		10   trying to be more like Texas.  So in regarding				false

		612						LN		24		11		false		11   environmental upgrades, Texas -- the Texas legislature,				false

		613						LN		24		12		false		12   their intent was basically they do not want to require				false

		614						LN		24		13		false		13   businesses to pay property taxes to government on top of				false

		615						LN		24		14		false		14   unfunded mandates by the same government, although there				false

		616						LN		24		15		false		15   might be a difference in state versus local level, but				false

		617						LN		24		16		false		16   they intentionally did not want to put that burden on				false

		618						LN		24		17		false		17   businesses.				false

		619						LN		24		18		false		18                   The second point that we have concerns				false

		620						LN		24		19		false		19   about is the process, and I won't go through this -- we				false

		621						LN		24		20		false		20   have significant questions that remain on how this is				false

		622						LN		24		21		false		21   going to work out.  A couple people asked about the				false

		623						LN		24		22		false		22   logistics, how this is going to work, and I know LED is				false

		624						LN		24		23		false		23   still working it and I've heard different parishes are				false

		625						LN		24		24		false		24   working how that's going to work, but I do want to				false

		626						LN		24		25		false		25   observe that, of course, the current process you've got				false

		627						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		628						LN		25		1		false		 1   just the Board of Commerce & Industry and the Governor,				false

		629						LN		25		2		false		 2   which we call a -- I'll call it a pause or in process,				false

		630						LN		25		3		false		 3   significant amount of time that it's going to take some				false

		631						LN		25		4		false		 4   decision.  In the attachment to what we submitted, I				false

		632						LN		25		5		false		 5   have what we call "stop signs."  That's not intended to				false

		633						LN		25		6		false		 6   offend anyone.  It's just a recognition that there is				false

		634						LN		25		7		false		 7   there's more time added to the process it seems in this				false

		635						LN		25		8		false		 8   process, so that is a concern.  And it's time that's, of				false

		636						LN		25		9		false		 9   course, significant in management as a review processes				false

		637						LN		25		10		false		10   or review a project to consider multiple sites, where				false

		638						LN		25		11		false		11   are they going to build or are they going to build at				false

		639						LN		25		12		false		12   all.  If the economics don't work out, that project can				false

		640						LN		25		13		false		13   be shelved, which is very common, so that is a concern.				false

		641						LN		25		14		false		14               And just for the record that the stop signs,				false

		642						LN		25		15		false		15   or the pauses, I will say, are now -- or the additional				false

		643						LN		25		16		false		16   ones are Exhibit A, which is the cooperative endeavor				false

		644						LN		25		17		false		17   with LED and the local government.  There could be				false

		645						LN		25		18		false		18   multiple, up to four, depending on if you're in the city				false

		646						LN		25		19		false		19   limits or not.  And then you've got the Department of				false

		647						LN		25		20		false		20   Revenue has to issue a letter of no objection or letter				false

		648						LN		25		21		false		21   of approval, and that's -- before it gets to the process				false

		649						LN		25		22		false		22   where it was before for the BCI to be reviewed.  So I				false

		650						LN		25		23		false		23   know you're aware of that.  I just mention that for the				false

		651						LN		25		24		false		24   record we're concerned about those additional pauses in				false

		652						LN		25		25		false		25   the process.				false

		653						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		654						LN		26		1		false		 1                   So enough about processes unless we have				false

		655						LN		26		2		false		 2   questions.  I'll be glad to answer those.				false

		656						LN		26		3		false		 3                   The next point is competition for				false

		657						LN		26		4		false		 4   economic development.  I don't have to -- and,				false

		658						LN		26		5		false		 5   Mr. Pierson, you're much more aware of this than I am.				false

		659						LN		26		6		false		 6   I see it from a company perspective and throughout my				false

		660						LN		26		7		false		 7   career.  I've been a business development teams, so I				false

		661						LN		26		8		false		 8   see it from that perspective, so I realize you're well				false

		662						LN		26		9		false		 9   aware that there's competition for a very limited				false

		663						LN		26		10		false		10   capital within a company and also between states,				false

		664						LN		26		11		false		11   between countries, and as I said earlier, whether it				false

		665						LN		26		12		false		12   will be built at all.  It has to meet other certain				false

		666						LN		26		13		false		13   hurdle rate or a certain return.  So all of those items				false

		667						LN		26		14		false		14   are very important.				false

		668						LN		26		15		false		15                   The tax foundation makes -- I will not				false

		669						LN		26		16		false		16   quote their -- I will only reference their comments,				false

		670						LN		26		17		false		17   which we have in writing here.  They make the point that				false

		671						LN		26		18		false		18   taxes matter to business.  It's a big -- I've never said				false

		672						LN		26		19		false		19   that it's the only consideration in site selection, but				false

		673						LN		26		20		false		20   it is a significant consideration.  It also states do				false

		674						LN		26		21		false		21   not enact tax changes in a vacuum.  That's kind of a				false

		675						LN		26		22		false		22   given, too.  Whenever you make significant changes in				false

		676						LN		26		23		false		23   tax policy, you will -- if you treat something in one				false

		677						LN		26		24		false		24   place, it's kind of like a balloon that's squeezed,				false

		678						LN		26		25		false		25   something else pops up somewhere else, so there should				false

		679						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		680						LN		27		1		false		 1   be some concern there.				false

		681						LN		27		2		false		 2                   And, also, we said for decades, as long				false

		682						LN		27		3		false		 3   as I've been working with the business associations,				false

		683						LN		27		4		false		 4   that we've always been very open to working with ITEP as				false

		684						LN		27		5		false		 5   long as it's considered with the entire tax structure.				false

		685						LN		27		6		false		 6   So we're a little concerned with the changes in just the				false

		686						LN		27		7		false		 7   ITEP that can affect business in capital investment				false

		687						LN		27		8		false		 8   decisions.				false

		688						LN		27		9		false		 9                   So I'll -- for decades, Louisiana has				false

		689						LN		27		10		false		10   been successful in using the ITEP, and speaking from				false

		690						LN		27		11		false		11   someone from Texas, a resident of Texas, and observing				false

		691						LN		27		12		false		12   people over there in business decisions, it's -- I've				false

		692						LN		27		13		false		13   been on the other end of it, too, that Louisiana's been				false

		693						LN		27		14		false		14   successful.  And I met with county judges and others,				false

		694						LN		27		15		false		15   and even recently.  They're very aware of what you're				false

		695						LN		27		16		false		16   doing.  And I'm aware that states, even local				false

		696						LN		27		17		false		17   governments, use not only what you're doing, but what				false

		697						LN		27		18		false		18   you're considering doing.  We use it against each other,				false

		698						LN		27		19		false		19   and you're very aware of that.				false

		699						LN		27		20		false		20                   One last point that I won't dwell on				false

		700						LN		27		21		false		21   very much, we included a comment on miscellaneous				false

		701						LN		27		22		false		22   capital additions, and there's a misperception that -- I				false

		702						LN		27		23		false		23   don't think there's a misperception in Mr. Pierson or				false

		703						LN		27		24		false		24   Mr. Miller, who is here, because you accurately				false

		704						LN		27		25		false		25   explained what an MCA is in the last BCI meeting, but we				false

		705						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		706						LN		28		1		false		 1   include that here because the intent of an MCA is never				false

		707						LN		28		2		false		 2   to try to have a, for example, $60-million project and				false

		708						LN		28		3		false		 3   divide it by five and say each one of those projects is				false

		709						LN		28		4		false		 4   an MCA.  That's never the intent.  I've never even heard				false

		710						LN		28		5		false		 5   of that in all of the years that I've worked with this.				false

		711						LN		28		6		false		 6   So as the rules state, it is an accumulation of multiple				false

		712						LN		28		7		false		 7   projects to get to the $5-million level.  So I wish when				false

		713						LN		28		8		false		 8   we requested the Board to reconsider that -- and I only				false

		714						LN		28		9		false		 9   bring that up in case the Governor and his				false

		715						LN		28		10		false		10   representative were actually thinking they put that in				false

		716						LN		28		11		false		11   executive order because they thought that an MCA is just				false

		717						LN		28		12		false		12   a division of a big project to circumvent your rules.				false

		718						LN		28		13		false		13                   With that, we respectfully request you				false

		719						LN		28		14		false		14   consider the LABI comments that were presented, also the				false

		720						LN		28		15		false		15   presented comments that we have in more detail here.				false

		721						LN		28		16		false		16                   So I'll close with that.  Thank you.				false

		722						LN		28		17		false		17               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		723						LN		28		18		false		18                   As this dialog, anybody that may have				false

		724						LN		28		19		false		19   passed has something discussed that you feel you want to				false

		725						LN		28		20		false		20   articulate a little bit more on that topic so that it's				false

		726						LN		28		21		false		21   fully embedded in our analysis, it's a question to the				false

		727						LN		28		22		false		22   group and your opportunity to respond before we close				false

		728						LN		28		23		false		23   out the record today.				false

		729						LN		28		24		false		24                   (No response.)				false

		730						LN		28		25		false		25               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		731						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		732						LN		29		1		false		 1                   Well, this has been enormously helpful.				false

		733						LN		29		2		false		 2   I know that you've spent a lot of time with it.				false

		734						LN		29		3		false		 3   Certainly we appreciate the analysis that's here.  Our				false

		735						LN		29		4		false		 4   goal is the same as your goal.  It's a vibrant economy				false

		736						LN		29		5		false		 5   in Louisiana that can only be happening if we are in				false

		737						LN		29		6		false		 6   concert with business industry providing that certainty				false

		738						LN		29		7		false		 7   that's necessary for a business to make investments with				false

		739						LN		29		8		false		 8   confidence.  It's not static.  It is a global				false

		740						LN		29		9		false		 9   competition.  It is a competition across America for				false

		741						LN		29		10		false		10   this capital, for these jobs, for these investments.				false

		742						LN		29		11		false		11   The number of manufacturing jobs over the last 10 years				false

		743						LN		29		12		false		12   has significantly decreased, 1.4-million fewer				false

		744						LN		29		13		false		13   manufacturing jobs today than just 10 years ago, so				false

		745						LN		29		14		false		14   they're very important to us.  We do prioritize this.				false

		746						LN		29		15		false		15   We do understand that taxation is a very import part of				false

		747						LN		29		16		false		16   the equation.				false

		748						LN		29		17		false		17                   So, again, thank you for your thoughtful				false

		749						LN		29		18		false		18   analysis, the input that you've provided, and we will				false

		750						LN		29		19		false		19   take that our best to help craft a set of rules that can				false

		751						LN		29		20		false		20   be navigated by a business with confidence.  And, again,				false

		752						LN		29		21		false		21   we have to be patient with the process.  There is a lot				false

		753						LN		29		22		false		22   of new here, and while we are going to have a learning				false

		754						LN		29		23		false		23   curve to come up, it will be part of my responsibility				false

		755						LN		29		24		false		24   and the department's responsibility to make sure that				false

		756						LN		29		25		false		25   this doesn't become a permanent climb up Mount Everest.				false

		757						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		758						LN		30		1		false		 1   We want to do the necessary training, understanding				false

		759						LN		30		2		false		 2   clarifications so that it is a smooth and streamlined				false

		760						LN		30		3		false		 3   process.  I believe that it can be.  I know that today				false

		761						LN		30		4		false		 4   it's different than it was prior to June 24, but I think				false

		762						LN		30		5		false		 5   over time, once there's these clear understandings in a				false

		763						LN		30		6		false		 6   now way of doing business, that we'll get to a point				false

		764						LN		30		7		false		 7   where we're very efficient with it.  That's the goal.				false

		765						LN		30		8		false		 8   If we don't meet that goal, then I'll ask that you				false

		766						LN		30		9		false		 9   continue to bring that to my attention so that we can				false

		767						LN		30		10		false		10   continually improve until we get to that position.				false

		768						LN		30		11		false		11                   Thank you for your time and attention				false

		769						LN		30		12		false		12   today.				false

		770						LN		30		13		false		13                   Danielle, anything else before we close				false

		771						LN		30		14		false		14   the record?				false

		772						LN		30		15		false		15               MR. ALLISON:				false

		773						LN		30		16		false		16                   I have a quick question.				false

		774						LN		30		17		false		17               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		775						LN		30		18		false		18                   Yes.				false

		776						LN		30		19		false		19               MR. ALLISON:				false

		777						LN		30		20		false		20                   It looks like based on what we heard				false

		778						LN		30		21		false		21   today and received comments from LIDEA, LABI, LCA and				false

		779						LN		30		22		false		22   LMOGA.  Did you receive any other comments?				false

		780						LN		30		23		false		23               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		781						LN		30		24		false		24                   I don't think we received any written				false

		782						LN		30		25		false		25   comments.				false

		783						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		784						LN		31		1		false		 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		785						LN		31		2		false		 2                   Well, we still have mail coming in today				false

		786						LN		31		3		false		 3   that was just delivered to the Board that can be				false

		787						LN		31		4		false		 4   attached to this before we close out the record, so we				false

		788						LN		31		5		false		 5   can't probably accurately tell you all of the input that				false

		789						LN		31		6		false		 6   we've had because of the mail was just delivered.  But				false

		790						LN		31		7		false		 7   the permanent record will reflect all of the input that				false

		791						LN		31		8		false		 8   we receive to include the letters from the various				false

		792						LN		31		9		false		 9   organizations.				false

		793						LN		31		10		false		10               MS. SIMS:				false

		794						LN		31		11		false		11                   And, Danielle, we just come to you to				false

		795						LN		31		12		false		12   get a copy of the permanent record?				false

		796						LN		31		13		false		13               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		797						LN		31		14		false		14                   Well, it's going to be at least a couple				false

		798						LN		31		15		false		15   of weeks we have the -- about two weeks --				false

		799						LN		31		16		false		16               MS. SIMS:				false

		800						LN		31		17		false		17                   Before we have the transcript?				false

		801						LN		31		18		false		18               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		802						LN		31		19		false		19                   -- before we have the transcript from				false

		803						LN		31		20		false		20   the court reporter.				false

		804						LN		31		21		false		21               MS. SIMS:				false

		805						LN		31		22		false		22                   But you're the point person to				false

		806						LN		31		23		false		23   request --				false

		807						LN		31		24		false		24               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		808						LN		31		25		false		25                   Yes.  If it's a public records request,				false

		809						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		810						LN		32		1		false		 1   technically it's supposed to start in our communications				false

		811						LN		32		2		false		 2   division, but I'll be the one pulling all of the				false

		812						LN		32		3		false		 3   records.				false

		813						LN		32		4		false		 4               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		814						LN		32		5		false		 5                   But we do plan to aggregate the				false

		815						LN		32		6		false		 6   information and provide it to the Board members, in				false

		816						LN		32		7		false		 7   particular the chair of the rules committee and the				false

		817						LN		32		8		false		 8   rules committee so that the input is utilized to its				false

		818						LN		32		9		false		 9   fullest advantage.				false

		819						LN		32		10		false		10               MR. ALLISON:				false

		820						LN		32		11		false		11                   What about those -- are we going to be				false

		821						LN		32		12		false		12   able to get a copy of the records?				false

		822						LN		32		13		false		13               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		823						LN		32		14		false		14                   Yes.  It will be public record, and				false

		824						LN		32		15		false		15   we'll be happy to provide it.  You don't have to ask us				false

		825						LN		32		16		false		16   for a copy of what we're going to put together for the				false

		826						LN		32		17		false		17   rules committee.				false

		827						LN		32		18		false		18               MR. ALLISON:				false

		828						LN		32		19		false		19                   Do you know at this time if you received				false

		829						LN		32		20		false		20   more than just the four today?				false

		830						LN		32		21		false		21               MS. CLAPINSKI:				false

		831						LN		32		22		false		22                   Mail is delivered, so I have to see				false

		832						LN		32		23		false		23   what's in the mail.  We've got to separate it and see				false

		833						LN		32		24		false		24   what's --				false

		834						LN		32		25		false		25               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		835						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		836						LN		33		1		false		 1                   With the holiday and such, I know mail				false

		837						LN		33		2		false		 2   has been stacking up, and so Danielle hasn't had a				false

		838						LN		33		3		false		 3   chance to go through all of that to accurately your				false

		839						LN		33		4		false		 4   question, but we'll be happy to, you know, share all of				false

		840						LN		33		5		false		 5   the input that we have.				false

		841						LN		33		6		false		 6               MS. LAWRENCE:				false

		842						LN		33		7		false		 7                   And, Danielle, I have a question.  Donna				false

		843						LN		33		8		false		 8   Lawrence from Denbury.  If there are projects in the				false

		844						LN		33		9		false		 9   pipeline, you know, that a company is looking at, what				false

		845						LN		33		10		false		10   is the timeline that we're jumping from pre-June to				false

		846						LN		33		11		false		11   post-June to have rules under which a new -- a company				false

		847						LN		33		12		false		12   wants to look at a new project?  How do we know where --				false

		848						LN		33		13		false		13               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		849						LN		33		14		false		14                   You just call LED and we'll assign a				false

		850						LN		33		15		false		15   project manager and we'll move you forward.  There's no				false

		851						LN		33		16		false		16   disparity or -- we have a new set of rules, but we know				false

		852						LN		33		17		false		17   how to follow those.				false

		853						LN		33		18		false		18               MS. LAWRENCE:				false

		854						LN		33		19		false		19                   Okay.				false

		855						LN		33		20		false		20               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		856						LN		33		21		false		21                   And we don't want to do anything that's				false

		857						LN		33		22		false		22   going to hold up investments.  Let me know, and we'll				false

		858						LN		33		23		false		23   jump right on it.				false

		859						LN		33		24		false		24               MS. LAWRENCE:				false

		860						LN		33		25		false		25                   Thank you.				false

		861						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		862						LN		34		1		false		 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:				false

		863						LN		34		2		false		 2                   All right.  With no other comments,				false

		864						LN		34		3		false		 3   meeting adjourned.				false

		865						LN		34		4		false		 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:44 a.m.)				false

		866						LN		34		5		false		 5				false

		867						LN		34		6		false		 6				false

		868						LN		34		7		false		 7				false

		869						LN		34		8		false		 8				false

		870						LN		34		9		false		 9				false

		871						LN		34		10		false		10				false

		872						LN		34		11		false		11				false

		873						LN		34		12		false		12				false

		874						LN		34		13		false		13				false

		875						LN		34		14		false		14				false

		876						LN		34		15		false		15				false

		877						LN		34		16		false		16				false

		878						LN		34		17		false		17				false

		879						LN		34		18		false		18				false

		880						LN		34		19		false		19				false

		881						LN		34		20		false		20				false

		882						LN		34		21		false		21				false

		883						LN		34		22		false		22				false

		884						LN		34		23		false		23				false

		885						LN		34		24		false		24				false

		886						LN		34		25		false		25				false

		887						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		888						LN		35		1		false		 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:				false

		889						LN		35		2		false		 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court				false

		890						LN		35		3		false		 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the				false

		891						LN		35		4		false		 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of				false

		892						LN		35		5		false		 5   Commerce and Industry of the Louisiana Economic				false

		893						LN		35		6		false		 6   Development Corporation, do hereby certify that this				false

		894						LN		35		7		false		 7   meeting was reported by me in the stenotype reporting				false

		895						LN		35		8		false		 8   method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my				false

		896						LN		35		9		false		 9   personal direction and supervision, and is a true and				false

		897						LN		35		10		false		10   correct transcript to the best of my ability and				false

		898						LN		35		11		false		11   understanding;				false

		899						LN		35		12		false		12               That the transcript has been prepared in				false

		900						LN		35		13		false		13   compliance with transcript format required by statute or				false

		901						LN		35		14		false		14   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance				false

		902						LN		35		15		false		15   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as				false

		903						LN		35		16		false		16   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article				false

		904						LN		35		17		false		17   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;				false

		905						LN		35		18		false		18               That I am not related to counsel or to the				false

		906						LN		35		19		false		19   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the				false

		907						LN		35		20		false		20   outcome of this matter.				false

		908						LN		35		21		false		21				false

		909						LN		35		21		false		     Dated this 13th day of January, 2017.				false

		910						LN		35		22		false		22				false

		911						LN		35		23		false		23                               ___________________________				false

		912						LN		35		24		false		24                                 ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR				false

		913						LN		35		25		false		25                                 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER				false



		Index		MediaGroup		ID		FullPath		Duration		Offset





0001
 1   
 2   
 3   
 4               PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR
 5       THE BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY
 6                     OF THE
 7   LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
 8                     HELD AT
 9                LASALLE BUILDING
10              617 NORTH 3RD STREET
11                  LABELLE ROOM
12             BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA
13        ON THE 29TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016
14            COMMENCING AT 10:04 A.M.
15   
16   
17   
18     REPORTED BY:  ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR
19   
20   
21   
22   
23   
24   
25   
0002
 1   Appearances of Board Members Present:
 2   Charles R. "Robby" Miller
 3   
 4   Staff members present:
 5   Kristen Cheng
     Danielle Clapinski
 6   Frank Favaloro
     Secretary Don Pierson
 7   
 8   
 9   
10   
11   
12   
13   
14   
15   
16   
17   
18   
19   
20   
21   
22   
23   
24   
25   
0003
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   Thank you, everyone, for your attendance
 3   today.  I know that there's been a lot of effort that's
 4   gone into preparing your comments that the department
 5   will receive today relative to the executive order and
 6   the changes for the Industrial Tax Exemption Program, so
 7   I know a lot of thought has gone into this.  We
 8   appreciate this as constructive, I won't say, dialog,
 9   because you're going to provide us input today, and
10   Danielle will talk about those rules of engagement.
11                   We're not here to debate the merits of
12   your suggestions, but certainly we want to convey 100
13   percent, A, appreciation of this important input, and
14   then, B, give it full consideration as we continue to
15   develop the rules on behalf of the Governor and the
16   Commerce & Industry Board.
17                   So with that, I would like to ask one of
18   our C&I Board members, the Tangipahoa Parish President,
19   if he would like to make any other additional remarks
20               MR. MILLER:
21                   I would just echo what Secretary Pierson
22   said that we thank you so much and this has been a very
23   large effort.  As y'all all know, my comments at the
24   beginning of this were the uncertainty is what causes us
25   most heartache, and I think we're close to the
0004
 1   uncertainty being gone.  You might not like it 100
 2   percent, but at least we know what we're dealing with
 3   now and we appreciate the effort and hopefully your
 4   comments are going to make us even a little bit better
 5   in what we put out there.  And as a Board member here,
 6   I'll tell you we're anxiously waiting for this so we can
 7   get this process continued through and finished.
 8               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 9                   And in closing, we did not tactically
10   select the brief time period between Christmas and New
11   Years.  It's hard to gather an audience, but what we
12   were we actually doing is trying to get the speed of
13   execution to get the rules established and get business
14   back on a field of certainty, so that is just the way
15   that the calendar happened to dictate the availability
16   and the compliance with the APA and those types of
17   things.  So thank you for that, and I will now yield to
18   Danielle.
19               MS. CLAPINSKI:
20                   Okay.  Good morning.  For those of y'all
21   who don't know, I'm Danielle Clapinski, staff attorney
22   here at LED.  I have the pleasure, or misfortune,
23   depending on the day, of working with the ITEP program.
24                   This is the public hearing for the rules
25   that were published in the 2016 edition of the register.
0005
 1   We do have a court reporter here today, so I would ask
 2   that when it's your opportunity to give your comment,
 3   please state your name, who you represent and speak --
 4   we don't have a microphone, so please speak as loudly
 5   without shouting as you can.  I don't think there are
 6   too many in here that are soft spoken, so we should be
 7   okay.
 8                   I don't intend to limit anybody to any
 9   set amount of minutes or time at this point in time,
10   other than, you know, we do have a good many people here
11   that would like to speak, so please be mindful that
12   everyone gets an opportunity to speak.  If you have
13   submitted written comments, and I've received, I think,
14   three or four different versions, please, if you can
15   sort of summarize those.  I don't know that we need to
16   go through each one because the written comments are
17   already part of the record for comments on these rules.
18                   At that, whoever -- I don't think
19   there's any formalized process on where we start.  We
20   can just start on one side and go around if you'd like.
21               MR. ZAGOTTI:
22                   My name is Matt Zagotti from Director of
23   Ryan, LLC.  My main purpose here was to just kind of
24   observe and see what's going on next.
25               MR. ALLISON:
0006
 1                   I'm Don Allison with Advantous
 2   Consulting and member of LIDEA Board of Directors, and
 3   Rhonda also with LABI.  I think she submitted some
 4   comments.  I don't plan to make any, but I'll defer to
 5   Rhonda.
 6               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
 7                   Rhonda Reap-Curiel with CENCOR
 8   Consulting representing LIDEA as government legislative
 9   committee chair.  I did submit written comments
10   yesterday, and I just want to highlight a couple of
11   those points.  I know other people around the table
12   probably have some similar points or the ones that I
13   feel are similar I want to skip over, but when it comes
14   to MCA renewals, there's still some confusion out there
15   because it appears that even though the second executive
16   order provided some clarity on those existing contracts
17   with advances that are in renewal state, it does not
18   refer to specifically those MCAs which don't have an
19   advance tied to them.  So we would like some clarity
20   written into the rules so that those companies who may
21   not have been attending the meetings to see that the
22   last two meetings they've actually been approved,
23   understand how they are to be treated and the commitment
24   is still there from the State.
25                   We have suggested some language to be
0007
 1   added as additional point in that Section 501, and then
 2   we also added some additional -- an additional sentence
 3   to 501(b) that we would hope you would consider.
 4                   And then under 503(d)(2), it's really
 5   more questions than comments because there is concern
 6   that the local governmental entities that require
 7   resolution, there may be difficulty in them actually
 8   holding a hearing or getting on the agenda.  If they
 9   just choose to ignore you, they have the luxury to do
10   that.  There's nothing that requires that side to be
11   responsive back to the business.  It seems that the onus
12   is all on the business.  They're required to go get
13   these things, but there's nothing that says, "Look, the
14   government has to be responsive back to them."
15                   And that section does only say
16   resolutions, and we know the sheriff is a letter, but we
17   think that should be plain and written out.
18                   And then with 503(e)(2)(a), we'd ask
19   that you include "relocation to another parish."  I
20   believe Ms. Malone brought that up in the actual
21   discussion of the rules at the Board meeting, and if
22   you're in the Delta Region or you're in a rural parish,
23   it is a challenge sometimes to keep your existing
24   industry there, and if this is a tool that we can use to
25   keep those companies there and make them just as
0008
 1   efficient and profitable by having them move to a more
 2   metro area where maybe there's greater workforce or
 3   something of that nature, we would like the ability to
 4   do that.  We know that with relocation to another parish
 5   within the state there's some limitations, but the
 6   limitation doesn't include them getting the full benefit
 7   of a new facility, and that's something that will be a
 8   disadvantage to those parishes where these companies
 9   already exist.
10                   And with that, I'll just let you have
11   the rest of my comments.  I don't know if you had any
12   questions of if you even had time to read them.
13               MS. CLAPINSKI:
14                   I did.  I don't have any questions on
15   what your comments state.
16               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
17                   And, I'm sorry.  On 503(j), I know this
18   was brought up in the actual rules committee meeting
19   about the fees if the Board determines you're not
20   meeting the definition of manufacturer or they say, you
21   get to your hearing for your application approval and
22   they decide, "Oh, well, that equipment doesn't count,"
23   you know, your fees are based on what you're submitting
24   and requesting in value to be accepted, and we'd like to
25   see some mechanism that would allow a return of fees for
0009
 1   excluded, of course, keeping, you know, the
 2   administrative fee.  And if there's an appeal process,
 3   what that would be, we'd like to see that spelled out as
 4   well.
 5               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 6                   Rhonda, just one before we leave this,
 7   if you would just articulate a little bit more for me
 8   the parish-to-parish move and no net new -- the concept
 9   typically is the state seeks new investment and new job
10   creation.  How does a lateral move across the parish
11   line qualify for abatement of tax?
12               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
13                   A company is getting ready to do an
14   expansion, they --
15               SECRETARY PIERSON:
16                   It would be with that new component.
17               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
18                   -- may move within a state, and because
19   they could go build a bigger, larger facility as opposed
20   to doing an addition at an older facility, that would be
21   more attractive because they can get the full benefit of
22   a newer, expanded facility as opposed to a partial on
23   the addition.  So there should be some mechanism that
24   allows the parish to work to try to keep those companies
25   that are looking to expand or add additional lines to
0010
 1   their facility within that parish.
 2               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 3                   Okay.
 4               MR. ALLISON:
 5                   I want to mention one thing before we
 6   leave the voir dire comments.
 7                   We did a letter to Industry & Commerce
 8   about some definitions, three definitions, of the term
 9   "jobs".  Two of them deal with the definition of the
10   term "jobs," and they're very important.  The one I want
11   to point out is the one that deals with the definition
12   of the term "manufacturer."  It's a real bedrock concept
13   that is the foundation for much of this program.  This
14   is obviously exemptions that are allowed to
15   manufacturing establishments, and the term
16   "manufacturing establishment" is defined in the
17   constitution, and the rules try to define the term
18   "manufacturing," and so, you know, the language that --
19   actually the words appear three or four times between
20   the rules committee, the Board, et cetera, and what was
21   published.  I think the language ended up with few too
22   many words and some confusing language, and so we have
23   some suggestions there about the language that you've
24   proposed contains the language from the constitution
25   plus some other language, and the additional language is
0011
 1   what we're having a problem with, and right now it would
 2   say that the definition is -- how does it read?  I'm
 3   sorry.  Here we go.
 4                   The definition says -- used the term "by
 5   means of mass production or custom fabrication and
 6   machinery," and some of those words, we think, are
 7   confusing, especially in the order that they read, so
 8   our suggestion would be to change it to "mass or custom
 9   production, machinery or labor to create -- for use," et
10   cetera.  So, anyway, there may be some more discussion
11   today about the definition of manufacturing because it's
12   so important to the program, and I wanted to point out
13   that our comment deals with that same definition.
14               MS. CLAPINSKI:
15                   If I can just point out, Don, I think
16   she knows who you are, but if you do comment again, make
17   sure that you identify yourself again so we have on
18   record who made the comments.
19               SECRETARY PIERSON:
20                   And I also want to be confident that
21   everyone has signed in.  I know a number of you have
22   passed.  As long as we've got a reflection of your
23   presence today, that's important.  Thank you.
24               MR. PATTERSON:
25                   I'm Jim Patterson with the Louisiana
0012
 1   Association of Business and Industry.  I serve as the
 2   director of LABI's Taxation and Finance Council.  I
 3   appreciate the opportunity to speak to you-all about the
 4   rules of the proposed, and I appreciate the
 5   consideration that our comments are going to be given.
 6                   I essentially will stand on my comment,
 7   but I do want to just highlight a few of them as
 8   particular concerns of ours starting with Louisiana
 9   residential requirement.  The feeling in part of many of
10   our members is that this issue was dealt with back in
11   the late 1990s when there was an attempt to install what
12   was commonly known as Rule 1 to require that Louisiana
13   workers be used in construction work in these kinds of
14   projects, and, of course, found Rule 1 to be
15   constitutional already.  I think the issue of defining
16   manufacturing and the problems attended with that has
17   already been sufficiently addressed.
18                   We do believe that some confusion, at
19   least our perception, some confusion made elicit from
20   parts 2, 3 and 5 in Section 503, where there is
21   discussion of the Exhibits A and B and the particular
22   control that will operate with one versus the other.
23   There seems to be a retention of the right of BCI to
24   rule regarding these contracts, but there's also some
25   suggestion that what happens with regard to Exhibit B is
0013
 1   kind of final say as well, and I think that some
 2   clarification may be in order there.
 3                   We still and the general business
 4   community feels that there needs to be some clear
 5   direction as to what resolution is at our disposal if a
 6   particular local entity does not issue the resolution
 7   required under Exhibit B.  This is not anywhere within
 8   the rules found addressed, and we think there needs to
 9   be some clarity there.
10                   And then finally we strongly urge that
11   consideration be given to the forms that you-all
12   routinely utilize for these applications, ensuring that
13   any terms that are utilized on the forms are, in fact,
14   addressed in the rules so that essentially the business
15   people know what's being talked about when we're trying
16   to comply with the requirements.
17                   Again, thank you very much for allowing
18   us the opportunity and for coming in, you know, on the
19   holiday.  Some of us did, but nevertheless, appreciate
20   the fact that you're here, particularly you,
21   Mr. Secretary Pierson.  Thanks.
22               MR. BOWSER:
23                   Greg Bowser, President of Louisiana
24   Chemical Association.  Some brief comments, and I know a
25   number of the guys here will cover the same things that
0014
 1   I'm concerned about.
 2                   The Louisiana Chemical Association
 3   represents 60 chemical manufacturers that operate at 100
 4   different locations throughout the State of Louisiana.
 5   We also represent different suppliers in our chemical
 6   industry alliance, which amounts to over 850 Louisiana
 7   companies, and their particular concern, and I'll
 8   mention what the real concern for them would be, we
 9   understand that these rules are an attempt to comply
10   with the Governor's executive order and the changes to
11   the Industrial Tax Exemption Program.  Our concern is
12   that the changes may make the program so cumbersome to
13   use, it may be a detriment to the economic development,
14   especially to the chemical industry.
15                   One of the big things that you do is you
16   eliminate miscellaneous capital expenditure.  By doing
17   that, it's going to go to some other plant that may have
18   to do upgrades and do some things to be competitive and
19   stay.  We're concerned about that.
20                   The other thing that concerns us when we
21   look at it, there's no consideration for the retention
22   of jobs or contract jobs, and this is why LCI folks are
23   often -- these people are full-time workers.  They may
24   be at one plant today and at another plant next week, so
25   they're full-time workers, and I don't think there's
0015
 1   consideration for any of that, so we would like to see
 2   that done.
 3                   The other thing that concerns us is the
 4   cooperative endeavor agreements.  All of a sudden we are
 5   going to have to go and make those with several
 6   different taxing authorities, and so that's a concern
 7   when you start talking about confidentiality and you
 8   start talking about your public-trade company
 9   information, that has an opportunity to get out and
10   cause you some problems with respect to stock prices and
11   investments.
12                   Under rules, our members are required to
13   negotiate with so many different authorities.  One of
14   the things that concerns us is that unlike any other
15   states, you have to go and negotiate with all of these
16   taxing authorities, and then after you've put all of
17   your information out there under negotiation, you still
18   have to come back to the state and there's a decision
19   made at that point whether or not you'll get the
20   exemption, whether or not what you've offered and what
21   you've negotiated is felt to be fair.  To our knowledge,
22   there is no other state that does that.  That puts us in
23   a very difficult situation for the State of Louisiana
24   from a competitive standpoint.
25                   So I'll stop there.  I'll let the others
0016
 1   make some comments.  I know some are going to have the
 2   same comments, but I'll be glad to provide to you in
 3   writing some of the comments that we have.
 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 5                   And I will point out just to your one
 6   comment, our definition of jobs does allow for contract
 7   labor, so that, at least, is addressed in the rules.
 8               MR. BAKER:
 9                   Danielle, when you say "contract labor,"
10   are you saying the type of contract labor that is at the
11   plant on a constant basis, are you talking about
12   contract labor that I think Mr. Bowser is talking about
13   that is in and out of plants at periods of time, meaning
14   that you've got a project that -- and my point I'm
15   trying to make is on the application, there was
16   construction jobs, for example; okay, well, you may --
17   those construction jobs may be on one project at one
18   particular time, but may -- those same jobs may be on
19   another project at another time, so you have this
20   consistent or continuous, I should say, injection of
21   contract labor going in and out of those plants all of
22   time and that's -- I was listening to your comments, and
23   that's the kind of thing that I think that I believe the
24   rule changes have not really addressed or how it can be
25   very hurtful because of -- you know, it could be some
0017
 1   curtailment of projects because -- and those people are
 2   going to be the ones that are really going to get hurt.
 3               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 4                   My understanding, and, you know,
 5   obviously -- and I should have said this from the
 6   beginning.  All of the these comments will go back to
 7   the Board, the rules committee and the Board.  They have
 8   to make a determination if they're going to choose to
 9   make any changes based upon the comments received.
10   That's not LED.
11                   But my understanding of the Governor's
12   thought was that it would -- he wants to make it a
13   job-creation-type program, so I would say -- and there
14   will be requirements, my understanding, through the CEA
15   with the department and the locals that you maintain a
16   job level.  So, to me, that would indicate that whether
17   it's employed directly or through contract labor, that
18   they would need to be on site at a regular -- maybe not
19   every day, but on some sort of regular basis.  So if
20   that's to your point, then I understand your concern.
21               MR. BOWSER:
22                   Well, the concern further is that --
23   Greg Bowser again -- is that when you say they have to
24   be on site for a particular time, and nobody knows what
25   that is.  Sometimes those guys are there for two months;
0018
 1   sometimes they're there for six months.  We have some
 2   contract employees that's been at some of our plants for
 3   years.
 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 5                   Sure.  And I don't know that it's
 6   necessarily tied to the employees as it is tied to the
 7   job.  So if it's a contract engineer that comes in on
 8   some of these facilities, and that individual person
 9   changes out -- I mean, I know all of our job programs,
10   and I would imagine that when we're looking at jobs for
11   this program as well, that it's going to be the job, not
12   the employee, so that -- and I understand your concerns,
13   but I think the Governor's intent -- and certainly, you
14   know, these comments will all go back and we'll take a
15   look at these in that scope -- was that it would be a
16   job creation program, so I think having that same job
17   potentially count at multiple sites would be
18   problematic.
19               MR. BOWSER:
20                   Danielle, I'll just give one quick
21   example, and, you know, it's from a chemical plant
22   perspective, it's like you're in your automobile, you
23   know, if something is wrong with your car, you take it
24   to a mechanic.  Okay?  You pay that mechanic to do that.
25   Well, that mechanic has a full-time job.  When you
0019
 1   leave, there's other people there that come to that
 2   mechanic, so that's a full-time job.  In the chemical
 3   industry, what happens many times is that, you know,
 4   Plant A may have this going on today and workers come in
 5   and take care of that.  They may be there six months or
 6   sometimes two or three years.  That same employee then
 7   has to go to the plant next door to do the same work, so
 8   that's a full-time job, and we believe under these
 9   circumstances, we don't get credit.  They say that's not
10   a full-time job that's counted.  And that's our concern.
11               MS. CLAPINSKI:
12                   I understand.  Thank you.
13               MR. GOLLEHER:
14                   Brent Golleher, Louisiana Mid-Continent
15   Oil & Gas Association.  Comments were submitted
16   yesterday, and at the appropriate time, I will defer to
17   Jeff and Bob to get more detail on some of the issues
18   that as a property tax committee, we've kind of drawn up
19   and come up with.
20               MS. SIMS:
21                   Phyllis Sims, Kean Miller.  I don't have
22   any comments.
23               MS. LAWRENCE:
24                   Donna Lawrence with Denbury Resources.
25   Observing.
0020
 1               MR. BAKER:
 2                   Joe Baker with Louisiana Mid-Continent
 3   Oil & Gas Association.  I chair the property tax
 4   committee, and thanks for providing some time for us to
 5   make these comments.
 6                   I'm going to defer to Bob in just a
 7   minute, but what I would like to ask is, the question
 8   is, once you receive all of these comments, what's the
 9   mechanics going forward after that for the legal process
10   and how does that work?
11               MS. CLAPINSKI:
12                   Sure.  So generally speaking, this
13   program is a little bit different because the Board
14   itself makes the rules, whereas most of our other
15   programs, it's LED.  All of the written comments, as
16   well as the transcript from this hearing today, will go
17   to the Board, and it will be up to them where they want
18   to start with the rules committee and then -- they have
19   to make a decision on whether any changes are going to
20   be made based upon these comments.  At that point, there
21   will be a determination of whether those changes are
22   substantive or not substantive, if they choose to make
23   some.  Non-substantive changes would not slow down the
24   rules process.  Substantive changes basically starts it
25   over again.  We'd have to issue another Notice of Intent
0021
 1   or a potpourri, but either of those has another public
 2   hearing requirement where we might have to do this all
 3   again.
 4                   If they decide to not make any changes,
 5   then notice would be given to the oversight committees,
 6   which are the commerce committees of the house and the
 7   senate, and they have 30 days to call their own
 8   oversight hearing should they choose to.
 9                   If they do not choose to, then those 30
10   days run and the department can proceed with final
11   promulgation of the rules.  So it really depends from
12   here on what the Board decides to do with the comments
13   they receive.
14               MR. BAKER:
15                   And if the oversight committees were to
16   suggest accepting some of these proposed --
17               MS. CLAPINSKI:
18                   It's an up or down at that point.  It's
19   an approval or non approval of the rules.  And I do
20   believe there may be the opportunity for the Governor to
21   override the oversight committees as well.  So there are
22   a lot of different scenarios on where we could go from
23   here.
24               MR. BAKER:
25                   Understood.  Thank you.
0022
 1               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 2                   No problem.
 3               MR. BAKER:
 4                   So I'm going to defer to Bob.
 5               MS. SIMS:
 6                   Let me ask before we get there.
 7                   Phyllis Sims, for the record.
 8                   Danielle, are these going to the Board
 9   for the February meeting then?
10               MS. CLAPINSKI:
11                   I don't know that.  That is the next
12   regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board.  If they chose
13   to call a meeting prior to then to address it, that is
14   the Board's right, and it would obviously be properly
15   noticed in accordance with open meetings and all of
16   those.
17               MR. BAKER:
18                   Now I'll defer to Bob.
19               MR. ADAIR:
20                   Bob Adair representing Louisiana
21   Mid-Continent Oil & Gas Association and I'm a member of
22   the Property Tax Committee and I will not read into
23   record the letter that we submitted.  I will use it as a
24   guide.
25                   Before I get to that, I thought I would
0023
 1   give you a little perspective of where we're coming
 2   from.  I have significant depth of experience of about
 3   15 states and I've worked in about 25 states, so and I
 4   realize that LED has worked with other -- you compare
 5   other states and how they compete, too.  I also chair
 6   the Project Tax Committee of the Texas Taxpayers and
 7   Research Association, which is the primary tax committee
 8   in Texas -- or tax group in Texas, and also chair the
 9   Tax Relief for Pollution Control Properties with the
10   Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.
11                   Okay.  I'll jump into -- the first point
12   is LMOGA supports LABI's presented testimony and their
13   written submittal, but so we don't want to duplicate
14   what they're doing, but I'll cover some high-level
15   comments.  We acknowledge that the proposed rules are
16   intended to align with the executive orders from the
17   Governor, but I'll also say that -- so our comments are
18   more high-level rather than detailed from LABI.
19                   So the first point, and I won't dwell on
20   this, but for the record, I will mention that
21   environmental grades -- upgrades have, of course, been
22   excluded in the executive orders, and we want to point
23   out that whereas Number 4 said that most -- had
24   misstated that most states do not have this.  Well, in
25   fact, 27 states exempt pollution control property
0024
 1   permanently, and another six, I believe, has a
 2   significant reduction in value.  For example, Illinois,
 3   that I work in, they have, it's like, one and a half
 4   percent of depreciated value is the value on pollution
 5   control, so it's significantly discounted.  Some states
 6   also have a lower tax rate for pollution control.
 7                   In Texas, since -- and I'll discuss
 8   Texas several times because Texas has been brought up in
 9   both the Governor's and other discussions because we're
10   trying to be more like Texas.  So in regarding
11   environmental upgrades, Texas -- the Texas legislature,
12   their intent was basically they do not want to require
13   businesses to pay property taxes to government on top of
14   unfunded mandates by the same government, although there
15   might be a difference in state versus local level, but
16   they intentionally did not want to put that burden on
17   businesses.
18                   The second point that we have concerns
19   about is the process, and I won't go through this -- we
20   have significant questions that remain on how this is
21   going to work out.  A couple people asked about the
22   logistics, how this is going to work, and I know LED is
23   still working it and I've heard different parishes are
24   working how that's going to work, but I do want to
25   observe that, of course, the current process you've got
0025
 1   just the Board of Commerce & Industry and the Governor,
 2   which we call a -- I'll call it a pause or in process,
 3   significant amount of time that it's going to take some
 4   decision.  In the attachment to what we submitted, I
 5   have what we call "stop signs."  That's not intended to
 6   offend anyone.  It's just a recognition that there is
 7   there's more time added to the process it seems in this
 8   process, so that is a concern.  And it's time that's, of
 9   course, significant in management as a review processes
10   or review a project to consider multiple sites, where
11   are they going to build or are they going to build at
12   all.  If the economics don't work out, that project can
13   be shelved, which is very common, so that is a concern.
14               And just for the record that the stop signs,
15   or the pauses, I will say, are now -- or the additional
16   ones are Exhibit A, which is the cooperative endeavor
17   with LED and the local government.  There could be
18   multiple, up to four, depending on if you're in the city
19   limits or not.  And then you've got the Department of
20   Revenue has to issue a letter of no objection or letter
21   of approval, and that's -- before it gets to the process
22   where it was before for the BCI to be reviewed.  So I
23   know you're aware of that.  I just mention that for the
24   record we're concerned about those additional pauses in
25   the process.
0026
 1                   So enough about processes unless we have
 2   questions.  I'll be glad to answer those.
 3                   The next point is competition for
 4   economic development.  I don't have to -- and,
 5   Mr. Pierson, you're much more aware of this than I am.
 6   I see it from a company perspective and throughout my
 7   career.  I've been a business development teams, so I
 8   see it from that perspective, so I realize you're well
 9   aware that there's competition for a very limited
10   capital within a company and also between states,
11   between countries, and as I said earlier, whether it
12   will be built at all.  It has to meet other certain
13   hurdle rate or a certain return.  So all of those items
14   are very important.
15                   The tax foundation makes -- I will not
16   quote their -- I will only reference their comments,
17   which we have in writing here.  They make the point that
18   taxes matter to business.  It's a big -- I've never said
19   that it's the only consideration in site selection, but
20   it is a significant consideration.  It also states do
21   not enact tax changes in a vacuum.  That's kind of a
22   given, too.  Whenever you make significant changes in
23   tax policy, you will -- if you treat something in one
24   place, it's kind of like a balloon that's squeezed,
25   something else pops up somewhere else, so there should
0027
 1   be some concern there.
 2                   And, also, we said for decades, as long
 3   as I've been working with the business associations,
 4   that we've always been very open to working with ITEP as
 5   long as it's considered with the entire tax structure.
 6   So we're a little concerned with the changes in just the
 7   ITEP that can affect business in capital investment
 8   decisions.
 9                   So I'll -- for decades, Louisiana has
10   been successful in using the ITEP, and speaking from
11   someone from Texas, a resident of Texas, and observing
12   people over there in business decisions, it's -- I've
13   been on the other end of it, too, that Louisiana's been
14   successful.  And I met with county judges and others,
15   and even recently.  They're very aware of what you're
16   doing.  And I'm aware that states, even local
17   governments, use not only what you're doing, but what
18   you're considering doing.  We use it against each other,
19   and you're very aware of that.
20                   One last point that I won't dwell on
21   very much, we included a comment on miscellaneous
22   capital additions, and there's a misperception that -- I
23   don't think there's a misperception in Mr. Pierson or
24   Mr. Miller, who is here, because you accurately
25   explained what an MCA is in the last BCI meeting, but we
0028
 1   include that here because the intent of an MCA is never
 2   to try to have a, for example, $60-million project and
 3   divide it by five and say each one of those projects is
 4   an MCA.  That's never the intent.  I've never even heard
 5   of that in all of the years that I've worked with this.
 6   So as the rules state, it is an accumulation of multiple
 7   projects to get to the $5-million level.  So I wish when
 8   we requested the Board to reconsider that -- and I only
 9   bring that up in case the Governor and his
10   representative were actually thinking they put that in
11   executive order because they thought that an MCA is just
12   a division of a big project to circumvent your rules.
13                   With that, we respectfully request you
14   consider the LABI comments that were presented, also the
15   presented comments that we have in more detail here.
16                   So I'll close with that.  Thank you.
17               SECRETARY PIERSON:
18                   As this dialog, anybody that may have
19   passed has something discussed that you feel you want to
20   articulate a little bit more on that topic so that it's
21   fully embedded in our analysis, it's a question to the
22   group and your opportunity to respond before we close
23   out the record today.
24                   (No response.)
25               SECRETARY PIERSON:
0029
 1                   Well, this has been enormously helpful.
 2   I know that you've spent a lot of time with it.
 3   Certainly we appreciate the analysis that's here.  Our
 4   goal is the same as your goal.  It's a vibrant economy
 5   in Louisiana that can only be happening if we are in
 6   concert with business industry providing that certainty
 7   that's necessary for a business to make investments with
 8   confidence.  It's not static.  It is a global
 9   competition.  It is a competition across America for
10   this capital, for these jobs, for these investments.
11   The number of manufacturing jobs over the last 10 years
12   has significantly decreased, 1.4-million fewer
13   manufacturing jobs today than just 10 years ago, so
14   they're very important to us.  We do prioritize this.
15   We do understand that taxation is a very import part of
16   the equation.
17                   So, again, thank you for your thoughtful
18   analysis, the input that you've provided, and we will
19   take that our best to help craft a set of rules that can
20   be navigated by a business with confidence.  And, again,
21   we have to be patient with the process.  There is a lot
22   of new here, and while we are going to have a learning
23   curve to come up, it will be part of my responsibility
24   and the department's responsibility to make sure that
25   this doesn't become a permanent climb up Mount Everest.
0030
 1   We want to do the necessary training, understanding
 2   clarifications so that it is a smooth and streamlined
 3   process.  I believe that it can be.  I know that today
 4   it's different than it was prior to June 24, but I think
 5   over time, once there's these clear understandings in a
 6   now way of doing business, that we'll get to a point
 7   where we're very efficient with it.  That's the goal.
 8   If we don't meet that goal, then I'll ask that you
 9   continue to bring that to my attention so that we can
10   continually improve until we get to that position.
11                   Thank you for your time and attention
12   today.
13                   Danielle, anything else before we close
14   the record?
15               MR. ALLISON:
16                   I have a quick question.
17               SECRETARY PIERSON:
18                   Yes.
19               MR. ALLISON:
20                   It looks like based on what we heard
21   today and received comments from LIDEA, LABI, LCA and
22   LMOGA.  Did you receive any other comments?
23               MS. CLAPINSKI:
24                   I don't think we received any written
25   comments.
0031
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   Well, we still have mail coming in today
 3   that was just delivered to the Board that can be
 4   attached to this before we close out the record, so we
 5   can't probably accurately tell you all of the input that
 6   we've had because of the mail was just delivered.  But
 7   the permanent record will reflect all of the input that
 8   we receive to include the letters from the various
 9   organizations.
10               MS. SIMS:
11                   And, Danielle, we just come to you to
12   get a copy of the permanent record?
13               MS. CLAPINSKI:
14                   Well, it's going to be at least a couple
15   of weeks we have the -- about two weeks --
16               MS. SIMS:
17                   Before we have the transcript?
18               MS. CLAPINSKI:
19                   -- before we have the transcript from
20   the court reporter.
21               MS. SIMS:
22                   But you're the point person to
23   request --
24               MS. CLAPINSKI:
25                   Yes.  If it's a public records request,
0032
 1   technically it's supposed to start in our communications
 2   division, but I'll be the one pulling all of the
 3   records.
 4               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 5                   But we do plan to aggregate the
 6   information and provide it to the Board members, in
 7   particular the chair of the rules committee and the
 8   rules committee so that the input is utilized to its
 9   fullest advantage.
10               MR. ALLISON:
11                   What about those -- are we going to be
12   able to get a copy of the records?
13               SECRETARY PIERSON:
14                   Yes.  It will be public record, and
15   we'll be happy to provide it.  You don't have to ask us
16   for a copy of what we're going to put together for the
17   rules committee.
18               MR. ALLISON:
19                   Do you know at this time if you received
20   more than just the four today?
21               MS. CLAPINSKI:
22                   Mail is delivered, so I have to see
23   what's in the mail.  We've got to separate it and see
24   what's --
25               SECRETARY PIERSON:
0033
 1                   With the holiday and such, I know mail
 2   has been stacking up, and so Danielle hasn't had a
 3   chance to go through all of that to accurately your
 4   question, but we'll be happy to, you know, share all of
 5   the input that we have.
 6               MS. LAWRENCE:
 7                   And, Danielle, I have a question.  Donna
 8   Lawrence from Denbury.  If there are projects in the
 9   pipeline, you know, that a company is looking at, what
10   is the timeline that we're jumping from pre-June to
11   post-June to have rules under which a new -- a company
12   wants to look at a new project?  How do we know where --
13               SECRETARY PIERSON:
14                   You just call LED and we'll assign a
15   project manager and we'll move you forward.  There's no
16   disparity or -- we have a new set of rules, but we know
17   how to follow those.
18               MS. LAWRENCE:
19                   Okay.
20               SECRETARY PIERSON:
21                   And we don't want to do anything that's
22   going to hold up investments.  Let me know, and we'll
23   jump right on it.
24               MS. LAWRENCE:
25                   Thank you.
0034
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   All right.  With no other comments,
 3   meeting adjourned.
 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:44 a.m.)
 5   
 6   
 7   
 8   
 9   
10   
11   
12   
13   
14   
15   
16   
17   
18   
19   
20   
21   
22   
23   
24   
25   
0035
 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:
 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court
 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the
 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of
 5   Commerce and Industry of the Louisiana Economic
 6   Development Corporation, do hereby certify that this
 7   meeting was reported by me in the stenotype reporting
 8   method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my
 9   personal direction and supervision, and is a true and
10   correct transcript to the best of my ability and
11   understanding;
12               That the transcript has been prepared in
13   compliance with transcript format required by statute or
14   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance
15   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as
16   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article
17   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;
18               That I am not related to counsel or to the
19   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the
20   outcome of this matter.
21   
     Dated this 13th day of January, 2017.
22   
23                               ___________________________
24                                 ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR
25                                 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER





·1


·2


·3


·4· · · · · · · ·PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR


·5· · · ·THE BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY


·6· · · · · · · · · · ·OF THE


·7· ·LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION


·8· · · · · · · · · · ·HELD AT


·9· · · · · · · · LASALLE BUILDING


10· · · · · · · 617 NORTH 3RD STREET


11· · · · · · · · · LABELLE ROOM


12· · · · · · ·BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA


13· · · · ON THE 29TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016


14· · · · · · COMMENCING AT 10:04 A.M.


15


16


17


18· · ·REPORTED BY:· ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


Page 2
·1· ·Appearances of Board Members Present:


·2· ·Charles R. "Robby" Miller


·3


·4· ·Staff members present:


·5· ·Kristen Cheng


· · ·Danielle Clapinski


·6· ·Frank Favaloro


· · ·Secretary Don Pierson


·7


·8


·9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


Page 3
·1· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, everyone, for your attendance


·3· ·today.· I know that there's been a lot of effort that's


·4· ·gone into preparing your comments that the department


·5· ·will receive today relative to the executive order and


·6· ·the changes for the Industrial Tax Exemption Program, so


·7· ·I know a lot of thought has gone into this.· We


·8· ·appreciate this as constructive, I won't say, dialog,


·9· ·because you're going to provide us input today, and


10· ·Danielle will talk about those rules of engagement.


11· · · · · · · · · ·We're not here to debate the merits of


12· ·your suggestions, but certainly we want to convey 100


13· ·percent, A, appreciation of this important input, and


14· ·then, B, give it full consideration as we continue to


15· ·develop the rules on behalf of the Governor and the


16· ·Commerce & Industry Board.


17· · · · · · · · · ·So with that, I would like to ask one of


18· ·our C&I Board members, the Tangipahoa Parish President,


19· ·if he would like to make any other additional remarks


20· · · · · · · ·MR. MILLER:


21· · · · · · · · · ·I would just echo what Secretary Pierson


22· ·said that we thank you so much and this has been a very


23· ·large effort.· As y'all all know, my comments at the


24· ·beginning of this were the uncertainty is what causes us


25· ·most heartache, and I think we're close to the


Page 4
·1· ·uncertainty being gone.· You might not like it 100


·2· ·percent, but at least we know what we're dealing with


·3· ·now and we appreciate the effort and hopefully your


·4· ·comments are going to make us even a little bit better


·5· ·in what we put out there.· And as a Board member here,


·6· ·I'll tell you we're anxiously waiting for this so we can


·7· ·get this process continued through and finished.


·8· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·And in closing, we did not tactically


10· ·select the brief time period between Christmas and New


11· ·Years.· It's hard to gather an audience, but what we


12· ·were we actually doing is trying to get the speed of


13· ·execution to get the rules established and get business


14· ·back on a field of certainty, so that is just the way


15· ·that the calendar happened to dictate the availability


16· ·and the compliance with the APA and those types of


17· ·things.· So thank you for that, and I will now yield to


18· ·Danielle.


19· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Good morning.· For those of y'all


21· ·who don't know, I'm Danielle Clapinski, staff attorney


22· ·here at LED.· I have the pleasure, or misfortune,


23· ·depending on the day, of working with the ITEP program.


24· · · · · · · · · ·This is the public hearing for the rules


25· ·that were published in the 2016 edition of the register.



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 5
·1· ·We do have a court reporter here today, so I would ask


·2· ·that when it's your opportunity to give your comment,


·3· ·please state your name, who you represent and speak --


·4· ·we don't have a microphone, so please speak as loudly


·5· ·without shouting as you can.· I don't think there are


·6· ·too many in here that are soft spoken, so we should be


·7· ·okay.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·I don't intend to limit anybody to any


·9· ·set amount of minutes or time at this point in time,


10· ·other than, you know, we do have a good many people here


11· ·that would like to speak, so please be mindful that


12· ·everyone gets an opportunity to speak.· If you have


13· ·submitted written comments, and I've received, I think,


14· ·three or four different versions, please, if you can


15· ·sort of summarize those.· I don't know that we need to


16· ·go through each one because the written comments are


17· ·already part of the record for comments on these rules.


18· · · · · · · · · ·At that, whoever -- I don't think


19· ·there's any formalized process on where we start.· We


20· ·can just start on one side and go around if you'd like.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ZAGOTTI:


22· · · · · · · · · ·My name is Matt Zagotti from Director of


23· ·Ryan, LLC.· My main purpose here was to just kind of


24· ·observe and see what's going on next.


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:


Page 6
·1· · · · · · · · · ·I'm Don Allison with Advantous


·2· ·Consulting and member of LIDEA Board of Directors, and


·3· ·Rhonda also with LABI.· I think she submitted some


·4· ·comments.· I don't plan to make any, but I'll defer to


·5· ·Rhonda.


·6· · · · · · · ·MS. REAP-CURIEL:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Rhonda Reap-Curiel with CENCOR


·8· ·Consulting representing LIDEA as government legislative


·9· ·committee chair.· I did submit written comments


10· ·yesterday, and I just want to highlight a couple of


11· ·those points.· I know other people around the table


12· ·probably have some similar points or the ones that I


13· ·feel are similar I want to skip over, but when it comes


14· ·to MCA renewals, there's still some confusion out there


15· ·because it appears that even though the second executive


16· ·order provided some clarity on those existing contracts


17· ·with advances that are in renewal state, it does not


18· ·refer to specifically those MCAs which don't have an


19· ·advance tied to them.· So we would like some clarity


20· ·written into the rules so that those companies who may


21· ·not have been attending the meetings to see that the


22· ·last two meetings they've actually been approved,


23· ·understand how they are to be treated and the commitment


24· ·is still there from the State.


25· · · · · · · · · ·We have suggested some language to be


Page 7
·1· ·added as additional point in that Section 501, and then


·2· ·we also added some additional -- an additional sentence


·3· ·to 501(b) that we would hope you would consider.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·And then under 503(d)(2), it's really


·5· ·more questions than comments because there is concern


·6· ·that the local governmental entities that require


·7· ·resolution, there may be difficulty in them actually


·8· ·holding a hearing or getting on the agenda.· If they


·9· ·just choose to ignore you, they have the luxury to do


10· ·that.· There's nothing that requires that side to be


11· ·responsive back to the business.· It seems that the onus


12· ·is all on the business.· They're required to go get


13· ·these things, but there's nothing that says, "Look, the


14· ·government has to be responsive back to them."


15· · · · · · · · · ·And that section does only say


16· ·resolutions, and we know the sheriff is a letter, but we


17· ·think that should be plain and written out.


18· · · · · · · · · ·And then with 503(e)(2)(a), we'd ask


19· ·that you include "relocation to another parish."  I


20· ·believe Ms. Malone brought that up in the actual


21· ·discussion of the rules at the Board meeting, and if


22· ·you're in the Delta Region or you're in a rural parish,


23· ·it is a challenge sometimes to keep your existing


24· ·industry there, and if this is a tool that we can use to


25· ·keep those companies there and make them just as


Page 8
·1· ·efficient and profitable by having them move to a more


·2· ·metro area where maybe there's greater workforce or


·3· ·something of that nature, we would like the ability to


·4· ·do that.· We know that with relocation to another parish


·5· ·within the state there's some limitations, but the


·6· ·limitation doesn't include them getting the full benefit


·7· ·of a new facility, and that's something that will be a


·8· ·disadvantage to those parishes where these companies


·9· ·already exist.


10· · · · · · · · · ·And with that, I'll just let you have


11· ·the rest of my comments.· I don't know if you had any


12· ·questions of if you even had time to read them.


13· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


14· · · · · · · · · ·I did.· I don't have any questions on


15· ·what your comments state.


16· · · · · · · ·MS. REAP-CURIEL:


17· · · · · · · · · ·And, I'm sorry.· On 503(j), I know this


18· ·was brought up in the actual rules committee meeting


19· ·about the fees if the Board determines you're not


20· ·meeting the definition of manufacturer or they say, you


21· ·get to your hearing for your application approval and


22· ·they decide, "Oh, well, that equipment doesn't count,"


23· ·you know, your fees are based on what you're submitting


24· ·and requesting in value to be accepted, and we'd like to


25· ·see some mechanism that would allow a return of fees for



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 9
·1· ·excluded, of course, keeping, you know, the


·2· ·administrative fee.· And if there's an appeal process,


·3· ·what that would be, we'd like to see that spelled out as


·4· ·well.


·5· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Rhonda, just one before we leave this,


·7· ·if you would just articulate a little bit more for me


·8· ·the parish-to-parish move and no net new -- the concept


·9· ·typically is the state seeks new investment and new job


10· ·creation.· How does a lateral move across the parish


11· ·line qualify for abatement of tax?


12· · · · · · · ·MS. REAP-CURIEL:


13· · · · · · · · · ·A company is getting ready to do an


14· ·expansion, they --


15· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


16· · · · · · · · · ·It would be with that new component.


17· · · · · · · ·MS. REAP-CURIEL:


18· · · · · · · · · ·-- may move within a state, and because


19· ·they could go build a bigger, larger facility as opposed


20· ·to doing an addition at an older facility, that would be


21· ·more attractive because they can get the full benefit of


22· ·a newer, expanded facility as opposed to a partial on


23· ·the addition.· So there should be some mechanism that


24· ·allows the parish to work to try to keep those companies


25· ·that are looking to expand or add additional lines to


Page 10
·1· ·their facility within that parish.


·2· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·I want to mention one thing before we


·6· ·leave the voir dire comments.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·We did a letter to Industry & Commerce


·8· ·about some definitions, three definitions, of the term


·9· ·"jobs".· Two of them deal with the definition of the


10· ·term "jobs," and they're very important.· The one I want


11· ·to point out is the one that deals with the definition


12· ·of the term "manufacturer."· It's a real bedrock concept


13· ·that is the foundation for much of this program.· This


14· ·is obviously exemptions that are allowed to


15· ·manufacturing establishments, and the term


16· ·"manufacturing establishment" is defined in the


17· ·constitution, and the rules try to define the term


18· ·"manufacturing," and so, you know, the language that --


19· ·actually the words appear three or four times between


20· ·the rules committee, the Board, et cetera, and what was


21· ·published.· I think the language ended up with few too


22· ·many words and some confusing language, and so we have


23· ·some suggestions there about the language that you've


24· ·proposed contains the language from the constitution


25· ·plus some other language, and the additional language is


Page 11
·1· ·what we're having a problem with, and right now it would


·2· ·say that the definition is -- how does it read?· I'm


·3· ·sorry.· Here we go.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·The definition says -- used the term "by


·5· ·means of mass production or custom fabrication and


·6· ·machinery," and some of those words, we think, are


·7· ·confusing, especially in the order that they read, so


·8· ·our suggestion would be to change it to "mass or custom


·9· ·production, machinery or labor to create -- for use," et


10· ·cetera.· So, anyway, there may be some more discussion


11· ·today about the definition of manufacturing because it's


12· ·so important to the program, and I wanted to point out


13· ·that our comment deals with that same definition.


14· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


15· · · · · · · · · ·If I can just point out, Don, I think


16· ·she knows who you are, but if you do comment again, make


17· ·sure that you identify yourself again so we have on


18· ·record who made the comments.


19· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


20· · · · · · · · · ·And I also want to be confident that


21· ·everyone has signed in.· I know a number of you have


22· ·passed.· As long as we've got a reflection of your


23· ·presence today, that's important.· Thank you.


24· · · · · · · ·MR. PATTERSON:


25· · · · · · · · · ·I'm Jim Patterson with the Louisiana


Page 12
·1· ·Association of Business and Industry.· I serve as the


·2· ·director of LABI's Taxation and Finance Council.  I


·3· ·appreciate the opportunity to speak to you-all about the


·4· ·rules of the proposed, and I appreciate the


·5· ·consideration that our comments are going to be given.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·I essentially will stand on my comment,


·7· ·but I do want to just highlight a few of them as


·8· ·particular concerns of ours starting with Louisiana


·9· ·residential requirement.· The feeling in part of many of


10· ·our members is that this issue was dealt with back in


11· ·the late 1990s when there was an attempt to install what


12· ·was commonly known as Rule 1 to require that Louisiana


13· ·workers be used in construction work in these kinds of


14· ·projects, and, of course, found Rule 1 to be


15· ·constitutional already.· I think the issue of defining


16· ·manufacturing and the problems attended with that has


17· ·already been sufficiently addressed.


18· · · · · · · · · ·We do believe that some confusion, at


19· ·least our perception, some confusion made elicit from


20· ·parts 2, 3 and 5 in Section 503, where there is


21· ·discussion of the Exhibits A and B and the particular


22· ·control that will operate with one versus the other.


23· ·There seems to be a retention of the right of BCI to


24· ·rule regarding these contracts, but there's also some


25· ·suggestion that what happens with regard to Exhibit B is



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 13
·1· ·kind of final say as well, and I think that some


·2· ·clarification may be in order there.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·We still and the general business


·4· ·community feels that there needs to be some clear


·5· ·direction as to what resolution is at our disposal if a


·6· ·particular local entity does not issue the resolution


·7· ·required under Exhibit B.· This is not anywhere within


·8· ·the rules found addressed, and we think there needs to


·9· ·be some clarity there.


10· · · · · · · · · ·And then finally we strongly urge that


11· ·consideration be given to the forms that you-all


12· ·routinely utilize for these applications, ensuring that


13· ·any terms that are utilized on the forms are, in fact,


14· ·addressed in the rules so that essentially the business


15· ·people know what's being talked about when we're trying


16· ·to comply with the requirements.


17· · · · · · · · · ·Again, thank you very much for allowing


18· ·us the opportunity and for coming in, you know, on the


19· ·holiday.· Some of us did, but nevertheless, appreciate


20· ·the fact that you're here, particularly you,


21· ·Mr. Secretary Pierson.· Thanks.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. BOWSER:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Greg Bowser, President of Louisiana


24· ·Chemical Association.· Some brief comments, and I know a


25· ·number of the guys here will cover the same things that


Page 14
·1· ·I'm concerned about.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·The Louisiana Chemical Association


·3· ·represents 60 chemical manufacturers that operate at 100


·4· ·different locations throughout the State of Louisiana.


·5· ·We also represent different suppliers in our chemical


·6· ·industry alliance, which amounts to over 850 Louisiana


·7· ·companies, and their particular concern, and I'll


·8· ·mention what the real concern for them would be, we


·9· ·understand that these rules are an attempt to comply


10· ·with the Governor's executive order and the changes to


11· ·the Industrial Tax Exemption Program.· Our concern is


12· ·that the changes may make the program so cumbersome to


13· ·use, it may be a detriment to the economic development,


14· ·especially to the chemical industry.


15· · · · · · · · · ·One of the big things that you do is you


16· ·eliminate miscellaneous capital expenditure.· By doing


17· ·that, it's going to go to some other plant that may have


18· ·to do upgrades and do some things to be competitive and


19· ·stay.· We're concerned about that.


20· · · · · · · · · ·The other thing that concerns us when we


21· ·look at it, there's no consideration for the retention


22· ·of jobs or contract jobs, and this is why LCI folks are


23· ·often -- these people are full-time workers.· They may


24· ·be at one plant today and at another plant next week, so


25· ·they're full-time workers, and I don't think there's


Page 15
·1· ·consideration for any of that, so we would like to see


·2· ·that done.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·The other thing that concerns us is the


·4· ·cooperative endeavor agreements.· All of a sudden we are


·5· ·going to have to go and make those with several


·6· ·different taxing authorities, and so that's a concern


·7· ·when you start talking about confidentiality and you


·8· ·start talking about your public-trade company


·9· ·information, that has an opportunity to get out and


10· ·cause you some problems with respect to stock prices and


11· ·investments.


12· · · · · · · · · ·Under rules, our members are required to


13· ·negotiate with so many different authorities.· One of


14· ·the things that concerns us is that unlike any other


15· ·states, you have to go and negotiate with all of these


16· ·taxing authorities, and then after you've put all of


17· ·your information out there under negotiation, you still


18· ·have to come back to the state and there's a decision


19· ·made at that point whether or not you'll get the


20· ·exemption, whether or not what you've offered and what


21· ·you've negotiated is felt to be fair.· To our knowledge,


22· ·there is no other state that does that.· That puts us in


23· ·a very difficult situation for the State of Louisiana


24· ·from a competitive standpoint.


25· · · · · · · · · ·So I'll stop there.· I'll let the others


Page 16
·1· ·make some comments.· I know some are going to have the


·2· ·same comments, but I'll be glad to provide to you in


·3· ·writing some of the comments that we have.


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·And I will point out just to your one


·6· ·comment, our definition of jobs does allow for contract


·7· ·labor, so that, at least, is addressed in the rules.


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Danielle, when you say "contract labor,"


10· ·are you saying the type of contract labor that is at the


11· ·plant on a constant basis, are you talking about


12· ·contract labor that I think Mr. Bowser is talking about


13· ·that is in and out of plants at periods of time, meaning


14· ·that you've got a project that -- and my point I'm


15· ·trying to make is on the application, there was


16· ·construction jobs, for example; okay, well, you may --


17· ·those construction jobs may be on one project at one


18· ·particular time, but may -- those same jobs may be on


19· ·another project at another time, so you have this


20· ·consistent or continuous, I should say, injection of


21· ·contract labor going in and out of those plants all of


22· ·time and that's -- I was listening to your comments, and


23· ·that's the kind of thing that I think that I believe the


24· ·rule changes have not really addressed or how it can be


25· ·very hurtful because of -- you know, it could be some



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 17
·1· ·curtailment of projects because -- and those people are


·2· ·going to be the ones that are really going to get hurt.


·3· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·My understanding, and, you know,


·5· ·obviously -- and I should have said this from the


·6· ·beginning.· All of the these comments will go back to


·7· ·the Board, the rules committee and the Board.· They have


·8· ·to make a determination if they're going to choose to


·9· ·make any changes based upon the comments received.


10· ·That's not LED.


11· · · · · · · · · ·But my understanding of the Governor's


12· ·thought was that it would -- he wants to make it a


13· ·job-creation-type program, so I would say -- and there


14· ·will be requirements, my understanding, through the CEA


15· ·with the department and the locals that you maintain a


16· ·job level.· So, to me, that would indicate that whether


17· ·it's employed directly or through contract labor, that


18· ·they would need to be on site at a regular -- maybe not


19· ·every day, but on some sort of regular basis.· So if


20· ·that's to your point, then I understand your concern.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. BOWSER:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Well, the concern further is that --


23· ·Greg Bowser again -- is that when you say they have to


24· ·be on site for a particular time, and nobody knows what


25· ·that is.· Sometimes those guys are there for two months;


Page 18
·1· ·sometimes they're there for six months.· We have some


·2· ·contract employees that's been at some of our plants for


·3· ·years.


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Sure.· And I don't know that it's


·6· ·necessarily tied to the employees as it is tied to the


·7· ·job.· So if it's a contract engineer that comes in on


·8· ·some of these facilities, and that individual person


·9· ·changes out -- I mean, I know all of our job programs,


10· ·and I would imagine that when we're looking at jobs for


11· ·this program as well, that it's going to be the job, not


12· ·the employee, so that -- and I understand your concerns,


13· ·but I think the Governor's intent -- and certainly, you


14· ·know, these comments will all go back and we'll take a


15· ·look at these in that scope -- was that it would be a


16· ·job creation program, so I think having that same job


17· ·potentially count at multiple sites would be


18· ·problematic.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. BOWSER:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Danielle, I'll just give one quick


21· ·example, and, you know, it's from a chemical plant


22· ·perspective, it's like you're in your automobile, you


23· ·know, if something is wrong with your car, you take it


24· ·to a mechanic.· Okay?· You pay that mechanic to do that.


25· ·Well, that mechanic has a full-time job.· When you


Page 19
·1· ·leave, there's other people there that come to that


·2· ·mechanic, so that's a full-time job.· In the chemical


·3· ·industry, what happens many times is that, you know,


·4· ·Plant A may have this going on today and workers come in


·5· ·and take care of that.· They may be there six months or


·6· ·sometimes two or three years.· That same employee then


·7· ·has to go to the plant next door to do the same work, so


·8· ·that's a full-time job, and we believe under these


·9· ·circumstances, we don't get credit.· They say that's not


10· ·a full-time job that's counted.· And that's our concern.


11· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


12· · · · · · · · · ·I understand.· Thank you.


13· · · · · · · ·MR. GOLLEHER:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Brent Golleher, Louisiana Mid-Continent


15· ·Oil & Gas Association.· Comments were submitted


16· ·yesterday, and at the appropriate time, I will defer to


17· ·Jeff and Bob to get more detail on some of the issues


18· ·that as a property tax committee, we've kind of drawn up


19· ·and come up with.


20· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Phyllis Sims, Kean Miller.· I don't have


22· ·any comments.


23· · · · · · · ·MS. LAWRENCE:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Donna Lawrence with Denbury Resources.


25· ·Observing.


Page 20
·1· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Joe Baker with Louisiana Mid-Continent


·3· ·Oil & Gas Association.· I chair the property tax


·4· ·committee, and thanks for providing some time for us to


·5· ·make these comments.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·I'm going to defer to Bob in just a


·7· ·minute, but what I would like to ask is, the question


·8· ·is, once you receive all of these comments, what's the


·9· ·mechanics going forward after that for the legal process


10· ·and how does that work?


11· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Sure.· So generally speaking, this


13· ·program is a little bit different because the Board


14· ·itself makes the rules, whereas most of our other


15· ·programs, it's LED.· All of the written comments, as


16· ·well as the transcript from this hearing today, will go


17· ·to the Board, and it will be up to them where they want


18· ·to start with the rules committee and then -- they have


19· ·to make a decision on whether any changes are going to


20· ·be made based upon these comments.· At that point, there


21· ·will be a determination of whether those changes are


22· ·substantive or not substantive, if they choose to make


23· ·some.· Non-substantive changes would not slow down the


24· ·rules process.· Substantive changes basically starts it


25· ·over again.· We'd have to issue another Notice of Intent



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 21
·1· ·or a potpourri, but either of those has another public


·2· ·hearing requirement where we might have to do this all


·3· ·again.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·If they decide to not make any changes,


·5· ·then notice would be given to the oversight committees,


·6· ·which are the commerce committees of the house and the


·7· ·senate, and they have 30 days to call their own


·8· ·oversight hearing should they choose to.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·If they do not choose to, then those 30


10· ·days run and the department can proceed with final


11· ·promulgation of the rules.· So it really depends from


12· ·here on what the Board decides to do with the comments


13· ·they receive.


14· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:


15· · · · · · · · · ·And if the oversight committees were to


16· ·suggest accepting some of these proposed --


17· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


18· · · · · · · · · ·It's an up or down at that point.· It's


19· ·an approval or non approval of the rules.· And I do


20· ·believe there may be the opportunity for the Governor to


21· ·override the oversight committees as well.· So there are


22· ·a lot of different scenarios on where we could go from


23· ·here.


24· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Understood.· Thank you.


Page 22
·1· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·No problem.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·So I'm going to defer to Bob.


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Let me ask before we get there.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Phyllis Sims, for the record.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Danielle, are these going to the Board


·9· ·for the February meeting then?


10· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


11· · · · · · · · · ·I don't know that.· That is the next


12· ·regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board.· If they chose


13· ·to call a meeting prior to then to address it, that is


14· ·the Board's right, and it would obviously be properly


15· ·noticed in accordance with open meetings and all of


16· ·those.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. BAKER:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Now I'll defer to Bob.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ADAIR:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Bob Adair representing Louisiana


21· ·Mid-Continent Oil & Gas Association and I'm a member of


22· ·the Property Tax Committee and I will not read into


23· ·record the letter that we submitted.· I will use it as a


24· ·guide.


25· · · · · · · · · ·Before I get to that, I thought I would


Page 23
·1· ·give you a little perspective of where we're coming


·2· ·from.· I have significant depth of experience of about


·3· ·15 states and I've worked in about 25 states, so and I


·4· ·realize that LED has worked with other -- you compare


·5· ·other states and how they compete, too.· I also chair


·6· ·the Project Tax Committee of the Texas Taxpayers and


·7· ·Research Association, which is the primary tax committee


·8· ·in Texas -- or tax group in Texas, and also chair the


·9· ·Tax Relief for Pollution Control Properties with the


10· ·Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.


11· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· I'll jump into -- the first point


12· ·is LMOGA supports LABI's presented testimony and their


13· ·written submittal, but so we don't want to duplicate


14· ·what they're doing, but I'll cover some high-level


15· ·comments.· We acknowledge that the proposed rules are


16· ·intended to align with the executive orders from the


17· ·Governor, but I'll also say that -- so our comments are


18· ·more high-level rather than detailed from LABI.


19· · · · · · · · · ·So the first point, and I won't dwell on


20· ·this, but for the record, I will mention that


21· ·environmental grades -- upgrades have, of course, been


22· ·excluded in the executive orders, and we want to point


23· ·out that whereas Number 4 said that most -- had


24· ·misstated that most states do not have this.· Well, in


25· ·fact, 27 states exempt pollution control property


Page 24
·1· ·permanently, and another six, I believe, has a


·2· ·significant reduction in value.· For example, Illinois,


·3· ·that I work in, they have, it's like, one and a half


·4· ·percent of depreciated value is the value on pollution


·5· ·control, so it's significantly discounted.· Some states


·6· ·also have a lower tax rate for pollution control.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·In Texas, since -- and I'll discuss


·8· ·Texas several times because Texas has been brought up in


·9· ·both the Governor's and other discussions because we're


10· ·trying to be more like Texas.· So in regarding


11· ·environmental upgrades, Texas -- the Texas legislature,


12· ·their intent was basically they do not want to require


13· ·businesses to pay property taxes to government on top of


14· ·unfunded mandates by the same government, although there


15· ·might be a difference in state versus local level, but


16· ·they intentionally did not want to put that burden on


17· ·businesses.


18· · · · · · · · · ·The second point that we have concerns


19· ·about is the process, and I won't go through this -- we


20· ·have significant questions that remain on how this is


21· ·going to work out.· A couple people asked about the


22· ·logistics, how this is going to work, and I know LED is


23· ·still working it and I've heard different parishes are


24· ·working how that's going to work, but I do want to


25· ·observe that, of course, the current process you've got



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 25
·1· ·just the Board of Commerce & Industry and the Governor,


·2· ·which we call a -- I'll call it a pause or in process,


·3· ·significant amount of time that it's going to take some


·4· ·decision.· In the attachment to what we submitted, I


·5· ·have what we call "stop signs."· That's not intended to


·6· ·offend anyone.· It's just a recognition that there is


·7· ·there's more time added to the process it seems in this


·8· ·process, so that is a concern.· And it's time that's, of


·9· ·course, significant in management as a review processes


10· ·or review a project to consider multiple sites, where


11· ·are they going to build or are they going to build at


12· ·all.· If the economics don't work out, that project can


13· ·be shelved, which is very common, so that is a concern.


14· · · · · · · ·And just for the record that the stop signs,


15· ·or the pauses, I will say, are now -- or the additional


16· ·ones are Exhibit A, which is the cooperative endeavor


17· ·with LED and the local government.· There could be


18· ·multiple, up to four, depending on if you're in the city


19· ·limits or not.· And then you've got the Department of


20· ·Revenue has to issue a letter of no objection or letter


21· ·of approval, and that's -- before it gets to the process


22· ·where it was before for the BCI to be reviewed.· So I


23· ·know you're aware of that.· I just mention that for the


24· ·record we're concerned about those additional pauses in


25· ·the process.


Page 26
·1· · · · · · · · · ·So enough about processes unless we have


·2· ·questions.· I'll be glad to answer those.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·The next point is competition for


·4· ·economic development.· I don't have to -- and,


·5· ·Mr. Pierson, you're much more aware of this than I am.


·6· ·I see it from a company perspective and throughout my


·7· ·career.· I've been a business development teams, so I


·8· ·see it from that perspective, so I realize you're well


·9· ·aware that there's competition for a very limited


10· ·capital within a company and also between states,


11· ·between countries, and as I said earlier, whether it


12· ·will be built at all.· It has to meet other certain


13· ·hurdle rate or a certain return.· So all of those items


14· ·are very important.


15· · · · · · · · · ·The tax foundation makes -- I will not


16· ·quote their -- I will only reference their comments,


17· ·which we have in writing here.· They make the point that


18· ·taxes matter to business.· It's a big -- I've never said


19· ·that it's the only consideration in site selection, but


20· ·it is a significant consideration.· It also states do


21· ·not enact tax changes in a vacuum.· That's kind of a


22· ·given, too.· Whenever you make significant changes in


23· ·tax policy, you will -- if you treat something in one


24· ·place, it's kind of like a balloon that's squeezed,


25· ·something else pops up somewhere else, so there should


Page 27
·1· ·be some concern there.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·And, also, we said for decades, as long


·3· ·as I've been working with the business associations,


·4· ·that we've always been very open to working with ITEP as


·5· ·long as it's considered with the entire tax structure.


·6· ·So we're a little concerned with the changes in just the


·7· ·ITEP that can affect business in capital investment


·8· ·decisions.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·So I'll -- for decades, Louisiana has


10· ·been successful in using the ITEP, and speaking from


11· ·someone from Texas, a resident of Texas, and observing


12· ·people over there in business decisions, it's -- I've


13· ·been on the other end of it, too, that Louisiana's been


14· ·successful.· And I met with county judges and others,


15· ·and even recently.· They're very aware of what you're


16· ·doing.· And I'm aware that states, even local


17· ·governments, use not only what you're doing, but what


18· ·you're considering doing.· We use it against each other,


19· ·and you're very aware of that.


20· · · · · · · · · ·One last point that I won't dwell on


21· ·very much, we included a comment on miscellaneous


22· ·capital additions, and there's a misperception that -- I


23· ·don't think there's a misperception in Mr. Pierson or


24· ·Mr. Miller, who is here, because you accurately


25· ·explained what an MCA is in the last BCI meeting, but we


Page 28
·1· ·include that here because the intent of an MCA is never


·2· ·to try to have a, for example, $60-million project and


·3· ·divide it by five and say each one of those projects is


·4· ·an MCA.· That's never the intent.· I've never even heard


·5· ·of that in all of the years that I've worked with this.


·6· ·So as the rules state, it is an accumulation of multiple


·7· ·projects to get to the $5-million level.· So I wish when


·8· ·we requested the Board to reconsider that -- and I only


·9· ·bring that up in case the Governor and his


10· ·representative were actually thinking they put that in


11· ·executive order because they thought that an MCA is just


12· ·a division of a big project to circumvent your rules.


13· · · · · · · · · ·With that, we respectfully request you


14· ·consider the LABI comments that were presented, also the


15· ·presented comments that we have in more detail here.


16· · · · · · · · · ·So I'll close with that.· Thank you.


17· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


18· · · · · · · · · ·As this dialog, anybody that may have


19· ·passed has something discussed that you feel you want to


20· ·articulate a little bit more on that topic so that it's


21· ·fully embedded in our analysis, it's a question to the


22· ·group and your opportunity to respond before we close


23· ·out the record today.


24· · · · · · · · · ·(No response.)


25· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 29
·1· · · · · · · · · ·Well, this has been enormously helpful.


·2· ·I know that you've spent a lot of time with it.


·3· ·Certainly we appreciate the analysis that's here.· Our


·4· ·goal is the same as your goal.· It's a vibrant economy


·5· ·in Louisiana that can only be happening if we are in


·6· ·concert with business industry providing that certainty


·7· ·that's necessary for a business to make investments with


·8· ·confidence.· It's not static.· It is a global


·9· ·competition.· It is a competition across America for


10· ·this capital, for these jobs, for these investments.


11· ·The number of manufacturing jobs over the last 10 years


12· ·has significantly decreased, 1.4-million fewer


13· ·manufacturing jobs today than just 10 years ago, so


14· ·they're very important to us.· We do prioritize this.


15· ·We do understand that taxation is a very import part of


16· ·the equation.


17· · · · · · · · · ·So, again, thank you for your thoughtful


18· ·analysis, the input that you've provided, and we will


19· ·take that our best to help craft a set of rules that can


20· ·be navigated by a business with confidence.· And, again,


21· ·we have to be patient with the process.· There is a lot


22· ·of new here, and while we are going to have a learning


23· ·curve to come up, it will be part of my responsibility


24· ·and the department's responsibility to make sure that


25· ·this doesn't become a permanent climb up Mount Everest.


Page 30
·1· ·We want to do the necessary training, understanding


·2· ·clarifications so that it is a smooth and streamlined


·3· ·process.· I believe that it can be.· I know that today


·4· ·it's different than it was prior to June 24, but I think


·5· ·over time, once there's these clear understandings in a


·6· ·now way of doing business, that we'll get to a point


·7· ·where we're very efficient with it.· That's the goal.


·8· ·If we don't meet that goal, then I'll ask that you


·9· ·continue to bring that to my attention so that we can


10· ·continually improve until we get to that position.


11· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you for your time and attention


12· ·today.


13· · · · · · · · · ·Danielle, anything else before we close


14· ·the record?


15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:


16· · · · · · · · · ·I have a quick question.


17· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:


20· · · · · · · · · ·It looks like based on what we heard


21· ·today and received comments from LIDEA, LABI, LCA and


22· ·LMOGA.· Did you receive any other comments?


23· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


24· · · · · · · · · ·I don't think we received any written


25· ·comments.


Page 31
·1· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Well, we still have mail coming in today


·3· ·that was just delivered to the Board that can be


·4· ·attached to this before we close out the record, so we


·5· ·can't probably accurately tell you all of the input that


·6· ·we've had because of the mail was just delivered.· But


·7· ·the permanent record will reflect all of the input that


·8· ·we receive to include the letters from the various


·9· ·organizations.


10· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:


11· · · · · · · · · ·And, Danielle, we just come to you to


12· ·get a copy of the permanent record?


13· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Well, it's going to be at least a couple


15· ·of weeks we have the -- about two weeks --


16· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Before we have the transcript?


18· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


19· · · · · · · · · ·-- before we have the transcript from


20· ·the court reporter.


21· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMS:


22· · · · · · · · · ·But you're the point person to


23· ·request --


24· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· If it's a public records request,


Page 32
·1· ·technically it's supposed to start in our communications


·2· ·division, but I'll be the one pulling all of the


·3· ·records.


·4· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·But we do plan to aggregate the


·6· ·information and provide it to the Board members, in


·7· ·particular the chair of the rules committee and the


·8· ·rules committee so that the input is utilized to its


·9· ·fullest advantage.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:


11· · · · · · · · · ·What about those -- are we going to be


12· ·able to get a copy of the records?


13· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· It will be public record, and


15· ·we'll be happy to provide it.· You don't have to ask us


16· ·for a copy of what we're going to put together for the


17· ·rules committee.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALLISON:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Do you know at this time if you received


20· ·more than just the four today?


21· · · · · · · ·MS. CLAPINSKI:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Mail is delivered, so I have to see


23· ·what's in the mail.· We've got to separate it and see


24· ·what's --


25· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 33
·1· · · · · · · · · ·With the holiday and such, I know mail


·2· ·has been stacking up, and so Danielle hasn't had a


·3· ·chance to go through all of that to accurately your


·4· ·question, but we'll be happy to, you know, share all of


·5· ·the input that we have.


·6· · · · · · · ·MS. LAWRENCE:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·And, Danielle, I have a question.· Donna


·8· ·Lawrence from Denbury.· If there are projects in the


·9· ·pipeline, you know, that a company is looking at, what


10· ·is the timeline that we're jumping from pre-June to


11· ·post-June to have rules under which a new -- a company


12· ·wants to look at a new project?· How do we know where --


13· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


14· · · · · · · · · ·You just call LED and we'll assign a


15· ·project manager and we'll move you forward.· There's no


16· ·disparity or -- we have a new set of rules, but we know


17· ·how to follow those.


18· · · · · · · ·MS. LAWRENCE:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.


20· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


21· · · · · · · · · ·And we don't want to do anything that's


22· ·going to hold up investments.· Let me know, and we'll


23· ·jump right on it.


24· · · · · · · ·MS. LAWRENCE:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


Page 34
·1· · · · · · · ·SECRETARY PIERSON:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· With no other comments,


·3· ·meeting adjourned.


·4· · · · · · · ·(Meeting concludes at 10:44 a.m.)


·5


·6


·7


·8


·9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


Page 35
·1· ·REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:


·2· · · · · · · ·I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court


·3· ·Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the


·4· ·officer before whom this meeting for the Board of


·5· ·Commerce and Industry of the Louisiana Economic


·6· ·Development Corporation, do hereby certify that this


·7· ·meeting was reported by me in the stenotype reporting


·8· ·method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my


·9· ·personal direction and supervision, and is a true and


10· ·correct transcript to the best of my ability and


11· ·understanding;


12· · · · · · · ·That the transcript has been prepared in


13· ·compliance with transcript format required by statute or


14· ·by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance


15· ·with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as


16· ·defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article


17· ·1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;


18· · · · · · · ·That I am not related to counsel or to the


19· ·parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the


20· ·outcome of this matter.


21


· · ·Dated this 13th day of January, 2017.


22


23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·___________________________


24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR


25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



http://www.torresreporting.com/





http://www.torresreporting.com/





http://www.torresreporting.com/





http://www.torresreporting.com/





http://www.torresreporting.com/





http://www.torresreporting.com/





http://www.torresreporting.com/





http://www.torresreporting.com/





http://www.torresreporting.com/



		Transcript

		Pages 1..4

		Pages 5..8

		Pages 9..12

		Pages 13..16

		Pages 17..20

		Pages 21..24

		Pages 25..28

		Pages 29..32

		Pages 33..35



		Word Index

		Index: $5-million..Brent

		$5-million (1)

		$60-million (1)

		1 (2)

		1.4-million (1)

		10 (2)

		100 (2)

		10:44 (1)

		15 (1)

		1990s (1)

		2 (1)

		2016 (1)

		24 (1)

		25 (1)

		27 (1)

		3 (1)

		30 (2)

		4 (1)

		5 (1)

		501 (1)

		501(b) (1)

		503 (1)

		503(d)(2) (1)

		503(e)(2)(a) (1)

		503(j) (1)

		60 (1)

		850 (1)

		a.m. (1)

		abatement (1)

		ability (1)

		accepted (1)

		accepting (1)

		accordance (1)

		accumulation (1)

		accurately (3)

		acknowledge (1)

		actual (2)

		Adair (2)

		add (1)

		added (3)

		addition (2)

		additional (7)

		additions (1)

		address (1)

		addressed (5)

		adjourned (1)

		administrative (1)

		advance (1)

		advances (1)

		advantage (1)

		Advantous (1)

		affect (1)

		agenda (1)

		aggregate (1)

		agreements (1)

		align (1)

		alliance (1)

		Allison (7)

		allowed (1)

		allowing (1)

		America (1)

		amount (2)

		amounts (1)

		analysis (3)

		anxiously (1)

		APA (1)

		appeal (1)

		appears (1)

		application (2)

		applications (1)

		approval (4)

		approved (1)

		area (1)

		articulate (2)

		assign (1)

		Association (7)

		associations (1)

		attached (1)

		attachment (1)

		attempt (2)

		attended (1)

		attending (1)

		attention (2)

		attorney (1)

		attractive (1)

		audience (1)

		authorities (3)

		automobile (1)

		availability (1)

		aware (6)

		back (7)

		Baker (7)

		balloon (1)

		based (4)

		basically (2)

		basis (2)

		BCI (3)

		bedrock (1)

		beginning (1)

		benefit (2)

		big (3)

		bigger (1)

		bit (4)

		Board (16)

		Board's (1)

		Bob (5)

		Bowser (6)

		Brent (1)



		Index: bring..day

		bring (2)

		brought (3)

		build (3)

		built (1)

		burden (1)

		business (15)

		businesses (2)

		calendar (1)

		call (6)

		capital (5)

		car (1)

		care (1)

		career (1)

		case (1)

		CEA (1)

		CENCOR (1)

		certainty (2)

		cetera (2)

		chair (5)

		challenge (1)

		chance (1)

		change (1)

		chemical (7)

		choose (5)

		chose (1)

		Christmas (1)

		circumstances (1)

		circumvent (1)

		city (1)

		Clapinski (17)

		clarification (1)

		clarifications (1)

		clarity (3)

		clear (2)

		climb (1)

		close (4)

		closing (1)

		comment (6)

		comments (36)

		commerce (3)

		Commission (1)

		commitment (1)

		committee (13)

		committees (4)

		common (1)

		commonly (1)

		communications (1)

		community (1)

		companies (5)

		company (6)

		compare (1)

		compete (1)

		competition (4)

		competitive (2)

		compliance (1)

		comply (2)

		component (1)

		concept (2)

		concern (11)

		concerned (4)

		concerns (6)

		concert (1)

		concludes (1)

		confidence (2)

		confident (1)

		confidentiality (1)

		confusing (2)

		confusion (3)

		consideration (6)

		considered (1)

		consistent (1)

		constant (1)

		constitution (2)

		constitutional (1)

		construction (3)

		Consulting (2)

		continually (1)

		continue (1)

		continued (1)

		continuous (1)

		contract (9)

		contracts (2)

		control (5)

		cooperative (2)

		copy (3)

		Council (1)

		count (2)

		counted (1)

		countries (1)

		county (1)

		couple (3)

		court (2)

		cover (2)

		craft (1)

		create (1)

		creation (2)

		credit (1)

		cumbersome (1)

		current (1)

		curtailment (1)

		curve (1)

		custom (2)

		Danielle (9)

		day (2)



		Index: days..formalized

		days (2)

		deal (1)

		dealing (1)

		deals (2)

		dealt (1)

		decades (2)

		decide (2)

		decides (1)

		decision (3)

		decisions (2)

		decreased (1)

		defer (5)

		define (1)

		defined (1)

		defining (1)

		definition (8)

		definitions (2)

		delivered (3)

		Delta (1)

		Denbury (2)

		department (3)

		department's (1)

		depending (2)

		depends (1)

		depreciated (1)

		depth (1)

		detail (2)

		detailed (1)

		determination (2)

		determines (1)

		detriment (1)

		development (3)

		dialog (1)

		dictate (1)

		difference (1)

		difficult (1)

		difficulty (1)

		dire (1)

		direction (1)

		directly (1)

		director (2)

		Directors (1)

		disadvantage (1)

		discounted (1)

		discuss (1)

		discussed (1)

		discussion (3)

		discussions (1)

		disparity (1)

		disposal (1)

		divide (1)

		division (2)

		Don (2)

		Donna (2)

		door (1)

		drawn (1)

		duplicate (1)

		dwell (2)

		earlier (1)

		economic (2)

		economics (1)

		economy (1)

		edition (1)

		efficient (2)

		effort (1)

		elicit (1)

		eliminate (1)

		embedded (1)

		employed (1)

		employee (2)

		employees (2)

		enact (1)

		end (1)

		endeavor (2)

		ended (1)

		engineer (1)

		enormously (1)

		ensuring (1)

		entire (1)

		entities (1)

		entity (1)

		environmental (3)

		equation (1)

		equipment (1)

		essentially (2)

		established (1)

		establishment (1)

		establishments (1)

		Everest (1)

		excluded (2)

		execution (1)

		executive (5)

		exempt (1)

		exemption (2)

		exemptions (1)

		Exhibit (3)

		Exhibits (1)

		exist (1)

		existing (2)

		expand (1)

		expanded (1)

		expansion (1)

		expenditure (1)

		experience (1)

		explained (1)

		fabrication (1)

		facilities (1)

		facility (5)

		fact (3)

		fair (1)

		February (1)

		fee (1)

		feel (2)

		feeling (1)

		feels (1)

		fees (3)

		felt (1)

		fewer (1)

		field (1)

		final (2)

		finally (1)

		Finance (1)

		finished (1)

		folks (1)

		follow (1)

		formalized (1)



		Index: forms..limit

		forms (2)

		forward (2)

		found (2)

		foundation (2)

		full (2)

		full-time (6)

		fullest (1)

		fully (1)

		Gas (3)

		gather (1)

		general (1)

		generally (1)

		give (3)

		glad (2)

		global (1)

		goal (4)

		Golleher (2)

		good (2)

		government (5)

		governmental (1)

		governments (1)

		Governor (4)

		Governor's (4)

		grades (1)

		greater (1)

		Greg (2)

		group (2)

		guide (1)

		guys (2)

		half (1)

		happened (1)

		happening (1)

		happy (2)

		hard (1)

		heard (3)

		hearing (6)

		helpful (1)

		high-level (2)

		highlight (2)

		hold (1)

		holding (1)

		holiday (2)

		hope (1)

		house (1)

		hurdle (1)

		hurt (1)

		hurtful (1)

		identify (1)

		ignore (1)

		Illinois (1)

		imagine (1)

		import (1)

		important (5)

		improve (1)

		include (4)

		included (1)

		individual (1)

		Industrial (1)

		industry (8)

		information (3)

		injection (1)

		input (5)

		install (1)

		intend (1)

		intended (2)

		intent (5)

		intentionally (1)

		investment (2)

		investments (4)

		issue (5)

		issues (1)

		items (1)

		ITEP (4)

		Jeff (1)

		Jim (1)

		job (11)

		job-creation-type (1)

		jobs (12)

		Joe (1)

		judges (1)

		jump (2)

		jumping (1)

		June (1)

		Kean (1)

		keeping (1)

		kind (6)

		kinds (1)

		knowledge (1)

		LABI (4)

		LABI'S (2)

		labor (7)

		language (8)

		larger (1)

		late (1)

		lateral (1)

		Lawrence (6)

		LCA (1)

		LCI (1)

		learning (1)

		leave (3)

		LED (7)

		legal (1)

		legislative (1)

		legislature (1)

		letter (5)

		letters (1)

		level (3)

		LIDEA (3)

		limit (1)



		Index: limitation..percent

		limitation (1)

		limitations (1)

		limited (1)

		limits (1)

		lines (1)

		listening (1)

		LLC (1)

		LMOGA (2)

		local (5)

		locals (1)

		locations (1)

		logistics (1)

		long (3)

		lot (3)

		loudly (1)

		Louisiana (13)

		Louisiana's (1)

		lower (1)

		luxury (1)

		machinery (2)

		made (4)

		mail (5)

		main (1)

		maintain (1)

		make (19)

		makes (2)

		Malone (1)

		management (1)

		manager (1)

		mandates (1)

		manufacturer (2)

		manufacturers (1)

		manufacturing (7)

		mass (2)

		Matt (1)

		matter (1)

		MCA (5)

		MCAS (1)

		meaning (1)

		means (1)

		mechanic (4)

		mechanics (1)

		mechanism (2)

		meet (2)

		meeting (9)

		meetings (3)

		member (3)

		members (3)

		mention (4)

		met (1)

		metro (1)

		microphone (1)

		Mid-continent (3)

		Miller (2)

		mindful (1)

		minute (1)

		minutes (1)

		miscellaneous (2)

		misfortune (1)

		misperception (2)

		misstated (1)

		months (3)

		morning (1)

		Mount (1)

		move (5)

		multiple (4)

		nature (1)

		navigated (1)

		necessarily (1)

		negotiate (2)

		negotiated (1)

		negotiation (1)

		net (1)

		newer (1)

		Non-substantive (1)

		notice (2)

		noticed (1)

		number (4)

		objection (1)

		observe (2)

		observing (2)

		offend (1)

		offered (1)

		Oil (3)

		older (1)

		onus (1)

		open (2)

		operate (2)

		opportunity (7)

		opposed (2)

		order (5)

		orders (2)

		organizations (1)

		override (1)

		oversight (4)

		parish (6)

		parish-to-parish (1)

		parishes (2)

		part (4)

		partial (1)

		parts (1)

		passed (2)

		patient (1)

		Patterson (2)

		pause (1)

		pauses (2)

		pay (2)

		people (8)

		percent (2)



		Index: perception..residential

		perception (1)

		period (1)

		periods (1)

		permanent (3)

		permanently (1)

		person (2)

		perspective (4)

		Phyllis (2)

		Pierson (18)

		pipeline (1)

		place (1)

		plain (1)

		plan (2)

		plant (7)

		plants (3)

		pleasure (1)

		point (20)

		points (2)

		policy (1)

		pollution (4)

		pops (1)

		position (1)

		post-june (1)

		potentially (1)

		potpourri (1)

		pre-june (1)

		presence (1)

		presented (3)

		President (1)

		prices (1)

		primary (1)

		prior (2)

		prioritize (1)

		problem (2)

		problematic (1)

		problems (2)

		proceed (1)

		process (14)

		processes (2)

		production (2)

		profitable (1)

		program (9)

		programs (2)

		project (10)

		projects (5)

		promulgation (1)

		properly (1)

		Properties (1)

		property (5)

		proposed (4)

		provide (3)

		provided (2)

		providing (2)

		public (4)

		public-trade (1)

		published (2)

		pulling (1)

		purpose (1)

		put (5)

		puts (1)

		qualify (1)

		Quality (1)

		question (5)

		questions (5)

		quick (2)

		quote (1)

		rate (2)

		read (4)

		ready (1)

		real (2)

		realize (2)

		Reap-curiel (5)

		receive (4)

		received (5)

		recently (1)

		recognition (1)

		reconsider (1)

		record (13)

		records (3)

		reduction (1)

		refer (1)

		reference (1)

		reflect (1)

		reflection (1)

		regard (1)

		Region (1)

		register (1)

		regular (2)

		regularly-scheduled (1)

		Relief (1)

		relocation (2)

		remain (1)

		renewal (1)

		renewals (1)

		reporter (2)

		represent (2)

		representative (1)

		representing (2)

		represents (1)

		request (3)

		requested (1)

		requesting (1)

		require (3)

		required (3)

		requirement (2)

		requirements (2)

		requires (1)

		Research (1)

		resident (1)

		residential (1)



		Index: resolution..times

		resolution (3)

		resolutions (1)

		Resources (1)

		respect (1)

		respectfully (1)

		respond (1)

		response (1)

		responsibility (2)

		responsive (2)

		rest (1)

		retention (2)

		return (2)

		Revenue (1)

		review (2)

		reviewed (1)

		Rhonda (4)

		routinely (1)

		rule (4)

		rules (29)

		run (1)

		rural (1)

		Ryan (1)

		scenarios (1)

		scope (1)

		Secretary (16)

		section (3)

		seeks (1)

		select (1)

		selection (1)

		senate (1)

		sentence (1)

		separate (1)

		serve (1)

		set (3)

		share (1)

		shelved (1)

		sheriff (1)

		shouting (1)

		side (2)

		signed (1)

		significant (7)

		significantly (2)

		signs (2)

		similar (2)

		Sims (7)

		site (3)

		sites (2)

		situation (1)

		skip (1)

		slow (1)

		smooth (1)

		soft (1)

		sort (2)

		speak (5)

		speaking (2)

		specifically (1)

		speed (1)

		spelled (1)

		spent (1)

		spoken (1)

		squeezed (1)

		stacking (1)

		staff (1)

		stand (1)

		standpoint (1)

		start (6)

		starting (1)

		starts (1)

		state (13)

		states (10)

		static (1)

		stay (1)

		stock (1)

		stop (3)

		streamlined (1)

		strongly (1)

		structure (1)

		submit (1)

		submittal (1)

		submitted (5)

		submitting (1)

		substantive (3)

		successful (2)

		sudden (1)

		sufficiently (1)

		suggest (1)

		suggested (1)

		suggestion (2)

		suggestions (1)

		summarize (1)

		suppliers (1)

		supports (1)

		supposed (1)

		table (1)

		tactically (1)

		talked (1)

		talking (4)

		tax (14)

		taxation (2)

		taxes (2)

		taxing (2)

		Taxpayers (1)

		teams (1)

		technically (1)

		term (6)

		terms (1)

		testimony (1)

		Texas (12)

		thing (4)

		things (6)

		thinking (1)

		thought (3)

		thoughtful (1)

		tied (3)

		time (18)

		timeline (1)

		times (3)



		Index: today..Zagotti

		today (13)

		tool (1)

		top (1)

		topic (1)

		training (1)

		transcript (3)

		treat (1)

		treated (1)

		type (1)

		types (1)

		typically (1)

		uncertainty (1)

		understand (6)

		understanding (4)

		understandings (1)

		Understood (1)

		unfunded (1)

		unlike (1)

		upgrades (3)

		urge (1)

		utilize (1)

		utilized (2)

		vacuum (1)

		versions (1)

		versus (2)

		vibrant (1)

		voir (1)

		waiting (1)

		wanted (1)

		week (1)

		weeks (2)

		words (3)

		work (9)

		worked (3)

		workers (4)

		workforce (1)

		working (5)

		writing (2)

		written (8)

		wrong (1)

		y'all (1)

		years (6)

		yesterday (2)

		yield (1)

		you-all (2)

		Zagotti (2)





		Transcript Formats

		Amicus

		MDB

		LiveNote

		ASCII/TXT







0001
 1
 2
 3
 4               PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR
 5       THE BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY
 6                     OF THE
 7   LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
 8                     HELD AT
 9                LASALLE BUILDING
10              617 NORTH 3RD STREET
11                  LABELLE ROOM
12             BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA
13        ON THE 29TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016
14            COMMENCING AT 10:04 A.M.
15
16
17
18     REPORTED BY:  ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
0002
 1   Appearances of Board Members Present:
 2   Charles R. "Robby" Miller
 3
 4   Staff members present:
 5   Kristen Cheng
     Danielle Clapinski
 6   Frank Favaloro
     Secretary Don Pierson
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
0003
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   Thank you, everyone, for your attendance
 3   today.  I know that there's been a lot of effort that's
 4   gone into preparing your comments that the department
 5   will receive today relative to the executive order and
 6   the changes for the Industrial Tax Exemption Program, so
 7   I know a lot of thought has gone into this.  We
 8   appreciate this as constructive, I won't say, dialog,
 9   because you're going to provide us input today, and
10   Danielle will talk about those rules of engagement.
11                   We're not here to debate the merits of
12   your suggestions, but certainly we want to convey 100
13   percent, A, appreciation of this important input, and
14   then, B, give it full consideration as we continue to
15   develop the rules on behalf of the Governor and the
16   Commerce & Industry Board.
17                   So with that, I would like to ask one of
18   our C&I Board members, the Tangipahoa Parish President,
19   if he would like to make any other additional remarks
20               MR. MILLER:
21                   I would just echo what Secretary Pierson
22   said that we thank you so much and this has been a very
23   large effort.  As y'all all know, my comments at the
24   beginning of this were the uncertainty is what causes us
25   most heartache, and I think we're close to the
0004
 1   uncertainty being gone.  You might not like it 100
 2   percent, but at least we know what we're dealing with
 3   now and we appreciate the effort and hopefully your
 4   comments are going to make us even a little bit better
 5   in what we put out there.  And as a Board member here,
 6   I'll tell you we're anxiously waiting for this so we can
 7   get this process continued through and finished.
 8               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 9                   And in closing, we did not tactically
10   select the brief time period between Christmas and New
11   Years.  It's hard to gather an audience, but what we
12   were we actually doing is trying to get the speed of
13   execution to get the rules established and get business
14   back on a field of certainty, so that is just the way
15   that the calendar happened to dictate the availability
16   and the compliance with the APA and those types of
17   things.  So thank you for that, and I will now yield to
18   Danielle.
19               MS. CLAPINSKI:
20                   Okay.  Good morning.  For those of y'all
21   who don't know, I'm Danielle Clapinski, staff attorney
22   here at LED.  I have the pleasure, or misfortune,
23   depending on the day, of working with the ITEP program.
24                   This is the public hearing for the rules
25   that were published in the 2016 edition of the register.
0005
 1   We do have a court reporter here today, so I would ask
 2   that when it's your opportunity to give your comment,
 3   please state your name, who you represent and speak --
 4   we don't have a microphone, so please speak as loudly
 5   without shouting as you can.  I don't think there are
 6   too many in here that are soft spoken, so we should be
 7   okay.
 8                   I don't intend to limit anybody to any
 9   set amount of minutes or time at this point in time,
10   other than, you know, we do have a good many people here
11   that would like to speak, so please be mindful that
12   everyone gets an opportunity to speak.  If you have
13   submitted written comments, and I've received, I think,
14   three or four different versions, please, if you can
15   sort of summarize those.  I don't know that we need to
16   go through each one because the written comments are
17   already part of the record for comments on these rules.
18                   At that, whoever -- I don't think
19   there's any formalized process on where we start.  We
20   can just start on one side and go around if you'd like.
21               MR. ZAGOTTI:
22                   My name is Matt Zagotti from Director of
23   Ryan, LLC.  My main purpose here was to just kind of
24   observe and see what's going on next.
25               MR. ALLISON:
0006
 1                   I'm Don Allison with Advantous
 2   Consulting and member of LIDEA Board of Directors, and
 3   Rhonda also with LABI.  I think she submitted some
 4   comments.  I don't plan to make any, but I'll defer to
 5   Rhonda.
 6               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
 7                   Rhonda Reap-Curiel with CENCOR
 8   Consulting representing LIDEA as government legislative
 9   committee chair.  I did submit written comments
10   yesterday, and I just want to highlight a couple of
11   those points.  I know other people around the table
12   probably have some similar points or the ones that I
13   feel are similar I want to skip over, but when it comes
14   to MCA renewals, there's still some confusion out there
15   because it appears that even though the second executive
16   order provided some clarity on those existing contracts
17   with advances that are in renewal state, it does not
18   refer to specifically those MCAs which don't have an
19   advance tied to them.  So we would like some clarity
20   written into the rules so that those companies who may
21   not have been attending the meetings to see that the
22   last two meetings they've actually been approved,
23   understand how they are to be treated and the commitment
24   is still there from the State.
25                   We have suggested some language to be
0007
 1   added as additional point in that Section 501, and then
 2   we also added some additional -- an additional sentence
 3   to 501(b) that we would hope you would consider.
 4                   And then under 503(d)(2), it's really
 5   more questions than comments because there is concern
 6   that the local governmental entities that require
 7   resolution, there may be difficulty in them actually
 8   holding a hearing or getting on the agenda.  If they
 9   just choose to ignore you, they have the luxury to do
10   that.  There's nothing that requires that side to be
11   responsive back to the business.  It seems that the onus
12   is all on the business.  They're required to go get
13   these things, but there's nothing that says, "Look, the
14   government has to be responsive back to them."
15                   And that section does only say
16   resolutions, and we know the sheriff is a letter, but we
17   think that should be plain and written out.
18                   And then with 503(e)(2)(a), we'd ask
19   that you include "relocation to another parish."  I
20   believe Ms. Malone brought that up in the actual
21   discussion of the rules at the Board meeting, and if
22   you're in the Delta Region or you're in a rural parish,
23   it is a challenge sometimes to keep your existing
24   industry there, and if this is a tool that we can use to
25   keep those companies there and make them just as
0008
 1   efficient and profitable by having them move to a more
 2   metro area where maybe there's greater workforce or
 3   something of that nature, we would like the ability to
 4   do that.  We know that with relocation to another parish
 5   within the state there's some limitations, but the
 6   limitation doesn't include them getting the full benefit
 7   of a new facility, and that's something that will be a
 8   disadvantage to those parishes where these companies
 9   already exist.
10                   And with that, I'll just let you have
11   the rest of my comments.  I don't know if you had any
12   questions of if you even had time to read them.
13               MS. CLAPINSKI:
14                   I did.  I don't have any questions on
15   what your comments state.
16               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
17                   And, I'm sorry.  On 503(j), I know this
18   was brought up in the actual rules committee meeting
19   about the fees if the Board determines you're not
20   meeting the definition of manufacturer or they say, you
21   get to your hearing for your application approval and
22   they decide, "Oh, well, that equipment doesn't count,"
23   you know, your fees are based on what you're submitting
24   and requesting in value to be accepted, and we'd like to
25   see some mechanism that would allow a return of fees for
0009
 1   excluded, of course, keeping, you know, the
 2   administrative fee.  And if there's an appeal process,
 3   what that would be, we'd like to see that spelled out as
 4   well.
 5               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 6                   Rhonda, just one before we leave this,
 7   if you would just articulate a little bit more for me
 8   the parish-to-parish move and no net new -- the concept
 9   typically is the state seeks new investment and new job
10   creation.  How does a lateral move across the parish
11   line qualify for abatement of tax?
12               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
13                   A company is getting ready to do an
14   expansion, they --
15               SECRETARY PIERSON:
16                   It would be with that new component.
17               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
18                   -- may move within a state, and because
19   they could go build a bigger, larger facility as opposed
20   to doing an addition at an older facility, that would be
21   more attractive because they can get the full benefit of
22   a newer, expanded facility as opposed to a partial on
23   the addition.  So there should be some mechanism that
24   allows the parish to work to try to keep those companies
25   that are looking to expand or add additional lines to
0010
 1   their facility within that parish.
 2               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 3                   Okay.
 4               MR. ALLISON:
 5                   I want to mention one thing before we
 6   leave the voir dire comments.
 7                   We did a letter to Industry & Commerce
 8   about some definitions, three definitions, of the term
 9   "jobs".  Two of them deal with the definition of the
10   term "jobs," and they're very important.  The one I want
11   to point out is the one that deals with the definition
12   of the term "manufacturer."  It's a real bedrock concept
13   that is the foundation for much of this program.  This
14   is obviously exemptions that are allowed to
15   manufacturing establishments, and the term
16   "manufacturing establishment" is defined in the
17   constitution, and the rules try to define the term
18   "manufacturing," and so, you know, the language that --
19   actually the words appear three or four times between
20   the rules committee, the Board, et cetera, and what was
21   published.  I think the language ended up with few too
22   many words and some confusing language, and so we have
23   some suggestions there about the language that you've
24   proposed contains the language from the constitution
25   plus some other language, and the additional language is
0011
 1   what we're having a problem with, and right now it would
 2   say that the definition is -- how does it read?  I'm
 3   sorry.  Here we go.
 4                   The definition says -- used the term "by
 5   means of mass production or custom fabrication and
 6   machinery," and some of those words, we think, are
 7   confusing, especially in the order that they read, so
 8   our suggestion would be to change it to "mass or custom
 9   production, machinery or labor to create -- for use," et
10   cetera.  So, anyway, there may be some more discussion
11   today about the definition of manufacturing because it's
12   so important to the program, and I wanted to point out
13   that our comment deals with that same definition.
14               MS. CLAPINSKI:
15                   If I can just point out, Don, I think
16   she knows who you are, but if you do comment again, make
17   sure that you identify yourself again so we have on
18   record who made the comments.
19               SECRETARY PIERSON:
20                   And I also want to be confident that
21   everyone has signed in.  I know a number of you have
22   passed.  As long as we've got a reflection of your
23   presence today, that's important.  Thank you.
24               MR. PATTERSON:
25                   I'm Jim Patterson with the Louisiana
0012
 1   Association of Business and Industry.  I serve as the
 2   director of LABI's Taxation and Finance Council.  I
 3   appreciate the opportunity to speak to you-all about the
 4   rules of the proposed, and I appreciate the
 5   consideration that our comments are going to be given.
 6                   I essentially will stand on my comment,
 7   but I do want to just highlight a few of them as
 8   particular concerns of ours starting with Louisiana
 9   residential requirement.  The feeling in part of many of
10   our members is that this issue was dealt with back in
11   the late 1990s when there was an attempt to install what
12   was commonly known as Rule 1 to require that Louisiana
13   workers be used in construction work in these kinds of
14   projects, and, of course, found Rule 1 to be
15   constitutional already.  I think the issue of defining
16   manufacturing and the problems attended with that has
17   already been sufficiently addressed.
18                   We do believe that some confusion, at
19   least our perception, some confusion made elicit from
20   parts 2, 3 and 5 in Section 503, where there is
21   discussion of the Exhibits A and B and the particular
22   control that will operate with one versus the other.
23   There seems to be a retention of the right of BCI to
24   rule regarding these contracts, but there's also some
25   suggestion that what happens with regard to Exhibit B is
0013
 1   kind of final say as well, and I think that some
 2   clarification may be in order there.
 3                   We still and the general business
 4   community feels that there needs to be some clear
 5   direction as to what resolution is at our disposal if a
 6   particular local entity does not issue the resolution
 7   required under Exhibit B.  This is not anywhere within
 8   the rules found addressed, and we think there needs to
 9   be some clarity there.
10                   And then finally we strongly urge that
11   consideration be given to the forms that you-all
12   routinely utilize for these applications, ensuring that
13   any terms that are utilized on the forms are, in fact,
14   addressed in the rules so that essentially the business
15   people know what's being talked about when we're trying
16   to comply with the requirements.
17                   Again, thank you very much for allowing
18   us the opportunity and for coming in, you know, on the
19   holiday.  Some of us did, but nevertheless, appreciate
20   the fact that you're here, particularly you,
21   Mr. Secretary Pierson.  Thanks.
22               MR. BOWSER:
23                   Greg Bowser, President of Louisiana
24   Chemical Association.  Some brief comments, and I know a
25   number of the guys here will cover the same things that
0014
 1   I'm concerned about.
 2                   The Louisiana Chemical Association
 3   represents 60 chemical manufacturers that operate at 100
 4   different locations throughout the State of Louisiana.
 5   We also represent different suppliers in our chemical
 6   industry alliance, which amounts to over 850 Louisiana
 7   companies, and their particular concern, and I'll
 8   mention what the real concern for them would be, we
 9   understand that these rules are an attempt to comply
10   with the Governor's executive order and the changes to
11   the Industrial Tax Exemption Program.  Our concern is
12   that the changes may make the program so cumbersome to
13   use, it may be a detriment to the economic development,
14   especially to the chemical industry.
15                   One of the big things that you do is you
16   eliminate miscellaneous capital expenditure.  By doing
17   that, it's going to go to some other plant that may have
18   to do upgrades and do some things to be competitive and
19   stay.  We're concerned about that.
20                   The other thing that concerns us when we
21   look at it, there's no consideration for the retention
22   of jobs or contract jobs, and this is why LCI folks are
23   often -- these people are full-time workers.  They may
24   be at one plant today and at another plant next week, so
25   they're full-time workers, and I don't think there's
0015
 1   consideration for any of that, so we would like to see
 2   that done.
 3                   The other thing that concerns us is the
 4   cooperative endeavor agreements.  All of a sudden we are
 5   going to have to go and make those with several
 6   different taxing authorities, and so that's a concern
 7   when you start talking about confidentiality and you
 8   start talking about your public-trade company
 9   information, that has an opportunity to get out and
10   cause you some problems with respect to stock prices and
11   investments.
12                   Under rules, our members are required to
13   negotiate with so many different authorities.  One of
14   the things that concerns us is that unlike any other
15   states, you have to go and negotiate with all of these
16   taxing authorities, and then after you've put all of
17   your information out there under negotiation, you still
18   have to come back to the state and there's a decision
19   made at that point whether or not you'll get the
20   exemption, whether or not what you've offered and what
21   you've negotiated is felt to be fair.  To our knowledge,
22   there is no other state that does that.  That puts us in
23   a very difficult situation for the State of Louisiana
24   from a competitive standpoint.
25                   So I'll stop there.  I'll let the others
0016
 1   make some comments.  I know some are going to have the
 2   same comments, but I'll be glad to provide to you in
 3   writing some of the comments that we have.
 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 5                   And I will point out just to your one
 6   comment, our definition of jobs does allow for contract
 7   labor, so that, at least, is addressed in the rules.
 8               MR. BAKER:
 9                   Danielle, when you say "contract labor,"
10   are you saying the type of contract labor that is at the
11   plant on a constant basis, are you talking about
12   contract labor that I think Mr. Bowser is talking about
13   that is in and out of plants at periods of time, meaning
14   that you've got a project that -- and my point I'm
15   trying to make is on the application, there was
16   construction jobs, for example; okay, well, you may --
17   those construction jobs may be on one project at one
18   particular time, but may -- those same jobs may be on
19   another project at another time, so you have this
20   consistent or continuous, I should say, injection of
21   contract labor going in and out of those plants all of
22   time and that's -- I was listening to your comments, and
23   that's the kind of thing that I think that I believe the
24   rule changes have not really addressed or how it can be
25   very hurtful because of -- you know, it could be some
0017
 1   curtailment of projects because -- and those people are
 2   going to be the ones that are really going to get hurt.
 3               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 4                   My understanding, and, you know,
 5   obviously -- and I should have said this from the
 6   beginning.  All of the these comments will go back to
 7   the Board, the rules committee and the Board.  They have
 8   to make a determination if they're going to choose to
 9   make any changes based upon the comments received.
10   That's not LED.
11                   But my understanding of the Governor's
12   thought was that it would -- he wants to make it a
13   job-creation-type program, so I would say -- and there
14   will be requirements, my understanding, through the CEA
15   with the department and the locals that you maintain a
16   job level.  So, to me, that would indicate that whether
17   it's employed directly or through contract labor, that
18   they would need to be on site at a regular -- maybe not
19   every day, but on some sort of regular basis.  So if
20   that's to your point, then I understand your concern.
21               MR. BOWSER:
22                   Well, the concern further is that --
23   Greg Bowser again -- is that when you say they have to
24   be on site for a particular time, and nobody knows what
25   that is.  Sometimes those guys are there for two months;
0018
 1   sometimes they're there for six months.  We have some
 2   contract employees that's been at some of our plants for
 3   years.
 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 5                   Sure.  And I don't know that it's
 6   necessarily tied to the employees as it is tied to the
 7   job.  So if it's a contract engineer that comes in on
 8   some of these facilities, and that individual person
 9   changes out -- I mean, I know all of our job programs,
10   and I would imagine that when we're looking at jobs for
11   this program as well, that it's going to be the job, not
12   the employee, so that -- and I understand your concerns,
13   but I think the Governor's intent -- and certainly, you
14   know, these comments will all go back and we'll take a
15   look at these in that scope -- was that it would be a
16   job creation program, so I think having that same job
17   potentially count at multiple sites would be
18   problematic.
19               MR. BOWSER:
20                   Danielle, I'll just give one quick
21   example, and, you know, it's from a chemical plant
22   perspective, it's like you're in your automobile, you
23   know, if something is wrong with your car, you take it
24   to a mechanic.  Okay?  You pay that mechanic to do that.
25   Well, that mechanic has a full-time job.  When you
0019
 1   leave, there's other people there that come to that
 2   mechanic, so that's a full-time job.  In the chemical
 3   industry, what happens many times is that, you know,
 4   Plant A may have this going on today and workers come in
 5   and take care of that.  They may be there six months or
 6   sometimes two or three years.  That same employee then
 7   has to go to the plant next door to do the same work, so
 8   that's a full-time job, and we believe under these
 9   circumstances, we don't get credit.  They say that's not
10   a full-time job that's counted.  And that's our concern.
11               MS. CLAPINSKI:
12                   I understand.  Thank you.
13               MR. GOLLEHER:
14                   Brent Golleher, Louisiana Mid-Continent
15   Oil & Gas Association.  Comments were submitted
16   yesterday, and at the appropriate time, I will defer to
17   Jeff and Bob to get more detail on some of the issues
18   that as a property tax committee, we've kind of drawn up
19   and come up with.
20               MS. SIMS:
21                   Phyllis Sims, Kean Miller.  I don't have
22   any comments.
23               MS. LAWRENCE:
24                   Donna Lawrence with Denbury Resources.
25   Observing.
0020
 1               MR. BAKER:
 2                   Joe Baker with Louisiana Mid-Continent
 3   Oil & Gas Association.  I chair the property tax
 4   committee, and thanks for providing some time for us to
 5   make these comments.
 6                   I'm going to defer to Bob in just a
 7   minute, but what I would like to ask is, the question
 8   is, once you receive all of these comments, what's the
 9   mechanics going forward after that for the legal process
10   and how does that work?
11               MS. CLAPINSKI:
12                   Sure.  So generally speaking, this
13   program is a little bit different because the Board
14   itself makes the rules, whereas most of our other
15   programs, it's LED.  All of the written comments, as
16   well as the transcript from this hearing today, will go
17   to the Board, and it will be up to them where they want
18   to start with the rules committee and then -- they have
19   to make a decision on whether any changes are going to
20   be made based upon these comments.  At that point, there
21   will be a determination of whether those changes are
22   substantive or not substantive, if they choose to make
23   some.  Non-substantive changes would not slow down the
24   rules process.  Substantive changes basically starts it
25   over again.  We'd have to issue another Notice of Intent
0021
 1   or a potpourri, but either of those has another public
 2   hearing requirement where we might have to do this all
 3   again.
 4                   If they decide to not make any changes,
 5   then notice would be given to the oversight committees,
 6   which are the commerce committees of the house and the
 7   senate, and they have 30 days to call their own
 8   oversight hearing should they choose to.
 9                   If they do not choose to, then those 30
10   days run and the department can proceed with final
11   promulgation of the rules.  So it really depends from
12   here on what the Board decides to do with the comments
13   they receive.
14               MR. BAKER:
15                   And if the oversight committees were to
16   suggest accepting some of these proposed --
17               MS. CLAPINSKI:
18                   It's an up or down at that point.  It's
19   an approval or non approval of the rules.  And I do
20   believe there may be the opportunity for the Governor to
21   override the oversight committees as well.  So there are
22   a lot of different scenarios on where we could go from
23   here.
24               MR. BAKER:
25                   Understood.  Thank you.
0022
 1               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 2                   No problem.
 3               MR. BAKER:
 4                   So I'm going to defer to Bob.
 5               MS. SIMS:
 6                   Let me ask before we get there.
 7                   Phyllis Sims, for the record.
 8                   Danielle, are these going to the Board
 9   for the February meeting then?
10               MS. CLAPINSKI:
11                   I don't know that.  That is the next
12   regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board.  If they chose
13   to call a meeting prior to then to address it, that is
14   the Board's right, and it would obviously be properly
15   noticed in accordance with open meetings and all of
16   those.
17               MR. BAKER:
18                   Now I'll defer to Bob.
19               MR. ADAIR:
20                   Bob Adair representing Louisiana
21   Mid-Continent Oil & Gas Association and I'm a member of
22   the Property Tax Committee and I will not read into
23   record the letter that we submitted.  I will use it as a
24   guide.
25                   Before I get to that, I thought I would
0023
 1   give you a little perspective of where we're coming
 2   from.  I have significant depth of experience of about
 3   15 states and I've worked in about 25 states, so and I
 4   realize that LED has worked with other -- you compare
 5   other states and how they compete, too.  I also chair
 6   the Project Tax Committee of the Texas Taxpayers and
 7   Research Association, which is the primary tax committee
 8   in Texas -- or tax group in Texas, and also chair the
 9   Tax Relief for Pollution Control Properties with the
10   Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.
11                   Okay.  I'll jump into -- the first point
12   is LMOGA supports LABI's presented testimony and their
13   written submittal, but so we don't want to duplicate
14   what they're doing, but I'll cover some high-level
15   comments.  We acknowledge that the proposed rules are
16   intended to align with the executive orders from the
17   Governor, but I'll also say that -- so our comments are
18   more high-level rather than detailed from LABI.
19                   So the first point, and I won't dwell on
20   this, but for the record, I will mention that
21   environmental grades -- upgrades have, of course, been
22   excluded in the executive orders, and we want to point
23   out that whereas Number 4 said that most -- had
24   misstated that most states do not have this.  Well, in
25   fact, 27 states exempt pollution control property
0024
 1   permanently, and another six, I believe, has a
 2   significant reduction in value.  For example, Illinois,
 3   that I work in, they have, it's like, one and a half
 4   percent of depreciated value is the value on pollution
 5   control, so it's significantly discounted.  Some states
 6   also have a lower tax rate for pollution control.
 7                   In Texas, since -- and I'll discuss
 8   Texas several times because Texas has been brought up in
 9   both the Governor's and other discussions because we're
10   trying to be more like Texas.  So in regarding
11   environmental upgrades, Texas -- the Texas legislature,
12   their intent was basically they do not want to require
13   businesses to pay property taxes to government on top of
14   unfunded mandates by the same government, although there
15   might be a difference in state versus local level, but
16   they intentionally did not want to put that burden on
17   businesses.
18                   The second point that we have concerns
19   about is the process, and I won't go through this -- we
20   have significant questions that remain on how this is
21   going to work out.  A couple people asked about the
22   logistics, how this is going to work, and I know LED is
23   still working it and I've heard different parishes are
24   working how that's going to work, but I do want to
25   observe that, of course, the current process you've got
0025
 1   just the Board of Commerce & Industry and the Governor,
 2   which we call a -- I'll call it a pause or in process,
 3   significant amount of time that it's going to take some
 4   decision.  In the attachment to what we submitted, I
 5   have what we call "stop signs."  That's not intended to
 6   offend anyone.  It's just a recognition that there is
 7   there's more time added to the process it seems in this
 8   process, so that is a concern.  And it's time that's, of
 9   course, significant in management as a review processes
10   or review a project to consider multiple sites, where
11   are they going to build or are they going to build at
12   all.  If the economics don't work out, that project can
13   be shelved, which is very common, so that is a concern.
14               And just for the record that the stop signs,
15   or the pauses, I will say, are now -- or the additional
16   ones are Exhibit A, which is the cooperative endeavor
17   with LED and the local government.  There could be
18   multiple, up to four, depending on if you're in the city
19   limits or not.  And then you've got the Department of
20   Revenue has to issue a letter of no objection or letter
21   of approval, and that's -- before it gets to the process
22   where it was before for the BCI to be reviewed.  So I
23   know you're aware of that.  I just mention that for the
24   record we're concerned about those additional pauses in
25   the process.
0026
 1                   So enough about processes unless we have
 2   questions.  I'll be glad to answer those.
 3                   The next point is competition for
 4   economic development.  I don't have to -- and,
 5   Mr. Pierson, you're much more aware of this than I am.
 6   I see it from a company perspective and throughout my
 7   career.  I've been a business development teams, so I
 8   see it from that perspective, so I realize you're well
 9   aware that there's competition for a very limited
10   capital within a company and also between states,
11   between countries, and as I said earlier, whether it
12   will be built at all.  It has to meet other certain
13   hurdle rate or a certain return.  So all of those items
14   are very important.
15                   The tax foundation makes -- I will not
16   quote their -- I will only reference their comments,
17   which we have in writing here.  They make the point that
18   taxes matter to business.  It's a big -- I've never said
19   that it's the only consideration in site selection, but
20   it is a significant consideration.  It also states do
21   not enact tax changes in a vacuum.  That's kind of a
22   given, too.  Whenever you make significant changes in
23   tax policy, you will -- if you treat something in one
24   place, it's kind of like a balloon that's squeezed,
25   something else pops up somewhere else, so there should
0027
 1   be some concern there.
 2                   And, also, we said for decades, as long
 3   as I've been working with the business associations,
 4   that we've always been very open to working with ITEP as
 5   long as it's considered with the entire tax structure.
 6   So we're a little concerned with the changes in just the
 7   ITEP that can affect business in capital investment
 8   decisions.
 9                   So I'll -- for decades, Louisiana has
10   been successful in using the ITEP, and speaking from
11   someone from Texas, a resident of Texas, and observing
12   people over there in business decisions, it's -- I've
13   been on the other end of it, too, that Louisiana's been
14   successful.  And I met with county judges and others,
15   and even recently.  They're very aware of what you're
16   doing.  And I'm aware that states, even local
17   governments, use not only what you're doing, but what
18   you're considering doing.  We use it against each other,
19   and you're very aware of that.
20                   One last point that I won't dwell on
21   very much, we included a comment on miscellaneous
22   capital additions, and there's a misperception that -- I
23   don't think there's a misperception in Mr. Pierson or
24   Mr. Miller, who is here, because you accurately
25   explained what an MCA is in the last BCI meeting, but we
0028
 1   include that here because the intent of an MCA is never
 2   to try to have a, for example, $60-million project and
 3   divide it by five and say each one of those projects is
 4   an MCA.  That's never the intent.  I've never even heard
 5   of that in all of the years that I've worked with this.
 6   So as the rules state, it is an accumulation of multiple
 7   projects to get to the $5-million level.  So I wish when
 8   we requested the Board to reconsider that -- and I only
 9   bring that up in case the Governor and his
10   representative were actually thinking they put that in
11   executive order because they thought that an MCA is just
12   a division of a big project to circumvent your rules.
13                   With that, we respectfully request you
14   consider the LABI comments that were presented, also the
15   presented comments that we have in more detail here.
16                   So I'll close with that.  Thank you.
17               SECRETARY PIERSON:
18                   As this dialog, anybody that may have
19   passed has something discussed that you feel you want to
20   articulate a little bit more on that topic so that it's
21   fully embedded in our analysis, it's a question to the
22   group and your opportunity to respond before we close
23   out the record today.
24                   (No response.)
25               SECRETARY PIERSON:
0029
 1                   Well, this has been enormously helpful.
 2   I know that you've spent a lot of time with it.
 3   Certainly we appreciate the analysis that's here.  Our
 4   goal is the same as your goal.  It's a vibrant economy
 5   in Louisiana that can only be happening if we are in
 6   concert with business industry providing that certainty
 7   that's necessary for a business to make investments with
 8   confidence.  It's not static.  It is a global
 9   competition.  It is a competition across America for
10   this capital, for these jobs, for these investments.
11   The number of manufacturing jobs over the last 10 years
12   has significantly decreased, 1.4-million fewer
13   manufacturing jobs today than just 10 years ago, so
14   they're very important to us.  We do prioritize this.
15   We do understand that taxation is a very import part of
16   the equation.
17                   So, again, thank you for your thoughtful
18   analysis, the input that you've provided, and we will
19   take that our best to help craft a set of rules that can
20   be navigated by a business with confidence.  And, again,
21   we have to be patient with the process.  There is a lot
22   of new here, and while we are going to have a learning
23   curve to come up, it will be part of my responsibility
24   and the department's responsibility to make sure that
25   this doesn't become a permanent climb up Mount Everest.
0030
 1   We want to do the necessary training, understanding
 2   clarifications so that it is a smooth and streamlined
 3   process.  I believe that it can be.  I know that today
 4   it's different than it was prior to June 24, but I think
 5   over time, once there's these clear understandings in a
 6   now way of doing business, that we'll get to a point
 7   where we're very efficient with it.  That's the goal.
 8   If we don't meet that goal, then I'll ask that you
 9   continue to bring that to my attention so that we can
10   continually improve until we get to that position.
11                   Thank you for your time and attention
12   today.
13                   Danielle, anything else before we close
14   the record?
15               MR. ALLISON:
16                   I have a quick question.
17               SECRETARY PIERSON:
18                   Yes.
19               MR. ALLISON:
20                   It looks like based on what we heard
21   today and received comments from LIDEA, LABI, LCA and
22   LMOGA.  Did you receive any other comments?
23               MS. CLAPINSKI:
24                   I don't think we received any written
25   comments.
0031
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   Well, we still have mail coming in today
 3   that was just delivered to the Board that can be
 4   attached to this before we close out the record, so we
 5   can't probably accurately tell you all of the input that
 6   we've had because of the mail was just delivered.  But
 7   the permanent record will reflect all of the input that
 8   we receive to include the letters from the various
 9   organizations.
10               MS. SIMS:
11                   And, Danielle, we just come to you to
12   get a copy of the permanent record?
13               MS. CLAPINSKI:
14                   Well, it's going to be at least a couple
15   of weeks we have the -- about two weeks --
16               MS. SIMS:
17                   Before we have the transcript?
18               MS. CLAPINSKI:
19                   -- before we have the transcript from
20   the court reporter.
21               MS. SIMS:
22                   But you're the point person to
23   request --
24               MS. CLAPINSKI:
25                   Yes.  If it's a public records request,
0032
 1   technically it's supposed to start in our communications
 2   division, but I'll be the one pulling all of the
 3   records.
 4               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 5                   But we do plan to aggregate the
 6   information and provide it to the Board members, in
 7   particular the chair of the rules committee and the
 8   rules committee so that the input is utilized to its
 9   fullest advantage.
10               MR. ALLISON:
11                   What about those -- are we going to be
12   able to get a copy of the records?
13               SECRETARY PIERSON:
14                   Yes.  It will be public record, and
15   we'll be happy to provide it.  You don't have to ask us
16   for a copy of what we're going to put together for the
17   rules committee.
18               MR. ALLISON:
19                   Do you know at this time if you received
20   more than just the four today?
21               MS. CLAPINSKI:
22                   Mail is delivered, so I have to see
23   what's in the mail.  We've got to separate it and see
24   what's --
25               SECRETARY PIERSON:
0033
 1                   With the holiday and such, I know mail
 2   has been stacking up, and so Danielle hasn't had a
 3   chance to go through all of that to accurately your
 4   question, but we'll be happy to, you know, share all of
 5   the input that we have.
 6               MS. LAWRENCE:
 7                   And, Danielle, I have a question.  Donna
 8   Lawrence from Denbury.  If there are projects in the
 9   pipeline, you know, that a company is looking at, what
10   is the timeline that we're jumping from pre-June to
11   post-June to have rules under which a new -- a company
12   wants to look at a new project?  How do we know where --
13               SECRETARY PIERSON:
14                   You just call LED and we'll assign a
15   project manager and we'll move you forward.  There's no
16   disparity or -- we have a new set of rules, but we know
17   how to follow those.
18               MS. LAWRENCE:
19                   Okay.
20               SECRETARY PIERSON:
21                   And we don't want to do anything that's
22   going to hold up investments.  Let me know, and we'll
23   jump right on it.
24               MS. LAWRENCE:
25                   Thank you.
0034
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   All right.  With no other comments,
 3   meeting adjourned.
 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:44 a.m.)
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
0035
 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:
 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court
 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the
 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of
 5   Commerce and Industry of the Louisiana Economic
 6   Development Corporation, do hereby certify that this
 7   meeting was reported by me in the stenotype reporting
 8   method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my
 9   personal direction and supervision, and is a true and
10   correct transcript to the best of my ability and
11   understanding;
12               That the transcript has been prepared in
13   compliance with transcript format required by statute or
14   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance
15   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as
16   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article
17   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;
18               That I am not related to counsel or to the
19   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the
20   outcome of this matter.
21
     Dated this 13th day of January, 2017.
22
23                               ___________________________
24                                 ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR
25                                 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER





			Index			MediaGroup			SourceCase			FirstName			LastName			Date			StartPage			EndPage			LinesPerPage			Complete


			1			BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY, LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - Vol. I.093603_100			PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY OF LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOP 			THE BOARD OF COMMERCE			AND INDUSTRY			12/29/2016			1			35			25			true





			Index			Timecode			TimeStamp			Temp			PageNum			LineNum			NoDisplay			Text			Native			Redact


			1									PG			1			0			false			page 1						false


			2									LN			1			1			false			 1						false


			3									LN			1			2			false			 2						false


			4									LN			1			3			false			 3						false


			5									LN			1			4			false			 4               PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR						false


			6									LN			1			5			false			 5       THE BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY						false


			7									LN			1			6			false			 6                     OF THE						false


			8									LN			1			7			false			 7   LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION						false


			9									LN			1			8			false			 8                     HELD AT						false


			10									LN			1			9			false			 9                LASALLE BUILDING						false


			11									LN			1			10			false			10              617 NORTH 3RD STREET						false


			12									LN			1			11			false			11                  LABELLE ROOM						false


			13									LN			1			12			false			12             BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA						false


			14									LN			1			13			false			13        ON THE 29TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016						false


			15									LN			1			14			false			14            COMMENCING AT 10:04 A.M.						false


			16									LN			1			15			false			15						false


			17									LN			1			16			false			16						false


			18									LN			1			17			false			17						false


			19									LN			1			18			false			18     REPORTED BY:  ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR						false


			20									LN			1			19			false			19						false


			21									LN			1			20			false			20						false


			22									LN			1			21			false			21						false


			23									LN			1			22			false			22						false


			24									LN			1			23			false			23						false


			25									LN			1			24			false			24						false


			26									LN			1			25			false			25						false


			27									PG			2			0			false			page 2						false


			28									LN			2			1			false			 1   Appearances of Board Members Present:						false


			29									LN			2			2			false			 2   Charles R. "Robby" Miller						false


			30									LN			2			3			false			 3						false


			31									LN			2			4			false			 4   Staff members present:						false


			32									LN			2			5			false			 5   Kristen Cheng						false


			33									LN			2			5			false			     Danielle Clapinski						false


			34									LN			2			6			false			 6   Frank Favaloro						false


			35									LN			2			6			false			     Secretary Don Pierson						false


			36									LN			2			7			false			 7						false


			37									LN			2			8			false			 8						false


			38									LN			2			9			false			 9						false


			39									LN			2			10			false			10						false


			40									LN			2			11			false			11						false


			41									LN			2			12			false			12						false


			42									LN			2			13			false			13						false


			43									LN			2			14			false			14						false


			44									LN			2			15			false			15						false


			45									LN			2			16			false			16						false


			46									LN			2			17			false			17						false


			47									LN			2			18			false			18						false


			48									LN			2			19			false			19						false


			49									LN			2			20			false			20						false


			50									LN			2			21			false			21						false


			51									LN			2			22			false			22						false


			52									LN			2			23			false			23						false


			53									LN			2			24			false			24						false


			54									LN			2			25			false			25						false


			55									PG			3			0			false			page 3						false


			56									LN			3			1			false			 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			57									LN			3			2			false			 2                   Thank you, everyone, for your attendance						false


			58									LN			3			3			false			 3   today.  I know that there's been a lot of effort that's						false


			59									LN			3			4			false			 4   gone into preparing your comments that the department						false


			60									LN			3			5			false			 5   will receive today relative to the executive order and						false


			61									LN			3			6			false			 6   the changes for the Industrial Tax Exemption Program, so						false


			62									LN			3			7			false			 7   I know a lot of thought has gone into this.  We						false


			63									LN			3			8			false			 8   appreciate this as constructive, I won't say, dialog,						false


			64									LN			3			9			false			 9   because you're going to provide us input today, and						false


			65									LN			3			10			false			10   Danielle will talk about those rules of engagement.						false


			66									LN			3			11			false			11                   We're not here to debate the merits of						false


			67									LN			3			12			false			12   your suggestions, but certainly we want to convey 100						false


			68									LN			3			13			false			13   percent, A, appreciation of this important input, and						false


			69									LN			3			14			false			14   then, B, give it full consideration as we continue to						false


			70									LN			3			15			false			15   develop the rules on behalf of the Governor and the						false


			71									LN			3			16			false			16   Commerce & Industry Board.						false


			72									LN			3			17			false			17                   So with that, I would like to ask one of						false


			73									LN			3			18			false			18   our C&I Board members, the Tangipahoa Parish President,						false


			74									LN			3			19			false			19   if he would like to make any other additional remarks						false


			75									LN			3			20			false			20               MR. MILLER:						false


			76									LN			3			21			false			21                   I would just echo what Secretary Pierson						false


			77									LN			3			22			false			22   said that we thank you so much and this has been a very						false


			78									LN			3			23			false			23   large effort.  As y'all all know, my comments at the						false


			79									LN			3			24			false			24   beginning of this were the uncertainty is what causes us						false


			80									LN			3			25			false			25   most heartache, and I think we're close to the						false


			81									PG			4			0			false			page 4						false


			82									LN			4			1			false			 1   uncertainty being gone.  You might not like it 100						false


			83									LN			4			2			false			 2   percent, but at least we know what we're dealing with						false


			84									LN			4			3			false			 3   now and we appreciate the effort and hopefully your						false


			85									LN			4			4			false			 4   comments are going to make us even a little bit better						false


			86									LN			4			5			false			 5   in what we put out there.  And as a Board member here,						false


			87									LN			4			6			false			 6   I'll tell you we're anxiously waiting for this so we can						false


			88									LN			4			7			false			 7   get this process continued through and finished.						false


			89									LN			4			8			false			 8               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			90									LN			4			9			false			 9                   And in closing, we did not tactically						false


			91									LN			4			10			false			10   select the brief time period between Christmas and New						false


			92									LN			4			11			false			11   Years.  It's hard to gather an audience, but what we						false


			93									LN			4			12			false			12   were we actually doing is trying to get the speed of						false


			94									LN			4			13			false			13   execution to get the rules established and get business						false


			95									LN			4			14			false			14   back on a field of certainty, so that is just the way						false


			96									LN			4			15			false			15   that the calendar happened to dictate the availability						false


			97									LN			4			16			false			16   and the compliance with the APA and those types of						false


			98									LN			4			17			false			17   things.  So thank you for that, and I will now yield to						false


			99									LN			4			18			false			18   Danielle.						false


			100									LN			4			19			false			19               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			101									LN			4			20			false			20                   Okay.  Good morning.  For those of y'all						false


			102									LN			4			21			false			21   who don't know, I'm Danielle Clapinski, staff attorney						false


			103									LN			4			22			false			22   here at LED.  I have the pleasure, or misfortune,						false


			104									LN			4			23			false			23   depending on the day, of working with the ITEP program.						false


			105									LN			4			24			false			24                   This is the public hearing for the rules						false


			106									LN			4			25			false			25   that were published in the 2016 edition of the register.						false


			107									PG			5			0			false			page 5						false


			108									LN			5			1			false			 1   We do have a court reporter here today, so I would ask						false


			109									LN			5			2			false			 2   that when it's your opportunity to give your comment,						false


			110									LN			5			3			false			 3   please state your name, who you represent and speak --						false


			111									LN			5			4			false			 4   we don't have a microphone, so please speak as loudly						false


			112									LN			5			5			false			 5   without shouting as you can.  I don't think there are						false


			113									LN			5			6			false			 6   too many in here that are soft spoken, so we should be						false


			114									LN			5			7			false			 7   okay.						false


			115									LN			5			8			false			 8                   I don't intend to limit anybody to any						false


			116									LN			5			9			false			 9   set amount of minutes or time at this point in time,						false


			117									LN			5			10			false			10   other than, you know, we do have a good many people here						false


			118									LN			5			11			false			11   that would like to speak, so please be mindful that						false


			119									LN			5			12			false			12   everyone gets an opportunity to speak.  If you have						false


			120									LN			5			13			false			13   submitted written comments, and I've received, I think,						false


			121									LN			5			14			false			14   three or four different versions, please, if you can						false


			122									LN			5			15			false			15   sort of summarize those.  I don't know that we need to						false


			123									LN			5			16			false			16   go through each one because the written comments are						false


			124									LN			5			17			false			17   already part of the record for comments on these rules.						false


			125									LN			5			18			false			18                   At that, whoever -- I don't think						false


			126									LN			5			19			false			19   there's any formalized process on where we start.  We						false


			127									LN			5			20			false			20   can just start on one side and go around if you'd like.						false


			128									LN			5			21			false			21               MR. ZAGOTTI:						false


			129									LN			5			22			false			22                   My name is Matt Zagotti from Director of						false


			130									LN			5			23			false			23   Ryan, LLC.  My main purpose here was to just kind of						false


			131									LN			5			24			false			24   observe and see what's going on next.						false


			132									LN			5			25			false			25               MR. ALLISON:						false


			133									PG			6			0			false			page 6						false


			134									LN			6			1			false			 1                   I'm Don Allison with Advantous						false


			135									LN			6			2			false			 2   Consulting and member of LIDEA Board of Directors, and						false


			136									LN			6			3			false			 3   Rhonda also with LABI.  I think she submitted some						false


			137									LN			6			4			false			 4   comments.  I don't plan to make any, but I'll defer to						false


			138									LN			6			5			false			 5   Rhonda.						false


			139									LN			6			6			false			 6               MS. REAP-CURIEL:						false


			140									LN			6			7			false			 7                   Rhonda Reap-Curiel with CENCOR						false


			141									LN			6			8			false			 8   Consulting representing LIDEA as government legislative						false


			142									LN			6			9			false			 9   committee chair.  I did submit written comments						false


			143									LN			6			10			false			10   yesterday, and I just want to highlight a couple of						false


			144									LN			6			11			false			11   those points.  I know other people around the table						false


			145									LN			6			12			false			12   probably have some similar points or the ones that I						false


			146									LN			6			13			false			13   feel are similar I want to skip over, but when it comes						false


			147									LN			6			14			false			14   to MCA renewals, there's still some confusion out there						false


			148									LN			6			15			false			15   because it appears that even though the second executive						false


			149									LN			6			16			false			16   order provided some clarity on those existing contracts						false


			150									LN			6			17			false			17   with advances that are in renewal state, it does not						false


			151									LN			6			18			false			18   refer to specifically those MCAs which don't have an						false


			152									LN			6			19			false			19   advance tied to them.  So we would like some clarity						false


			153									LN			6			20			false			20   written into the rules so that those companies who may						false


			154									LN			6			21			false			21   not have been attending the meetings to see that the						false


			155									LN			6			22			false			22   last two meetings they've actually been approved,						false


			156									LN			6			23			false			23   understand how they are to be treated and the commitment						false


			157									LN			6			24			false			24   is still there from the State.						false


			158									LN			6			25			false			25                   We have suggested some language to be						false


			159									PG			7			0			false			page 7						false


			160									LN			7			1			false			 1   added as additional point in that Section 501, and then						false


			161									LN			7			2			false			 2   we also added some additional -- an additional sentence						false


			162									LN			7			3			false			 3   to 501(b) that we would hope you would consider.						false


			163									LN			7			4			false			 4                   And then under 503(d)(2), it's really						false


			164									LN			7			5			false			 5   more questions than comments because there is concern						false


			165									LN			7			6			false			 6   that the local governmental entities that require						false


			166									LN			7			7			false			 7   resolution, there may be difficulty in them actually						false


			167									LN			7			8			false			 8   holding a hearing or getting on the agenda.  If they						false


			168									LN			7			9			false			 9   just choose to ignore you, they have the luxury to do						false


			169									LN			7			10			false			10   that.  There's nothing that requires that side to be						false


			170									LN			7			11			false			11   responsive back to the business.  It seems that the onus						false


			171									LN			7			12			false			12   is all on the business.  They're required to go get						false


			172									LN			7			13			false			13   these things, but there's nothing that says, "Look, the						false


			173									LN			7			14			false			14   government has to be responsive back to them."						false


			174									LN			7			15			false			15                   And that section does only say						false


			175									LN			7			16			false			16   resolutions, and we know the sheriff is a letter, but we						false


			176									LN			7			17			false			17   think that should be plain and written out.						false


			177									LN			7			18			false			18                   And then with 503(e)(2)(a), we'd ask						false


			178									LN			7			19			false			19   that you include "relocation to another parish."  I						false


			179									LN			7			20			false			20   believe Ms. Malone brought that up in the actual						false


			180									LN			7			21			false			21   discussion of the rules at the Board meeting, and if						false


			181									LN			7			22			false			22   you're in the Delta Region or you're in a rural parish,						false


			182									LN			7			23			false			23   it is a challenge sometimes to keep your existing						false


			183									LN			7			24			false			24   industry there, and if this is a tool that we can use to						false


			184									LN			7			25			false			25   keep those companies there and make them just as						false


			185									PG			8			0			false			page 8						false


			186									LN			8			1			false			 1   efficient and profitable by having them move to a more						false


			187									LN			8			2			false			 2   metro area where maybe there's greater workforce or						false


			188									LN			8			3			false			 3   something of that nature, we would like the ability to						false


			189									LN			8			4			false			 4   do that.  We know that with relocation to another parish						false


			190									LN			8			5			false			 5   within the state there's some limitations, but the						false


			191									LN			8			6			false			 6   limitation doesn't include them getting the full benefit						false


			192									LN			8			7			false			 7   of a new facility, and that's something that will be a						false


			193									LN			8			8			false			 8   disadvantage to those parishes where these companies						false


			194									LN			8			9			false			 9   already exist.						false


			195									LN			8			10			false			10                   And with that, I'll just let you have						false


			196									LN			8			11			false			11   the rest of my comments.  I don't know if you had any						false


			197									LN			8			12			false			12   questions of if you even had time to read them.						false


			198									LN			8			13			false			13               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			199									LN			8			14			false			14                   I did.  I don't have any questions on						false


			200									LN			8			15			false			15   what your comments state.						false


			201									LN			8			16			false			16               MS. REAP-CURIEL:						false


			202									LN			8			17			false			17                   And, I'm sorry.  On 503(j), I know this						false


			203									LN			8			18			false			18   was brought up in the actual rules committee meeting						false


			204									LN			8			19			false			19   about the fees if the Board determines you're not						false


			205									LN			8			20			false			20   meeting the definition of manufacturer or they say, you						false


			206									LN			8			21			false			21   get to your hearing for your application approval and						false


			207									LN			8			22			false			22   they decide, "Oh, well, that equipment doesn't count,"						false


			208									LN			8			23			false			23   you know, your fees are based on what you're submitting						false


			209									LN			8			24			false			24   and requesting in value to be accepted, and we'd like to						false


			210									LN			8			25			false			25   see some mechanism that would allow a return of fees for						false


			211									PG			9			0			false			page 9						false


			212									LN			9			1			false			 1   excluded, of course, keeping, you know, the						false


			213									LN			9			2			false			 2   administrative fee.  And if there's an appeal process,						false


			214									LN			9			3			false			 3   what that would be, we'd like to see that spelled out as						false


			215									LN			9			4			false			 4   well.						false


			216									LN			9			5			false			 5               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			217									LN			9			6			false			 6                   Rhonda, just one before we leave this,						false


			218									LN			9			7			false			 7   if you would just articulate a little bit more for me						false


			219									LN			9			8			false			 8   the parish-to-parish move and no net new -- the concept						false


			220									LN			9			9			false			 9   typically is the state seeks new investment and new job						false


			221									LN			9			10			false			10   creation.  How does a lateral move across the parish						false


			222									LN			9			11			false			11   line qualify for abatement of tax?						false


			223									LN			9			12			false			12               MS. REAP-CURIEL:						false


			224									LN			9			13			false			13                   A company is getting ready to do an						false


			225									LN			9			14			false			14   expansion, they --						false


			226									LN			9			15			false			15               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			227									LN			9			16			false			16                   It would be with that new component.						false


			228									LN			9			17			false			17               MS. REAP-CURIEL:						false


			229									LN			9			18			false			18                   -- may move within a state, and because						false


			230									LN			9			19			false			19   they could go build a bigger, larger facility as opposed						false


			231									LN			9			20			false			20   to doing an addition at an older facility, that would be						false


			232									LN			9			21			false			21   more attractive because they can get the full benefit of						false


			233									LN			9			22			false			22   a newer, expanded facility as opposed to a partial on						false


			234									LN			9			23			false			23   the addition.  So there should be some mechanism that						false


			235									LN			9			24			false			24   allows the parish to work to try to keep those companies						false


			236									LN			9			25			false			25   that are looking to expand or add additional lines to						false


			237									PG			10			0			false			page 10						false


			238									LN			10			1			false			 1   their facility within that parish.						false


			239									LN			10			2			false			 2               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			240									LN			10			3			false			 3                   Okay.						false


			241									LN			10			4			false			 4               MR. ALLISON:						false


			242									LN			10			5			false			 5                   I want to mention one thing before we						false


			243									LN			10			6			false			 6   leave the voir dire comments.						false


			244									LN			10			7			false			 7                   We did a letter to Industry & Commerce						false


			245									LN			10			8			false			 8   about some definitions, three definitions, of the term						false


			246									LN			10			9			false			 9   "jobs".  Two of them deal with the definition of the						false


			247									LN			10			10			false			10   term "jobs," and they're very important.  The one I want						false


			248									LN			10			11			false			11   to point out is the one that deals with the definition						false


			249									LN			10			12			false			12   of the term "manufacturer."  It's a real bedrock concept						false


			250									LN			10			13			false			13   that is the foundation for much of this program.  This						false


			251									LN			10			14			false			14   is obviously exemptions that are allowed to						false


			252									LN			10			15			false			15   manufacturing establishments, and the term						false


			253									LN			10			16			false			16   "manufacturing establishment" is defined in the						false


			254									LN			10			17			false			17   constitution, and the rules try to define the term						false


			255									LN			10			18			false			18   "manufacturing," and so, you know, the language that --						false


			256									LN			10			19			false			19   actually the words appear three or four times between						false


			257									LN			10			20			false			20   the rules committee, the Board, et cetera, and what was						false


			258									LN			10			21			false			21   published.  I think the language ended up with few too						false


			259									LN			10			22			false			22   many words and some confusing language, and so we have						false


			260									LN			10			23			false			23   some suggestions there about the language that you've						false


			261									LN			10			24			false			24   proposed contains the language from the constitution						false


			262									LN			10			25			false			25   plus some other language, and the additional language is						false


			263									PG			11			0			false			page 11						false


			264									LN			11			1			false			 1   what we're having a problem with, and right now it would						false


			265									LN			11			2			false			 2   say that the definition is -- how does it read?  I'm						false


			266									LN			11			3			false			 3   sorry.  Here we go.						false


			267									LN			11			4			false			 4                   The definition says -- used the term "by						false


			268									LN			11			5			false			 5   means of mass production or custom fabrication and						false


			269									LN			11			6			false			 6   machinery," and some of those words, we think, are						false


			270									LN			11			7			false			 7   confusing, especially in the order that they read, so						false


			271									LN			11			8			false			 8   our suggestion would be to change it to "mass or custom						false


			272									LN			11			9			false			 9   production, machinery or labor to create -- for use," et						false


			273									LN			11			10			false			10   cetera.  So, anyway, there may be some more discussion						false


			274									LN			11			11			false			11   today about the definition of manufacturing because it's						false


			275									LN			11			12			false			12   so important to the program, and I wanted to point out						false


			276									LN			11			13			false			13   that our comment deals with that same definition.						false


			277									LN			11			14			false			14               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			278									LN			11			15			false			15                   If I can just point out, Don, I think						false


			279									LN			11			16			false			16   she knows who you are, but if you do comment again, make						false


			280									LN			11			17			false			17   sure that you identify yourself again so we have on						false


			281									LN			11			18			false			18   record who made the comments.						false


			282									LN			11			19			false			19               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			283									LN			11			20			false			20                   And I also want to be confident that						false


			284									LN			11			21			false			21   everyone has signed in.  I know a number of you have						false


			285									LN			11			22			false			22   passed.  As long as we've got a reflection of your						false


			286									LN			11			23			false			23   presence today, that's important.  Thank you.						false


			287									LN			11			24			false			24               MR. PATTERSON:						false


			288									LN			11			25			false			25                   I'm Jim Patterson with the Louisiana						false


			289									PG			12			0			false			page 12						false


			290									LN			12			1			false			 1   Association of Business and Industry.  I serve as the						false


			291									LN			12			2			false			 2   director of LABI's Taxation and Finance Council.  I						false


			292									LN			12			3			false			 3   appreciate the opportunity to speak to you-all about the						false


			293									LN			12			4			false			 4   rules of the proposed, and I appreciate the						false


			294									LN			12			5			false			 5   consideration that our comments are going to be given.						false


			295									LN			12			6			false			 6                   I essentially will stand on my comment,						false


			296									LN			12			7			false			 7   but I do want to just highlight a few of them as						false


			297									LN			12			8			false			 8   particular concerns of ours starting with Louisiana						false


			298									LN			12			9			false			 9   residential requirement.  The feeling in part of many of						false


			299									LN			12			10			false			10   our members is that this issue was dealt with back in						false


			300									LN			12			11			false			11   the late 1990s when there was an attempt to install what						false


			301									LN			12			12			false			12   was commonly known as Rule 1 to require that Louisiana						false


			302									LN			12			13			false			13   workers be used in construction work in these kinds of						false


			303									LN			12			14			false			14   projects, and, of course, found Rule 1 to be						false


			304									LN			12			15			false			15   constitutional already.  I think the issue of defining						false


			305									LN			12			16			false			16   manufacturing and the problems attended with that has						false


			306									LN			12			17			false			17   already been sufficiently addressed.						false


			307									LN			12			18			false			18                   We do believe that some confusion, at						false


			308									LN			12			19			false			19   least our perception, some confusion made elicit from						false


			309									LN			12			20			false			20   parts 2, 3 and 5 in Section 503, where there is						false


			310									LN			12			21			false			21   discussion of the Exhibits A and B and the particular						false


			311									LN			12			22			false			22   control that will operate with one versus the other.						false


			312									LN			12			23			false			23   There seems to be a retention of the right of BCI to						false


			313									LN			12			24			false			24   rule regarding these contracts, but there's also some						false


			314									LN			12			25			false			25   suggestion that what happens with regard to Exhibit B is						false


			315									PG			13			0			false			page 13						false


			316									LN			13			1			false			 1   kind of final say as well, and I think that some						false


			317									LN			13			2			false			 2   clarification may be in order there.						false


			318									LN			13			3			false			 3                   We still and the general business						false


			319									LN			13			4			false			 4   community feels that there needs to be some clear						false


			320									LN			13			5			false			 5   direction as to what resolution is at our disposal if a						false


			321									LN			13			6			false			 6   particular local entity does not issue the resolution						false


			322									LN			13			7			false			 7   required under Exhibit B.  This is not anywhere within						false


			323									LN			13			8			false			 8   the rules found addressed, and we think there needs to						false


			324									LN			13			9			false			 9   be some clarity there.						false


			325									LN			13			10			false			10                   And then finally we strongly urge that						false


			326									LN			13			11			false			11   consideration be given to the forms that you-all						false


			327									LN			13			12			false			12   routinely utilize for these applications, ensuring that						false


			328									LN			13			13			false			13   any terms that are utilized on the forms are, in fact,						false


			329									LN			13			14			false			14   addressed in the rules so that essentially the business						false


			330									LN			13			15			false			15   people know what's being talked about when we're trying						false


			331									LN			13			16			false			16   to comply with the requirements.						false


			332									LN			13			17			false			17                   Again, thank you very much for allowing						false


			333									LN			13			18			false			18   us the opportunity and for coming in, you know, on the						false


			334									LN			13			19			false			19   holiday.  Some of us did, but nevertheless, appreciate						false


			335									LN			13			20			false			20   the fact that you're here, particularly you,						false


			336									LN			13			21			false			21   Mr. Secretary Pierson.  Thanks.						false


			337									LN			13			22			false			22               MR. BOWSER:						false


			338									LN			13			23			false			23                   Greg Bowser, President of Louisiana						false


			339									LN			13			24			false			24   Chemical Association.  Some brief comments, and I know a						false


			340									LN			13			25			false			25   number of the guys here will cover the same things that						false


			341									PG			14			0			false			page 14						false


			342									LN			14			1			false			 1   I'm concerned about.						false


			343									LN			14			2			false			 2                   The Louisiana Chemical Association						false


			344									LN			14			3			false			 3   represents 60 chemical manufacturers that operate at 100						false


			345									LN			14			4			false			 4   different locations throughout the State of Louisiana.						false


			346									LN			14			5			false			 5   We also represent different suppliers in our chemical						false


			347									LN			14			6			false			 6   industry alliance, which amounts to over 850 Louisiana						false


			348									LN			14			7			false			 7   companies, and their particular concern, and I'll						false


			349									LN			14			8			false			 8   mention what the real concern for them would be, we						false


			350									LN			14			9			false			 9   understand that these rules are an attempt to comply						false


			351									LN			14			10			false			10   with the Governor's executive order and the changes to						false


			352									LN			14			11			false			11   the Industrial Tax Exemption Program.  Our concern is						false


			353									LN			14			12			false			12   that the changes may make the program so cumbersome to						false


			354									LN			14			13			false			13   use, it may be a detriment to the economic development,						false


			355									LN			14			14			false			14   especially to the chemical industry.						false


			356									LN			14			15			false			15                   One of the big things that you do is you						false


			357									LN			14			16			false			16   eliminate miscellaneous capital expenditure.  By doing						false


			358									LN			14			17			false			17   that, it's going to go to some other plant that may have						false


			359									LN			14			18			false			18   to do upgrades and do some things to be competitive and						false


			360									LN			14			19			false			19   stay.  We're concerned about that.						false


			361									LN			14			20			false			20                   The other thing that concerns us when we						false


			362									LN			14			21			false			21   look at it, there's no consideration for the retention						false


			363									LN			14			22			false			22   of jobs or contract jobs, and this is why LCI folks are						false


			364									LN			14			23			false			23   often -- these people are full-time workers.  They may						false


			365									LN			14			24			false			24   be at one plant today and at another plant next week, so						false


			366									LN			14			25			false			25   they're full-time workers, and I don't think there's						false


			367									PG			15			0			false			page 15						false


			368									LN			15			1			false			 1   consideration for any of that, so we would like to see						false


			369									LN			15			2			false			 2   that done.						false


			370									LN			15			3			false			 3                   The other thing that concerns us is the						false


			371									LN			15			4			false			 4   cooperative endeavor agreements.  All of a sudden we are						false


			372									LN			15			5			false			 5   going to have to go and make those with several						false


			373									LN			15			6			false			 6   different taxing authorities, and so that's a concern						false


			374									LN			15			7			false			 7   when you start talking about confidentiality and you						false


			375									LN			15			8			false			 8   start talking about your public-trade company						false


			376									LN			15			9			false			 9   information, that has an opportunity to get out and						false


			377									LN			15			10			false			10   cause you some problems with respect to stock prices and						false


			378									LN			15			11			false			11   investments.						false


			379									LN			15			12			false			12                   Under rules, our members are required to						false


			380									LN			15			13			false			13   negotiate with so many different authorities.  One of						false


			381									LN			15			14			false			14   the things that concerns us is that unlike any other						false


			382									LN			15			15			false			15   states, you have to go and negotiate with all of these						false


			383									LN			15			16			false			16   taxing authorities, and then after you've put all of						false


			384									LN			15			17			false			17   your information out there under negotiation, you still						false


			385									LN			15			18			false			18   have to come back to the state and there's a decision						false


			386									LN			15			19			false			19   made at that point whether or not you'll get the						false


			387									LN			15			20			false			20   exemption, whether or not what you've offered and what						false


			388									LN			15			21			false			21   you've negotiated is felt to be fair.  To our knowledge,						false


			389									LN			15			22			false			22   there is no other state that does that.  That puts us in						false


			390									LN			15			23			false			23   a very difficult situation for the State of Louisiana						false


			391									LN			15			24			false			24   from a competitive standpoint.						false


			392									LN			15			25			false			25                   So I'll stop there.  I'll let the others						false


			393									PG			16			0			false			page 16						false


			394									LN			16			1			false			 1   make some comments.  I know some are going to have the						false


			395									LN			16			2			false			 2   same comments, but I'll be glad to provide to you in						false


			396									LN			16			3			false			 3   writing some of the comments that we have.						false


			397									LN			16			4			false			 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			398									LN			16			5			false			 5                   And I will point out just to your one						false


			399									LN			16			6			false			 6   comment, our definition of jobs does allow for contract						false


			400									LN			16			7			false			 7   labor, so that, at least, is addressed in the rules.						false


			401									LN			16			8			false			 8               MR. BAKER:						false


			402									LN			16			9			false			 9                   Danielle, when you say "contract labor,"						false


			403									LN			16			10			false			10   are you saying the type of contract labor that is at the						false


			404									LN			16			11			false			11   plant on a constant basis, are you talking about						false


			405									LN			16			12			false			12   contract labor that I think Mr. Bowser is talking about						false


			406									LN			16			13			false			13   that is in and out of plants at periods of time, meaning						false


			407									LN			16			14			false			14   that you've got a project that -- and my point I'm						false


			408									LN			16			15			false			15   trying to make is on the application, there was						false


			409									LN			16			16			false			16   construction jobs, for example; okay, well, you may --						false


			410									LN			16			17			false			17   those construction jobs may be on one project at one						false


			411									LN			16			18			false			18   particular time, but may -- those same jobs may be on						false


			412									LN			16			19			false			19   another project at another time, so you have this						false


			413									LN			16			20			false			20   consistent or continuous, I should say, injection of						false


			414									LN			16			21			false			21   contract labor going in and out of those plants all of						false


			415									LN			16			22			false			22   time and that's -- I was listening to your comments, and						false


			416									LN			16			23			false			23   that's the kind of thing that I think that I believe the						false


			417									LN			16			24			false			24   rule changes have not really addressed or how it can be						false


			418									LN			16			25			false			25   very hurtful because of -- you know, it could be some						false


			419									PG			17			0			false			page 17						false


			420									LN			17			1			false			 1   curtailment of projects because -- and those people are						false


			421									LN			17			2			false			 2   going to be the ones that are really going to get hurt.						false


			422									LN			17			3			false			 3               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			423									LN			17			4			false			 4                   My understanding, and, you know,						false


			424									LN			17			5			false			 5   obviously -- and I should have said this from the						false


			425									LN			17			6			false			 6   beginning.  All of the these comments will go back to						false


			426									LN			17			7			false			 7   the Board, the rules committee and the Board.  They have						false


			427									LN			17			8			false			 8   to make a determination if they're going to choose to						false


			428									LN			17			9			false			 9   make any changes based upon the comments received.						false


			429									LN			17			10			false			10   That's not LED.						false


			430									LN			17			11			false			11                   But my understanding of the Governor's						false


			431									LN			17			12			false			12   thought was that it would -- he wants to make it a						false


			432									LN			17			13			false			13   job-creation-type program, so I would say -- and there						false


			433									LN			17			14			false			14   will be requirements, my understanding, through the CEA						false


			434									LN			17			15			false			15   with the department and the locals that you maintain a						false


			435									LN			17			16			false			16   job level.  So, to me, that would indicate that whether						false


			436									LN			17			17			false			17   it's employed directly or through contract labor, that						false


			437									LN			17			18			false			18   they would need to be on site at a regular -- maybe not						false


			438									LN			17			19			false			19   every day, but on some sort of regular basis.  So if						false


			439									LN			17			20			false			20   that's to your point, then I understand your concern.						false


			440									LN			17			21			false			21               MR. BOWSER:						false


			441									LN			17			22			false			22                   Well, the concern further is that --						false


			442									LN			17			23			false			23   Greg Bowser again -- is that when you say they have to						false


			443									LN			17			24			false			24   be on site for a particular time, and nobody knows what						false


			444									LN			17			25			false			25   that is.  Sometimes those guys are there for two months;						false


			445									PG			18			0			false			page 18						false


			446									LN			18			1			false			 1   sometimes they're there for six months.  We have some						false


			447									LN			18			2			false			 2   contract employees that's been at some of our plants for						false


			448									LN			18			3			false			 3   years.						false


			449									LN			18			4			false			 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			450									LN			18			5			false			 5                   Sure.  And I don't know that it's						false


			451									LN			18			6			false			 6   necessarily tied to the employees as it is tied to the						false


			452									LN			18			7			false			 7   job.  So if it's a contract engineer that comes in on						false


			453									LN			18			8			false			 8   some of these facilities, and that individual person						false


			454									LN			18			9			false			 9   changes out -- I mean, I know all of our job programs,						false


			455									LN			18			10			false			10   and I would imagine that when we're looking at jobs for						false


			456									LN			18			11			false			11   this program as well, that it's going to be the job, not						false


			457									LN			18			12			false			12   the employee, so that -- and I understand your concerns,						false


			458									LN			18			13			false			13   but I think the Governor's intent -- and certainly, you						false


			459									LN			18			14			false			14   know, these comments will all go back and we'll take a						false


			460									LN			18			15			false			15   look at these in that scope -- was that it would be a						false


			461									LN			18			16			false			16   job creation program, so I think having that same job						false


			462									LN			18			17			false			17   potentially count at multiple sites would be						false


			463									LN			18			18			false			18   problematic.						false


			464									LN			18			19			false			19               MR. BOWSER:						false


			465									LN			18			20			false			20                   Danielle, I'll just give one quick						false


			466									LN			18			21			false			21   example, and, you know, it's from a chemical plant						false


			467									LN			18			22			false			22   perspective, it's like you're in your automobile, you						false


			468									LN			18			23			false			23   know, if something is wrong with your car, you take it						false


			469									LN			18			24			false			24   to a mechanic.  Okay?  You pay that mechanic to do that.						false


			470									LN			18			25			false			25   Well, that mechanic has a full-time job.  When you						false


			471									PG			19			0			false			page 19						false


			472									LN			19			1			false			 1   leave, there's other people there that come to that						false


			473									LN			19			2			false			 2   mechanic, so that's a full-time job.  In the chemical						false


			474									LN			19			3			false			 3   industry, what happens many times is that, you know,						false


			475									LN			19			4			false			 4   Plant A may have this going on today and workers come in						false


			476									LN			19			5			false			 5   and take care of that.  They may be there six months or						false


			477									LN			19			6			false			 6   sometimes two or three years.  That same employee then						false


			478									LN			19			7			false			 7   has to go to the plant next door to do the same work, so						false


			479									LN			19			8			false			 8   that's a full-time job, and we believe under these						false


			480									LN			19			9			false			 9   circumstances, we don't get credit.  They say that's not						false


			481									LN			19			10			false			10   a full-time job that's counted.  And that's our concern.						false


			482									LN			19			11			false			11               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			483									LN			19			12			false			12                   I understand.  Thank you.						false


			484									LN			19			13			false			13               MR. GOLLEHER:						false


			485									LN			19			14			false			14                   Brent Golleher, Louisiana Mid-Continent						false


			486									LN			19			15			false			15   Oil & Gas Association.  Comments were submitted						false


			487									LN			19			16			false			16   yesterday, and at the appropriate time, I will defer to						false


			488									LN			19			17			false			17   Jeff and Bob to get more detail on some of the issues						false


			489									LN			19			18			false			18   that as a property tax committee, we've kind of drawn up						false


			490									LN			19			19			false			19   and come up with.						false


			491									LN			19			20			false			20               MS. SIMS:						false


			492									LN			19			21			false			21                   Phyllis Sims, Kean Miller.  I don't have						false


			493									LN			19			22			false			22   any comments.						false


			494									LN			19			23			false			23               MS. LAWRENCE:						false


			495									LN			19			24			false			24                   Donna Lawrence with Denbury Resources.						false


			496									LN			19			25			false			25   Observing.						false


			497									PG			20			0			false			page 20						false


			498									LN			20			1			false			 1               MR. BAKER:						false


			499									LN			20			2			false			 2                   Joe Baker with Louisiana Mid-Continent						false


			500									LN			20			3			false			 3   Oil & Gas Association.  I chair the property tax						false


			501									LN			20			4			false			 4   committee, and thanks for providing some time for us to						false


			502									LN			20			5			false			 5   make these comments.						false


			503									LN			20			6			false			 6                   I'm going to defer to Bob in just a						false


			504									LN			20			7			false			 7   minute, but what I would like to ask is, the question						false


			505									LN			20			8			false			 8   is, once you receive all of these comments, what's the						false


			506									LN			20			9			false			 9   mechanics going forward after that for the legal process						false


			507									LN			20			10			false			10   and how does that work?						false


			508									LN			20			11			false			11               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			509									LN			20			12			false			12                   Sure.  So generally speaking, this						false


			510									LN			20			13			false			13   program is a little bit different because the Board						false


			511									LN			20			14			false			14   itself makes the rules, whereas most of our other						false


			512									LN			20			15			false			15   programs, it's LED.  All of the written comments, as						false


			513									LN			20			16			false			16   well as the transcript from this hearing today, will go						false


			514									LN			20			17			false			17   to the Board, and it will be up to them where they want						false


			515									LN			20			18			false			18   to start with the rules committee and then -- they have						false


			516									LN			20			19			false			19   to make a decision on whether any changes are going to						false


			517									LN			20			20			false			20   be made based upon these comments.  At that point, there						false


			518									LN			20			21			false			21   will be a determination of whether those changes are						false


			519									LN			20			22			false			22   substantive or not substantive, if they choose to make						false


			520									LN			20			23			false			23   some.  Non-substantive changes would not slow down the						false


			521									LN			20			24			false			24   rules process.  Substantive changes basically starts it						false


			522									LN			20			25			false			25   over again.  We'd have to issue another Notice of Intent						false


			523									PG			21			0			false			page 21						false


			524									LN			21			1			false			 1   or a potpourri, but either of those has another public						false


			525									LN			21			2			false			 2   hearing requirement where we might have to do this all						false


			526									LN			21			3			false			 3   again.						false


			527									LN			21			4			false			 4                   If they decide to not make any changes,						false


			528									LN			21			5			false			 5   then notice would be given to the oversight committees,						false


			529									LN			21			6			false			 6   which are the commerce committees of the house and the						false


			530									LN			21			7			false			 7   senate, and they have 30 days to call their own						false


			531									LN			21			8			false			 8   oversight hearing should they choose to.						false


			532									LN			21			9			false			 9                   If they do not choose to, then those 30						false


			533									LN			21			10			false			10   days run and the department can proceed with final						false


			534									LN			21			11			false			11   promulgation of the rules.  So it really depends from						false


			535									LN			21			12			false			12   here on what the Board decides to do with the comments						false


			536									LN			21			13			false			13   they receive.						false


			537									LN			21			14			false			14               MR. BAKER:						false


			538									LN			21			15			false			15                   And if the oversight committees were to						false


			539									LN			21			16			false			16   suggest accepting some of these proposed --						false


			540									LN			21			17			false			17               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			541									LN			21			18			false			18                   It's an up or down at that point.  It's						false


			542									LN			21			19			false			19   an approval or non approval of the rules.  And I do						false


			543									LN			21			20			false			20   believe there may be the opportunity for the Governor to						false


			544									LN			21			21			false			21   override the oversight committees as well.  So there are						false


			545									LN			21			22			false			22   a lot of different scenarios on where we could go from						false


			546									LN			21			23			false			23   here.						false


			547									LN			21			24			false			24               MR. BAKER:						false


			548									LN			21			25			false			25                   Understood.  Thank you.						false


			549									PG			22			0			false			page 22						false


			550									LN			22			1			false			 1               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			551									LN			22			2			false			 2                   No problem.						false


			552									LN			22			3			false			 3               MR. BAKER:						false


			553									LN			22			4			false			 4                   So I'm going to defer to Bob.						false


			554									LN			22			5			false			 5               MS. SIMS:						false


			555									LN			22			6			false			 6                   Let me ask before we get there.						false


			556									LN			22			7			false			 7                   Phyllis Sims, for the record.						false


			557									LN			22			8			false			 8                   Danielle, are these going to the Board						false


			558									LN			22			9			false			 9   for the February meeting then?						false


			559									LN			22			10			false			10               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			560									LN			22			11			false			11                   I don't know that.  That is the next						false


			561									LN			22			12			false			12   regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board.  If they chose						false


			562									LN			22			13			false			13   to call a meeting prior to then to address it, that is						false


			563									LN			22			14			false			14   the Board's right, and it would obviously be properly						false


			564									LN			22			15			false			15   noticed in accordance with open meetings and all of						false


			565									LN			22			16			false			16   those.						false


			566									LN			22			17			false			17               MR. BAKER:						false


			567									LN			22			18			false			18                   Now I'll defer to Bob.						false


			568									LN			22			19			false			19               MR. ADAIR:						false


			569									LN			22			20			false			20                   Bob Adair representing Louisiana						false


			570									LN			22			21			false			21   Mid-Continent Oil & Gas Association and I'm a member of						false


			571									LN			22			22			false			22   the Property Tax Committee and I will not read into						false


			572									LN			22			23			false			23   record the letter that we submitted.  I will use it as a						false


			573									LN			22			24			false			24   guide.						false


			574									LN			22			25			false			25                   Before I get to that, I thought I would						false


			575									PG			23			0			false			page 23						false


			576									LN			23			1			false			 1   give you a little perspective of where we're coming						false


			577									LN			23			2			false			 2   from.  I have significant depth of experience of about						false


			578									LN			23			3			false			 3   15 states and I've worked in about 25 states, so and I						false


			579									LN			23			4			false			 4   realize that LED has worked with other -- you compare						false


			580									LN			23			5			false			 5   other states and how they compete, too.  I also chair						false


			581									LN			23			6			false			 6   the Project Tax Committee of the Texas Taxpayers and						false


			582									LN			23			7			false			 7   Research Association, which is the primary tax committee						false


			583									LN			23			8			false			 8   in Texas -- or tax group in Texas, and also chair the						false


			584									LN			23			9			false			 9   Tax Relief for Pollution Control Properties with the						false


			585									LN			23			10			false			10   Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.						false


			586									LN			23			11			false			11                   Okay.  I'll jump into -- the first point						false


			587									LN			23			12			false			12   is LMOGA supports LABI's presented testimony and their						false


			588									LN			23			13			false			13   written submittal, but so we don't want to duplicate						false


			589									LN			23			14			false			14   what they're doing, but I'll cover some high-level						false


			590									LN			23			15			false			15   comments.  We acknowledge that the proposed rules are						false


			591									LN			23			16			false			16   intended to align with the executive orders from the						false


			592									LN			23			17			false			17   Governor, but I'll also say that -- so our comments are						false


			593									LN			23			18			false			18   more high-level rather than detailed from LABI.						false


			594									LN			23			19			false			19                   So the first point, and I won't dwell on						false


			595									LN			23			20			false			20   this, but for the record, I will mention that						false


			596									LN			23			21			false			21   environmental grades -- upgrades have, of course, been						false


			597									LN			23			22			false			22   excluded in the executive orders, and we want to point						false


			598									LN			23			23			false			23   out that whereas Number 4 said that most -- had						false


			599									LN			23			24			false			24   misstated that most states do not have this.  Well, in						false


			600									LN			23			25			false			25   fact, 27 states exempt pollution control property						false


			601									PG			24			0			false			page 24						false


			602									LN			24			1			false			 1   permanently, and another six, I believe, has a						false


			603									LN			24			2			false			 2   significant reduction in value.  For example, Illinois,						false


			604									LN			24			3			false			 3   that I work in, they have, it's like, one and a half						false


			605									LN			24			4			false			 4   percent of depreciated value is the value on pollution						false


			606									LN			24			5			false			 5   control, so it's significantly discounted.  Some states						false


			607									LN			24			6			false			 6   also have a lower tax rate for pollution control.						false


			608									LN			24			7			false			 7                   In Texas, since -- and I'll discuss						false


			609									LN			24			8			false			 8   Texas several times because Texas has been brought up in						false


			610									LN			24			9			false			 9   both the Governor's and other discussions because we're						false


			611									LN			24			10			false			10   trying to be more like Texas.  So in regarding						false


			612									LN			24			11			false			11   environmental upgrades, Texas -- the Texas legislature,						false


			613									LN			24			12			false			12   their intent was basically they do not want to require						false


			614									LN			24			13			false			13   businesses to pay property taxes to government on top of						false


			615									LN			24			14			false			14   unfunded mandates by the same government, although there						false


			616									LN			24			15			false			15   might be a difference in state versus local level, but						false


			617									LN			24			16			false			16   they intentionally did not want to put that burden on						false


			618									LN			24			17			false			17   businesses.						false


			619									LN			24			18			false			18                   The second point that we have concerns						false


			620									LN			24			19			false			19   about is the process, and I won't go through this -- we						false


			621									LN			24			20			false			20   have significant questions that remain on how this is						false


			622									LN			24			21			false			21   going to work out.  A couple people asked about the						false


			623									LN			24			22			false			22   logistics, how this is going to work, and I know LED is						false


			624									LN			24			23			false			23   still working it and I've heard different parishes are						false


			625									LN			24			24			false			24   working how that's going to work, but I do want to						false


			626									LN			24			25			false			25   observe that, of course, the current process you've got						false


			627									PG			25			0			false			page 25						false


			628									LN			25			1			false			 1   just the Board of Commerce & Industry and the Governor,						false


			629									LN			25			2			false			 2   which we call a -- I'll call it a pause or in process,						false


			630									LN			25			3			false			 3   significant amount of time that it's going to take some						false


			631									LN			25			4			false			 4   decision.  In the attachment to what we submitted, I						false


			632									LN			25			5			false			 5   have what we call "stop signs."  That's not intended to						false


			633									LN			25			6			false			 6   offend anyone.  It's just a recognition that there is						false


			634									LN			25			7			false			 7   there's more time added to the process it seems in this						false


			635									LN			25			8			false			 8   process, so that is a concern.  And it's time that's, of						false


			636									LN			25			9			false			 9   course, significant in management as a review processes						false


			637									LN			25			10			false			10   or review a project to consider multiple sites, where						false


			638									LN			25			11			false			11   are they going to build or are they going to build at						false


			639									LN			25			12			false			12   all.  If the economics don't work out, that project can						false


			640									LN			25			13			false			13   be shelved, which is very common, so that is a concern.						false


			641									LN			25			14			false			14               And just for the record that the stop signs,						false


			642									LN			25			15			false			15   or the pauses, I will say, are now -- or the additional						false


			643									LN			25			16			false			16   ones are Exhibit A, which is the cooperative endeavor						false


			644									LN			25			17			false			17   with LED and the local government.  There could be						false


			645									LN			25			18			false			18   multiple, up to four, depending on if you're in the city						false


			646									LN			25			19			false			19   limits or not.  And then you've got the Department of						false


			647									LN			25			20			false			20   Revenue has to issue a letter of no objection or letter						false


			648									LN			25			21			false			21   of approval, and that's -- before it gets to the process						false


			649									LN			25			22			false			22   where it was before for the BCI to be reviewed.  So I						false


			650									LN			25			23			false			23   know you're aware of that.  I just mention that for the						false


			651									LN			25			24			false			24   record we're concerned about those additional pauses in						false


			652									LN			25			25			false			25   the process.						false


			653									PG			26			0			false			page 26						false


			654									LN			26			1			false			 1                   So enough about processes unless we have						false


			655									LN			26			2			false			 2   questions.  I'll be glad to answer those.						false


			656									LN			26			3			false			 3                   The next point is competition for						false


			657									LN			26			4			false			 4   economic development.  I don't have to -- and,						false


			658									LN			26			5			false			 5   Mr. Pierson, you're much more aware of this than I am.						false


			659									LN			26			6			false			 6   I see it from a company perspective and throughout my						false


			660									LN			26			7			false			 7   career.  I've been a business development teams, so I						false


			661									LN			26			8			false			 8   see it from that perspective, so I realize you're well						false


			662									LN			26			9			false			 9   aware that there's competition for a very limited						false


			663									LN			26			10			false			10   capital within a company and also between states,						false


			664									LN			26			11			false			11   between countries, and as I said earlier, whether it						false


			665									LN			26			12			false			12   will be built at all.  It has to meet other certain						false


			666									LN			26			13			false			13   hurdle rate or a certain return.  So all of those items						false


			667									LN			26			14			false			14   are very important.						false


			668									LN			26			15			false			15                   The tax foundation makes -- I will not						false


			669									LN			26			16			false			16   quote their -- I will only reference their comments,						false


			670									LN			26			17			false			17   which we have in writing here.  They make the point that						false


			671									LN			26			18			false			18   taxes matter to business.  It's a big -- I've never said						false


			672									LN			26			19			false			19   that it's the only consideration in site selection, but						false


			673									LN			26			20			false			20   it is a significant consideration.  It also states do						false


			674									LN			26			21			false			21   not enact tax changes in a vacuum.  That's kind of a						false


			675									LN			26			22			false			22   given, too.  Whenever you make significant changes in						false


			676									LN			26			23			false			23   tax policy, you will -- if you treat something in one						false


			677									LN			26			24			false			24   place, it's kind of like a balloon that's squeezed,						false


			678									LN			26			25			false			25   something else pops up somewhere else, so there should						false


			679									PG			27			0			false			page 27						false


			680									LN			27			1			false			 1   be some concern there.						false


			681									LN			27			2			false			 2                   And, also, we said for decades, as long						false


			682									LN			27			3			false			 3   as I've been working with the business associations,						false


			683									LN			27			4			false			 4   that we've always been very open to working with ITEP as						false


			684									LN			27			5			false			 5   long as it's considered with the entire tax structure.						false


			685									LN			27			6			false			 6   So we're a little concerned with the changes in just the						false


			686									LN			27			7			false			 7   ITEP that can affect business in capital investment						false


			687									LN			27			8			false			 8   decisions.						false


			688									LN			27			9			false			 9                   So I'll -- for decades, Louisiana has						false


			689									LN			27			10			false			10   been successful in using the ITEP, and speaking from						false


			690									LN			27			11			false			11   someone from Texas, a resident of Texas, and observing						false


			691									LN			27			12			false			12   people over there in business decisions, it's -- I've						false


			692									LN			27			13			false			13   been on the other end of it, too, that Louisiana's been						false


			693									LN			27			14			false			14   successful.  And I met with county judges and others,						false


			694									LN			27			15			false			15   and even recently.  They're very aware of what you're						false


			695									LN			27			16			false			16   doing.  And I'm aware that states, even local						false


			696									LN			27			17			false			17   governments, use not only what you're doing, but what						false


			697									LN			27			18			false			18   you're considering doing.  We use it against each other,						false


			698									LN			27			19			false			19   and you're very aware of that.						false


			699									LN			27			20			false			20                   One last point that I won't dwell on						false


			700									LN			27			21			false			21   very much, we included a comment on miscellaneous						false


			701									LN			27			22			false			22   capital additions, and there's a misperception that -- I						false


			702									LN			27			23			false			23   don't think there's a misperception in Mr. Pierson or						false


			703									LN			27			24			false			24   Mr. Miller, who is here, because you accurately						false


			704									LN			27			25			false			25   explained what an MCA is in the last BCI meeting, but we						false


			705									PG			28			0			false			page 28						false


			706									LN			28			1			false			 1   include that here because the intent of an MCA is never						false


			707									LN			28			2			false			 2   to try to have a, for example, $60-million project and						false


			708									LN			28			3			false			 3   divide it by five and say each one of those projects is						false


			709									LN			28			4			false			 4   an MCA.  That's never the intent.  I've never even heard						false


			710									LN			28			5			false			 5   of that in all of the years that I've worked with this.						false


			711									LN			28			6			false			 6   So as the rules state, it is an accumulation of multiple						false


			712									LN			28			7			false			 7   projects to get to the $5-million level.  So I wish when						false


			713									LN			28			8			false			 8   we requested the Board to reconsider that -- and I only						false


			714									LN			28			9			false			 9   bring that up in case the Governor and his						false


			715									LN			28			10			false			10   representative were actually thinking they put that in						false


			716									LN			28			11			false			11   executive order because they thought that an MCA is just						false


			717									LN			28			12			false			12   a division of a big project to circumvent your rules.						false


			718									LN			28			13			false			13                   With that, we respectfully request you						false


			719									LN			28			14			false			14   consider the LABI comments that were presented, also the						false


			720									LN			28			15			false			15   presented comments that we have in more detail here.						false


			721									LN			28			16			false			16                   So I'll close with that.  Thank you.						false


			722									LN			28			17			false			17               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			723									LN			28			18			false			18                   As this dialog, anybody that may have						false


			724									LN			28			19			false			19   passed has something discussed that you feel you want to						false


			725									LN			28			20			false			20   articulate a little bit more on that topic so that it's						false


			726									LN			28			21			false			21   fully embedded in our analysis, it's a question to the						false


			727									LN			28			22			false			22   group and your opportunity to respond before we close						false


			728									LN			28			23			false			23   out the record today.						false


			729									LN			28			24			false			24                   (No response.)						false


			730									LN			28			25			false			25               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			731									PG			29			0			false			page 29						false


			732									LN			29			1			false			 1                   Well, this has been enormously helpful.						false


			733									LN			29			2			false			 2   I know that you've spent a lot of time with it.						false


			734									LN			29			3			false			 3   Certainly we appreciate the analysis that's here.  Our						false


			735									LN			29			4			false			 4   goal is the same as your goal.  It's a vibrant economy						false


			736									LN			29			5			false			 5   in Louisiana that can only be happening if we are in						false


			737									LN			29			6			false			 6   concert with business industry providing that certainty						false


			738									LN			29			7			false			 7   that's necessary for a business to make investments with						false


			739									LN			29			8			false			 8   confidence.  It's not static.  It is a global						false


			740									LN			29			9			false			 9   competition.  It is a competition across America for						false


			741									LN			29			10			false			10   this capital, for these jobs, for these investments.						false


			742									LN			29			11			false			11   The number of manufacturing jobs over the last 10 years						false


			743									LN			29			12			false			12   has significantly decreased, 1.4-million fewer						false


			744									LN			29			13			false			13   manufacturing jobs today than just 10 years ago, so						false


			745									LN			29			14			false			14   they're very important to us.  We do prioritize this.						false


			746									LN			29			15			false			15   We do understand that taxation is a very import part of						false


			747									LN			29			16			false			16   the equation.						false


			748									LN			29			17			false			17                   So, again, thank you for your thoughtful						false


			749									LN			29			18			false			18   analysis, the input that you've provided, and we will						false


			750									LN			29			19			false			19   take that our best to help craft a set of rules that can						false


			751									LN			29			20			false			20   be navigated by a business with confidence.  And, again,						false


			752									LN			29			21			false			21   we have to be patient with the process.  There is a lot						false


			753									LN			29			22			false			22   of new here, and while we are going to have a learning						false


			754									LN			29			23			false			23   curve to come up, it will be part of my responsibility						false


			755									LN			29			24			false			24   and the department's responsibility to make sure that						false


			756									LN			29			25			false			25   this doesn't become a permanent climb up Mount Everest.						false


			757									PG			30			0			false			page 30						false


			758									LN			30			1			false			 1   We want to do the necessary training, understanding						false


			759									LN			30			2			false			 2   clarifications so that it is a smooth and streamlined						false


			760									LN			30			3			false			 3   process.  I believe that it can be.  I know that today						false


			761									LN			30			4			false			 4   it's different than it was prior to June 24, but I think						false


			762									LN			30			5			false			 5   over time, once there's these clear understandings in a						false


			763									LN			30			6			false			 6   now way of doing business, that we'll get to a point						false


			764									LN			30			7			false			 7   where we're very efficient with it.  That's the goal.						false


			765									LN			30			8			false			 8   If we don't meet that goal, then I'll ask that you						false


			766									LN			30			9			false			 9   continue to bring that to my attention so that we can						false


			767									LN			30			10			false			10   continually improve until we get to that position.						false


			768									LN			30			11			false			11                   Thank you for your time and attention						false


			769									LN			30			12			false			12   today.						false


			770									LN			30			13			false			13                   Danielle, anything else before we close						false


			771									LN			30			14			false			14   the record?						false


			772									LN			30			15			false			15               MR. ALLISON:						false


			773									LN			30			16			false			16                   I have a quick question.						false


			774									LN			30			17			false			17               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			775									LN			30			18			false			18                   Yes.						false


			776									LN			30			19			false			19               MR. ALLISON:						false


			777									LN			30			20			false			20                   It looks like based on what we heard						false


			778									LN			30			21			false			21   today and received comments from LIDEA, LABI, LCA and						false


			779									LN			30			22			false			22   LMOGA.  Did you receive any other comments?						false


			780									LN			30			23			false			23               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			781									LN			30			24			false			24                   I don't think we received any written						false


			782									LN			30			25			false			25   comments.						false


			783									PG			31			0			false			page 31						false


			784									LN			31			1			false			 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			785									LN			31			2			false			 2                   Well, we still have mail coming in today						false


			786									LN			31			3			false			 3   that was just delivered to the Board that can be						false


			787									LN			31			4			false			 4   attached to this before we close out the record, so we						false


			788									LN			31			5			false			 5   can't probably accurately tell you all of the input that						false


			789									LN			31			6			false			 6   we've had because of the mail was just delivered.  But						false


			790									LN			31			7			false			 7   the permanent record will reflect all of the input that						false


			791									LN			31			8			false			 8   we receive to include the letters from the various						false


			792									LN			31			9			false			 9   organizations.						false


			793									LN			31			10			false			10               MS. SIMS:						false


			794									LN			31			11			false			11                   And, Danielle, we just come to you to						false


			795									LN			31			12			false			12   get a copy of the permanent record?						false


			796									LN			31			13			false			13               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			797									LN			31			14			false			14                   Well, it's going to be at least a couple						false


			798									LN			31			15			false			15   of weeks we have the -- about two weeks --						false


			799									LN			31			16			false			16               MS. SIMS:						false


			800									LN			31			17			false			17                   Before we have the transcript?						false


			801									LN			31			18			false			18               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			802									LN			31			19			false			19                   -- before we have the transcript from						false


			803									LN			31			20			false			20   the court reporter.						false


			804									LN			31			21			false			21               MS. SIMS:						false


			805									LN			31			22			false			22                   But you're the point person to						false


			806									LN			31			23			false			23   request --						false


			807									LN			31			24			false			24               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			808									LN			31			25			false			25                   Yes.  If it's a public records request,						false


			809									PG			32			0			false			page 32						false


			810									LN			32			1			false			 1   technically it's supposed to start in our communications						false


			811									LN			32			2			false			 2   division, but I'll be the one pulling all of the						false


			812									LN			32			3			false			 3   records.						false


			813									LN			32			4			false			 4               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			814									LN			32			5			false			 5                   But we do plan to aggregate the						false


			815									LN			32			6			false			 6   information and provide it to the Board members, in						false


			816									LN			32			7			false			 7   particular the chair of the rules committee and the						false


			817									LN			32			8			false			 8   rules committee so that the input is utilized to its						false


			818									LN			32			9			false			 9   fullest advantage.						false


			819									LN			32			10			false			10               MR. ALLISON:						false


			820									LN			32			11			false			11                   What about those -- are we going to be						false


			821									LN			32			12			false			12   able to get a copy of the records?						false


			822									LN			32			13			false			13               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			823									LN			32			14			false			14                   Yes.  It will be public record, and						false


			824									LN			32			15			false			15   we'll be happy to provide it.  You don't have to ask us						false


			825									LN			32			16			false			16   for a copy of what we're going to put together for the						false


			826									LN			32			17			false			17   rules committee.						false


			827									LN			32			18			false			18               MR. ALLISON:						false


			828									LN			32			19			false			19                   Do you know at this time if you received						false


			829									LN			32			20			false			20   more than just the four today?						false


			830									LN			32			21			false			21               MS. CLAPINSKI:						false


			831									LN			32			22			false			22                   Mail is delivered, so I have to see						false


			832									LN			32			23			false			23   what's in the mail.  We've got to separate it and see						false


			833									LN			32			24			false			24   what's --						false


			834									LN			32			25			false			25               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			835									PG			33			0			false			page 33						false


			836									LN			33			1			false			 1                   With the holiday and such, I know mail						false


			837									LN			33			2			false			 2   has been stacking up, and so Danielle hasn't had a						false


			838									LN			33			3			false			 3   chance to go through all of that to accurately your						false


			839									LN			33			4			false			 4   question, but we'll be happy to, you know, share all of						false


			840									LN			33			5			false			 5   the input that we have.						false


			841									LN			33			6			false			 6               MS. LAWRENCE:						false


			842									LN			33			7			false			 7                   And, Danielle, I have a question.  Donna						false


			843									LN			33			8			false			 8   Lawrence from Denbury.  If there are projects in the						false


			844									LN			33			9			false			 9   pipeline, you know, that a company is looking at, what						false


			845									LN			33			10			false			10   is the timeline that we're jumping from pre-June to						false


			846									LN			33			11			false			11   post-June to have rules under which a new -- a company						false


			847									LN			33			12			false			12   wants to look at a new project?  How do we know where --						false


			848									LN			33			13			false			13               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			849									LN			33			14			false			14                   You just call LED and we'll assign a						false


			850									LN			33			15			false			15   project manager and we'll move you forward.  There's no						false


			851									LN			33			16			false			16   disparity or -- we have a new set of rules, but we know						false


			852									LN			33			17			false			17   how to follow those.						false


			853									LN			33			18			false			18               MS. LAWRENCE:						false


			854									LN			33			19			false			19                   Okay.						false


			855									LN			33			20			false			20               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			856									LN			33			21			false			21                   And we don't want to do anything that's						false


			857									LN			33			22			false			22   going to hold up investments.  Let me know, and we'll						false


			858									LN			33			23			false			23   jump right on it.						false


			859									LN			33			24			false			24               MS. LAWRENCE:						false


			860									LN			33			25			false			25                   Thank you.						false


			861									PG			34			0			false			page 34						false


			862									LN			34			1			false			 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:						false


			863									LN			34			2			false			 2                   All right.  With no other comments,						false


			864									LN			34			3			false			 3   meeting adjourned.						false


			865									LN			34			4			false			 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:44 a.m.)						false


			866									LN			34			5			false			 5						false


			867									LN			34			6			false			 6						false


			868									LN			34			7			false			 7						false


			869									LN			34			8			false			 8						false


			870									LN			34			9			false			 9						false


			871									LN			34			10			false			10						false


			872									LN			34			11			false			11						false


			873									LN			34			12			false			12						false


			874									LN			34			13			false			13						false


			875									LN			34			14			false			14						false


			876									LN			34			15			false			15						false


			877									LN			34			16			false			16						false


			878									LN			34			17			false			17						false


			879									LN			34			18			false			18						false


			880									LN			34			19			false			19						false


			881									LN			34			20			false			20						false


			882									LN			34			21			false			21						false


			883									LN			34			22			false			22						false


			884									LN			34			23			false			23						false


			885									LN			34			24			false			24						false


			886									LN			34			25			false			25						false


			887									PG			35			0			false			page 35						false


			888									LN			35			1			false			 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:						false


			889									LN			35			2			false			 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court						false


			890									LN			35			3			false			 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the						false


			891									LN			35			4			false			 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of						false


			892									LN			35			5			false			 5   Commerce and Industry of the Louisiana Economic						false


			893									LN			35			6			false			 6   Development Corporation, do hereby certify that this						false


			894									LN			35			7			false			 7   meeting was reported by me in the stenotype reporting						false


			895									LN			35			8			false			 8   method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my						false


			896									LN			35			9			false			 9   personal direction and supervision, and is a true and						false


			897									LN			35			10			false			10   correct transcript to the best of my ability and						false


			898									LN			35			11			false			11   understanding;						false


			899									LN			35			12			false			12               That the transcript has been prepared in						false


			900									LN			35			13			false			13   compliance with transcript format required by statute or						false


			901									LN			35			14			false			14   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance						false


			902									LN			35			15			false			15   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as						false


			903									LN			35			16			false			16   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article						false


			904									LN			35			17			false			17   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;						false


			905									LN			35			18			false			18               That I am not related to counsel or to the						false


			906									LN			35			19			false			19   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the						false


			907									LN			35			20			false			20   outcome of this matter.						false


			908									LN			35			21			false			21						false


			909									LN			35			21			false			     Dated this 13th day of January, 2017.						false


			910									LN			35			22			false			22						false


			911									LN			35			23			false			23                               ___________________________						false


			912									LN			35			24			false			24                                 ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR						false


			913									LN			35			25			false			25                                 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER						false





			Index			MediaGroup			ID			FullPath			Duration			Offset









0001
 1   
 2   
 3   
 4               PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR
 5       THE BOARD OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY
 6                     OF THE
 7   LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
 8                     HELD AT
 9                LASALLE BUILDING
10              617 NORTH 3RD STREET
11                  LABELLE ROOM
12             BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA
13        ON THE 29TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016
14            COMMENCING AT 10:04 A.M.
15   
16   
17   
18     REPORTED BY:  ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR
19   
20   
21   
22   
23   
24   
25   
0002
 1   Appearances of Board Members Present:
 2   Charles R. "Robby" Miller
 3   
 4   Staff members present:
 5   Kristen Cheng
     Danielle Clapinski
 6   Frank Favaloro
     Secretary Don Pierson
 7   
 8   
 9   
10   
11   
12   
13   
14   
15   
16   
17   
18   
19   
20   
21   
22   
23   
24   
25   
0003
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   Thank you, everyone, for your attendance
 3   today.  I know that there's been a lot of effort that's
 4   gone into preparing your comments that the department
 5   will receive today relative to the executive order and
 6   the changes for the Industrial Tax Exemption Program, so
 7   I know a lot of thought has gone into this.  We
 8   appreciate this as constructive, I won't say, dialog,
 9   because you're going to provide us input today, and
10   Danielle will talk about those rules of engagement.
11                   We're not here to debate the merits of
12   your suggestions, but certainly we want to convey 100
13   percent, A, appreciation of this important input, and
14   then, B, give it full consideration as we continue to
15   develop the rules on behalf of the Governor and the
16   Commerce & Industry Board.
17                   So with that, I would like to ask one of
18   our C&I Board members, the Tangipahoa Parish President,
19   if he would like to make any other additional remarks
20               MR. MILLER:
21                   I would just echo what Secretary Pierson
22   said that we thank you so much and this has been a very
23   large effort.  As y'all all know, my comments at the
24   beginning of this were the uncertainty is what causes us
25   most heartache, and I think we're close to the
0004
 1   uncertainty being gone.  You might not like it 100
 2   percent, but at least we know what we're dealing with
 3   now and we appreciate the effort and hopefully your
 4   comments are going to make us even a little bit better
 5   in what we put out there.  And as a Board member here,
 6   I'll tell you we're anxiously waiting for this so we can
 7   get this process continued through and finished.
 8               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 9                   And in closing, we did not tactically
10   select the brief time period between Christmas and New
11   Years.  It's hard to gather an audience, but what we
12   were we actually doing is trying to get the speed of
13   execution to get the rules established and get business
14   back on a field of certainty, so that is just the way
15   that the calendar happened to dictate the availability
16   and the compliance with the APA and those types of
17   things.  So thank you for that, and I will now yield to
18   Danielle.
19               MS. CLAPINSKI:
20                   Okay.  Good morning.  For those of y'all
21   who don't know, I'm Danielle Clapinski, staff attorney
22   here at LED.  I have the pleasure, or misfortune,
23   depending on the day, of working with the ITEP program.
24                   This is the public hearing for the rules
25   that were published in the 2016 edition of the register.
0005
 1   We do have a court reporter here today, so I would ask
 2   that when it's your opportunity to give your comment,
 3   please state your name, who you represent and speak --
 4   we don't have a microphone, so please speak as loudly
 5   without shouting as you can.  I don't think there are
 6   too many in here that are soft spoken, so we should be
 7   okay.
 8                   I don't intend to limit anybody to any
 9   set amount of minutes or time at this point in time,
10   other than, you know, we do have a good many people here
11   that would like to speak, so please be mindful that
12   everyone gets an opportunity to speak.  If you have
13   submitted written comments, and I've received, I think,
14   three or four different versions, please, if you can
15   sort of summarize those.  I don't know that we need to
16   go through each one because the written comments are
17   already part of the record for comments on these rules.
18                   At that, whoever -- I don't think
19   there's any formalized process on where we start.  We
20   can just start on one side and go around if you'd like.
21               MR. ZAGOTTI:
22                   My name is Matt Zagotti from Director of
23   Ryan, LLC.  My main purpose here was to just kind of
24   observe and see what's going on next.
25               MR. ALLISON:
0006
 1                   I'm Don Allison with Advantous
 2   Consulting and member of LIDEA Board of Directors, and
 3   Rhonda also with LABI.  I think she submitted some
 4   comments.  I don't plan to make any, but I'll defer to
 5   Rhonda.
 6               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
 7                   Rhonda Reap-Curiel with CENCOR
 8   Consulting representing LIDEA as government legislative
 9   committee chair.  I did submit written comments
10   yesterday, and I just want to highlight a couple of
11   those points.  I know other people around the table
12   probably have some similar points or the ones that I
13   feel are similar I want to skip over, but when it comes
14   to MCA renewals, there's still some confusion out there
15   because it appears that even though the second executive
16   order provided some clarity on those existing contracts
17   with advances that are in renewal state, it does not
18   refer to specifically those MCAs which don't have an
19   advance tied to them.  So we would like some clarity
20   written into the rules so that those companies who may
21   not have been attending the meetings to see that the
22   last two meetings they've actually been approved,
23   understand how they are to be treated and the commitment
24   is still there from the State.
25                   We have suggested some language to be
0007
 1   added as additional point in that Section 501, and then
 2   we also added some additional -- an additional sentence
 3   to 501(b) that we would hope you would consider.
 4                   And then under 503(d)(2), it's really
 5   more questions than comments because there is concern
 6   that the local governmental entities that require
 7   resolution, there may be difficulty in them actually
 8   holding a hearing or getting on the agenda.  If they
 9   just choose to ignore you, they have the luxury to do
10   that.  There's nothing that requires that side to be
11   responsive back to the business.  It seems that the onus
12   is all on the business.  They're required to go get
13   these things, but there's nothing that says, "Look, the
14   government has to be responsive back to them."
15                   And that section does only say
16   resolutions, and we know the sheriff is a letter, but we
17   think that should be plain and written out.
18                   And then with 503(e)(2)(a), we'd ask
19   that you include "relocation to another parish."  I
20   believe Ms. Malone brought that up in the actual
21   discussion of the rules at the Board meeting, and if
22   you're in the Delta Region or you're in a rural parish,
23   it is a challenge sometimes to keep your existing
24   industry there, and if this is a tool that we can use to
25   keep those companies there and make them just as
0008
 1   efficient and profitable by having them move to a more
 2   metro area where maybe there's greater workforce or
 3   something of that nature, we would like the ability to
 4   do that.  We know that with relocation to another parish
 5   within the state there's some limitations, but the
 6   limitation doesn't include them getting the full benefit
 7   of a new facility, and that's something that will be a
 8   disadvantage to those parishes where these companies
 9   already exist.
10                   And with that, I'll just let you have
11   the rest of my comments.  I don't know if you had any
12   questions of if you even had time to read them.
13               MS. CLAPINSKI:
14                   I did.  I don't have any questions on
15   what your comments state.
16               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
17                   And, I'm sorry.  On 503(j), I know this
18   was brought up in the actual rules committee meeting
19   about the fees if the Board determines you're not
20   meeting the definition of manufacturer or they say, you
21   get to your hearing for your application approval and
22   they decide, "Oh, well, that equipment doesn't count,"
23   you know, your fees are based on what you're submitting
24   and requesting in value to be accepted, and we'd like to
25   see some mechanism that would allow a return of fees for
0009
 1   excluded, of course, keeping, you know, the
 2   administrative fee.  And if there's an appeal process,
 3   what that would be, we'd like to see that spelled out as
 4   well.
 5               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 6                   Rhonda, just one before we leave this,
 7   if you would just articulate a little bit more for me
 8   the parish-to-parish move and no net new -- the concept
 9   typically is the state seeks new investment and new job
10   creation.  How does a lateral move across the parish
11   line qualify for abatement of tax?
12               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
13                   A company is getting ready to do an
14   expansion, they --
15               SECRETARY PIERSON:
16                   It would be with that new component.
17               MS. REAP-CURIEL:
18                   -- may move within a state, and because
19   they could go build a bigger, larger facility as opposed
20   to doing an addition at an older facility, that would be
21   more attractive because they can get the full benefit of
22   a newer, expanded facility as opposed to a partial on
23   the addition.  So there should be some mechanism that
24   allows the parish to work to try to keep those companies
25   that are looking to expand or add additional lines to
0010
 1   their facility within that parish.
 2               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 3                   Okay.
 4               MR. ALLISON:
 5                   I want to mention one thing before we
 6   leave the voir dire comments.
 7                   We did a letter to Industry & Commerce
 8   about some definitions, three definitions, of the term
 9   "jobs".  Two of them deal with the definition of the
10   term "jobs," and they're very important.  The one I want
11   to point out is the one that deals with the definition
12   of the term "manufacturer."  It's a real bedrock concept
13   that is the foundation for much of this program.  This
14   is obviously exemptions that are allowed to
15   manufacturing establishments, and the term
16   "manufacturing establishment" is defined in the
17   constitution, and the rules try to define the term
18   "manufacturing," and so, you know, the language that --
19   actually the words appear three or four times between
20   the rules committee, the Board, et cetera, and what was
21   published.  I think the language ended up with few too
22   many words and some confusing language, and so we have
23   some suggestions there about the language that you've
24   proposed contains the language from the constitution
25   plus some other language, and the additional language is
0011
 1   what we're having a problem with, and right now it would
 2   say that the definition is -- how does it read?  I'm
 3   sorry.  Here we go.
 4                   The definition says -- used the term "by
 5   means of mass production or custom fabrication and
 6   machinery," and some of those words, we think, are
 7   confusing, especially in the order that they read, so
 8   our suggestion would be to change it to "mass or custom
 9   production, machinery or labor to create -- for use," et
10   cetera.  So, anyway, there may be some more discussion
11   today about the definition of manufacturing because it's
12   so important to the program, and I wanted to point out
13   that our comment deals with that same definition.
14               MS. CLAPINSKI:
15                   If I can just point out, Don, I think
16   she knows who you are, but if you do comment again, make
17   sure that you identify yourself again so we have on
18   record who made the comments.
19               SECRETARY PIERSON:
20                   And I also want to be confident that
21   everyone has signed in.  I know a number of you have
22   passed.  As long as we've got a reflection of your
23   presence today, that's important.  Thank you.
24               MR. PATTERSON:
25                   I'm Jim Patterson with the Louisiana
0012
 1   Association of Business and Industry.  I serve as the
 2   director of LABI's Taxation and Finance Council.  I
 3   appreciate the opportunity to speak to you-all about the
 4   rules of the proposed, and I appreciate the
 5   consideration that our comments are going to be given.
 6                   I essentially will stand on my comment,
 7   but I do want to just highlight a few of them as
 8   particular concerns of ours starting with Louisiana
 9   residential requirement.  The feeling in part of many of
10   our members is that this issue was dealt with back in
11   the late 1990s when there was an attempt to install what
12   was commonly known as Rule 1 to require that Louisiana
13   workers be used in construction work in these kinds of
14   projects, and, of course, found Rule 1 to be
15   constitutional already.  I think the issue of defining
16   manufacturing and the problems attended with that has
17   already been sufficiently addressed.
18                   We do believe that some confusion, at
19   least our perception, some confusion made elicit from
20   parts 2, 3 and 5 in Section 503, where there is
21   discussion of the Exhibits A and B and the particular
22   control that will operate with one versus the other.
23   There seems to be a retention of the right of BCI to
24   rule regarding these contracts, but there's also some
25   suggestion that what happens with regard to Exhibit B is
0013
 1   kind of final say as well, and I think that some
 2   clarification may be in order there.
 3                   We still and the general business
 4   community feels that there needs to be some clear
 5   direction as to what resolution is at our disposal if a
 6   particular local entity does not issue the resolution
 7   required under Exhibit B.  This is not anywhere within
 8   the rules found addressed, and we think there needs to
 9   be some clarity there.
10                   And then finally we strongly urge that
11   consideration be given to the forms that you-all
12   routinely utilize for these applications, ensuring that
13   any terms that are utilized on the forms are, in fact,
14   addressed in the rules so that essentially the business
15   people know what's being talked about when we're trying
16   to comply with the requirements.
17                   Again, thank you very much for allowing
18   us the opportunity and for coming in, you know, on the
19   holiday.  Some of us did, but nevertheless, appreciate
20   the fact that you're here, particularly you,
21   Mr. Secretary Pierson.  Thanks.
22               MR. BOWSER:
23                   Greg Bowser, President of Louisiana
24   Chemical Association.  Some brief comments, and I know a
25   number of the guys here will cover the same things that
0014
 1   I'm concerned about.
 2                   The Louisiana Chemical Association
 3   represents 60 chemical manufacturers that operate at 100
 4   different locations throughout the State of Louisiana.
 5   We also represent different suppliers in our chemical
 6   industry alliance, which amounts to over 850 Louisiana
 7   companies, and their particular concern, and I'll
 8   mention what the real concern for them would be, we
 9   understand that these rules are an attempt to comply
10   with the Governor's executive order and the changes to
11   the Industrial Tax Exemption Program.  Our concern is
12   that the changes may make the program so cumbersome to
13   use, it may be a detriment to the economic development,
14   especially to the chemical industry.
15                   One of the big things that you do is you
16   eliminate miscellaneous capital expenditure.  By doing
17   that, it's going to go to some other plant that may have
18   to do upgrades and do some things to be competitive and
19   stay.  We're concerned about that.
20                   The other thing that concerns us when we
21   look at it, there's no consideration for the retention
22   of jobs or contract jobs, and this is why LCI folks are
23   often -- these people are full-time workers.  They may
24   be at one plant today and at another plant next week, so
25   they're full-time workers, and I don't think there's
0015
 1   consideration for any of that, so we would like to see
 2   that done.
 3                   The other thing that concerns us is the
 4   cooperative endeavor agreements.  All of a sudden we are
 5   going to have to go and make those with several
 6   different taxing authorities, and so that's a concern
 7   when you start talking about confidentiality and you
 8   start talking about your public-trade company
 9   information, that has an opportunity to get out and
10   cause you some problems with respect to stock prices and
11   investments.
12                   Under rules, our members are required to
13   negotiate with so many different authorities.  One of
14   the things that concerns us is that unlike any other
15   states, you have to go and negotiate with all of these
16   taxing authorities, and then after you've put all of
17   your information out there under negotiation, you still
18   have to come back to the state and there's a decision
19   made at that point whether or not you'll get the
20   exemption, whether or not what you've offered and what
21   you've negotiated is felt to be fair.  To our knowledge,
22   there is no other state that does that.  That puts us in
23   a very difficult situation for the State of Louisiana
24   from a competitive standpoint.
25                   So I'll stop there.  I'll let the others
0016
 1   make some comments.  I know some are going to have the
 2   same comments, but I'll be glad to provide to you in
 3   writing some of the comments that we have.
 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 5                   And I will point out just to your one
 6   comment, our definition of jobs does allow for contract
 7   labor, so that, at least, is addressed in the rules.
 8               MR. BAKER:
 9                   Danielle, when you say "contract labor,"
10   are you saying the type of contract labor that is at the
11   plant on a constant basis, are you talking about
12   contract labor that I think Mr. Bowser is talking about
13   that is in and out of plants at periods of time, meaning
14   that you've got a project that -- and my point I'm
15   trying to make is on the application, there was
16   construction jobs, for example; okay, well, you may --
17   those construction jobs may be on one project at one
18   particular time, but may -- those same jobs may be on
19   another project at another time, so you have this
20   consistent or continuous, I should say, injection of
21   contract labor going in and out of those plants all of
22   time and that's -- I was listening to your comments, and
23   that's the kind of thing that I think that I believe the
24   rule changes have not really addressed or how it can be
25   very hurtful because of -- you know, it could be some
0017
 1   curtailment of projects because -- and those people are
 2   going to be the ones that are really going to get hurt.
 3               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 4                   My understanding, and, you know,
 5   obviously -- and I should have said this from the
 6   beginning.  All of the these comments will go back to
 7   the Board, the rules committee and the Board.  They have
 8   to make a determination if they're going to choose to
 9   make any changes based upon the comments received.
10   That's not LED.
11                   But my understanding of the Governor's
12   thought was that it would -- he wants to make it a
13   job-creation-type program, so I would say -- and there
14   will be requirements, my understanding, through the CEA
15   with the department and the locals that you maintain a
16   job level.  So, to me, that would indicate that whether
17   it's employed directly or through contract labor, that
18   they would need to be on site at a regular -- maybe not
19   every day, but on some sort of regular basis.  So if
20   that's to your point, then I understand your concern.
21               MR. BOWSER:
22                   Well, the concern further is that --
23   Greg Bowser again -- is that when you say they have to
24   be on site for a particular time, and nobody knows what
25   that is.  Sometimes those guys are there for two months;
0018
 1   sometimes they're there for six months.  We have some
 2   contract employees that's been at some of our plants for
 3   years.
 4               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 5                   Sure.  And I don't know that it's
 6   necessarily tied to the employees as it is tied to the
 7   job.  So if it's a contract engineer that comes in on
 8   some of these facilities, and that individual person
 9   changes out -- I mean, I know all of our job programs,
10   and I would imagine that when we're looking at jobs for
11   this program as well, that it's going to be the job, not
12   the employee, so that -- and I understand your concerns,
13   but I think the Governor's intent -- and certainly, you
14   know, these comments will all go back and we'll take a
15   look at these in that scope -- was that it would be a
16   job creation program, so I think having that same job
17   potentially count at multiple sites would be
18   problematic.
19               MR. BOWSER:
20                   Danielle, I'll just give one quick
21   example, and, you know, it's from a chemical plant
22   perspective, it's like you're in your automobile, you
23   know, if something is wrong with your car, you take it
24   to a mechanic.  Okay?  You pay that mechanic to do that.
25   Well, that mechanic has a full-time job.  When you
0019
 1   leave, there's other people there that come to that
 2   mechanic, so that's a full-time job.  In the chemical
 3   industry, what happens many times is that, you know,
 4   Plant A may have this going on today and workers come in
 5   and take care of that.  They may be there six months or
 6   sometimes two or three years.  That same employee then
 7   has to go to the plant next door to do the same work, so
 8   that's a full-time job, and we believe under these
 9   circumstances, we don't get credit.  They say that's not
10   a full-time job that's counted.  And that's our concern.
11               MS. CLAPINSKI:
12                   I understand.  Thank you.
13               MR. GOLLEHER:
14                   Brent Golleher, Louisiana Mid-Continent
15   Oil & Gas Association.  Comments were submitted
16   yesterday, and at the appropriate time, I will defer to
17   Jeff and Bob to get more detail on some of the issues
18   that as a property tax committee, we've kind of drawn up
19   and come up with.
20               MS. SIMS:
21                   Phyllis Sims, Kean Miller.  I don't have
22   any comments.
23               MS. LAWRENCE:
24                   Donna Lawrence with Denbury Resources.
25   Observing.
0020
 1               MR. BAKER:
 2                   Joe Baker with Louisiana Mid-Continent
 3   Oil & Gas Association.  I chair the property tax
 4   committee, and thanks for providing some time for us to
 5   make these comments.
 6                   I'm going to defer to Bob in just a
 7   minute, but what I would like to ask is, the question
 8   is, once you receive all of these comments, what's the
 9   mechanics going forward after that for the legal process
10   and how does that work?
11               MS. CLAPINSKI:
12                   Sure.  So generally speaking, this
13   program is a little bit different because the Board
14   itself makes the rules, whereas most of our other
15   programs, it's LED.  All of the written comments, as
16   well as the transcript from this hearing today, will go
17   to the Board, and it will be up to them where they want
18   to start with the rules committee and then -- they have
19   to make a decision on whether any changes are going to
20   be made based upon these comments.  At that point, there
21   will be a determination of whether those changes are
22   substantive or not substantive, if they choose to make
23   some.  Non-substantive changes would not slow down the
24   rules process.  Substantive changes basically starts it
25   over again.  We'd have to issue another Notice of Intent
0021
 1   or a potpourri, but either of those has another public
 2   hearing requirement where we might have to do this all
 3   again.
 4                   If they decide to not make any changes,
 5   then notice would be given to the oversight committees,
 6   which are the commerce committees of the house and the
 7   senate, and they have 30 days to call their own
 8   oversight hearing should they choose to.
 9                   If they do not choose to, then those 30
10   days run and the department can proceed with final
11   promulgation of the rules.  So it really depends from
12   here on what the Board decides to do with the comments
13   they receive.
14               MR. BAKER:
15                   And if the oversight committees were to
16   suggest accepting some of these proposed --
17               MS. CLAPINSKI:
18                   It's an up or down at that point.  It's
19   an approval or non approval of the rules.  And I do
20   believe there may be the opportunity for the Governor to
21   override the oversight committees as well.  So there are
22   a lot of different scenarios on where we could go from
23   here.
24               MR. BAKER:
25                   Understood.  Thank you.
0022
 1               MS. CLAPINSKI:
 2                   No problem.
 3               MR. BAKER:
 4                   So I'm going to defer to Bob.
 5               MS. SIMS:
 6                   Let me ask before we get there.
 7                   Phyllis Sims, for the record.
 8                   Danielle, are these going to the Board
 9   for the February meeting then?
10               MS. CLAPINSKI:
11                   I don't know that.  That is the next
12   regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board.  If they chose
13   to call a meeting prior to then to address it, that is
14   the Board's right, and it would obviously be properly
15   noticed in accordance with open meetings and all of
16   those.
17               MR. BAKER:
18                   Now I'll defer to Bob.
19               MR. ADAIR:
20                   Bob Adair representing Louisiana
21   Mid-Continent Oil & Gas Association and I'm a member of
22   the Property Tax Committee and I will not read into
23   record the letter that we submitted.  I will use it as a
24   guide.
25                   Before I get to that, I thought I would
0023
 1   give you a little perspective of where we're coming
 2   from.  I have significant depth of experience of about
 3   15 states and I've worked in about 25 states, so and I
 4   realize that LED has worked with other -- you compare
 5   other states and how they compete, too.  I also chair
 6   the Project Tax Committee of the Texas Taxpayers and
 7   Research Association, which is the primary tax committee
 8   in Texas -- or tax group in Texas, and also chair the
 9   Tax Relief for Pollution Control Properties with the
10   Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.
11                   Okay.  I'll jump into -- the first point
12   is LMOGA supports LABI's presented testimony and their
13   written submittal, but so we don't want to duplicate
14   what they're doing, but I'll cover some high-level
15   comments.  We acknowledge that the proposed rules are
16   intended to align with the executive orders from the
17   Governor, but I'll also say that -- so our comments are
18   more high-level rather than detailed from LABI.
19                   So the first point, and I won't dwell on
20   this, but for the record, I will mention that
21   environmental grades -- upgrades have, of course, been
22   excluded in the executive orders, and we want to point
23   out that whereas Number 4 said that most -- had
24   misstated that most states do not have this.  Well, in
25   fact, 27 states exempt pollution control property
0024
 1   permanently, and another six, I believe, has a
 2   significant reduction in value.  For example, Illinois,
 3   that I work in, they have, it's like, one and a half
 4   percent of depreciated value is the value on pollution
 5   control, so it's significantly discounted.  Some states
 6   also have a lower tax rate for pollution control.
 7                   In Texas, since -- and I'll discuss
 8   Texas several times because Texas has been brought up in
 9   both the Governor's and other discussions because we're
10   trying to be more like Texas.  So in regarding
11   environmental upgrades, Texas -- the Texas legislature,
12   their intent was basically they do not want to require
13   businesses to pay property taxes to government on top of
14   unfunded mandates by the same government, although there
15   might be a difference in state versus local level, but
16   they intentionally did not want to put that burden on
17   businesses.
18                   The second point that we have concerns
19   about is the process, and I won't go through this -- we
20   have significant questions that remain on how this is
21   going to work out.  A couple people asked about the
22   logistics, how this is going to work, and I know LED is
23   still working it and I've heard different parishes are
24   working how that's going to work, but I do want to
25   observe that, of course, the current process you've got
0025
 1   just the Board of Commerce & Industry and the Governor,
 2   which we call a -- I'll call it a pause or in process,
 3   significant amount of time that it's going to take some
 4   decision.  In the attachment to what we submitted, I
 5   have what we call "stop signs."  That's not intended to
 6   offend anyone.  It's just a recognition that there is
 7   there's more time added to the process it seems in this
 8   process, so that is a concern.  And it's time that's, of
 9   course, significant in management as a review processes
10   or review a project to consider multiple sites, where
11   are they going to build or are they going to build at
12   all.  If the economics don't work out, that project can
13   be shelved, which is very common, so that is a concern.
14               And just for the record that the stop signs,
15   or the pauses, I will say, are now -- or the additional
16   ones are Exhibit A, which is the cooperative endeavor
17   with LED and the local government.  There could be
18   multiple, up to four, depending on if you're in the city
19   limits or not.  And then you've got the Department of
20   Revenue has to issue a letter of no objection or letter
21   of approval, and that's -- before it gets to the process
22   where it was before for the BCI to be reviewed.  So I
23   know you're aware of that.  I just mention that for the
24   record we're concerned about those additional pauses in
25   the process.
0026
 1                   So enough about processes unless we have
 2   questions.  I'll be glad to answer those.
 3                   The next point is competition for
 4   economic development.  I don't have to -- and,
 5   Mr. Pierson, you're much more aware of this than I am.
 6   I see it from a company perspective and throughout my
 7   career.  I've been a business development teams, so I
 8   see it from that perspective, so I realize you're well
 9   aware that there's competition for a very limited
10   capital within a company and also between states,
11   between countries, and as I said earlier, whether it
12   will be built at all.  It has to meet other certain
13   hurdle rate or a certain return.  So all of those items
14   are very important.
15                   The tax foundation makes -- I will not
16   quote their -- I will only reference their comments,
17   which we have in writing here.  They make the point that
18   taxes matter to business.  It's a big -- I've never said
19   that it's the only consideration in site selection, but
20   it is a significant consideration.  It also states do
21   not enact tax changes in a vacuum.  That's kind of a
22   given, too.  Whenever you make significant changes in
23   tax policy, you will -- if you treat something in one
24   place, it's kind of like a balloon that's squeezed,
25   something else pops up somewhere else, so there should
0027
 1   be some concern there.
 2                   And, also, we said for decades, as long
 3   as I've been working with the business associations,
 4   that we've always been very open to working with ITEP as
 5   long as it's considered with the entire tax structure.
 6   So we're a little concerned with the changes in just the
 7   ITEP that can affect business in capital investment
 8   decisions.
 9                   So I'll -- for decades, Louisiana has
10   been successful in using the ITEP, and speaking from
11   someone from Texas, a resident of Texas, and observing
12   people over there in business decisions, it's -- I've
13   been on the other end of it, too, that Louisiana's been
14   successful.  And I met with county judges and others,
15   and even recently.  They're very aware of what you're
16   doing.  And I'm aware that states, even local
17   governments, use not only what you're doing, but what
18   you're considering doing.  We use it against each other,
19   and you're very aware of that.
20                   One last point that I won't dwell on
21   very much, we included a comment on miscellaneous
22   capital additions, and there's a misperception that -- I
23   don't think there's a misperception in Mr. Pierson or
24   Mr. Miller, who is here, because you accurately
25   explained what an MCA is in the last BCI meeting, but we
0028
 1   include that here because the intent of an MCA is never
 2   to try to have a, for example, $60-million project and
 3   divide it by five and say each one of those projects is
 4   an MCA.  That's never the intent.  I've never even heard
 5   of that in all of the years that I've worked with this.
 6   So as the rules state, it is an accumulation of multiple
 7   projects to get to the $5-million level.  So I wish when
 8   we requested the Board to reconsider that -- and I only
 9   bring that up in case the Governor and his
10   representative were actually thinking they put that in
11   executive order because they thought that an MCA is just
12   a division of a big project to circumvent your rules.
13                   With that, we respectfully request you
14   consider the LABI comments that were presented, also the
15   presented comments that we have in more detail here.
16                   So I'll close with that.  Thank you.
17               SECRETARY PIERSON:
18                   As this dialog, anybody that may have
19   passed has something discussed that you feel you want to
20   articulate a little bit more on that topic so that it's
21   fully embedded in our analysis, it's a question to the
22   group and your opportunity to respond before we close
23   out the record today.
24                   (No response.)
25               SECRETARY PIERSON:
0029
 1                   Well, this has been enormously helpful.
 2   I know that you've spent a lot of time with it.
 3   Certainly we appreciate the analysis that's here.  Our
 4   goal is the same as your goal.  It's a vibrant economy
 5   in Louisiana that can only be happening if we are in
 6   concert with business industry providing that certainty
 7   that's necessary for a business to make investments with
 8   confidence.  It's not static.  It is a global
 9   competition.  It is a competition across America for
10   this capital, for these jobs, for these investments.
11   The number of manufacturing jobs over the last 10 years
12   has significantly decreased, 1.4-million fewer
13   manufacturing jobs today than just 10 years ago, so
14   they're very important to us.  We do prioritize this.
15   We do understand that taxation is a very import part of
16   the equation.
17                   So, again, thank you for your thoughtful
18   analysis, the input that you've provided, and we will
19   take that our best to help craft a set of rules that can
20   be navigated by a business with confidence.  And, again,
21   we have to be patient with the process.  There is a lot
22   of new here, and while we are going to have a learning
23   curve to come up, it will be part of my responsibility
24   and the department's responsibility to make sure that
25   this doesn't become a permanent climb up Mount Everest.
0030
 1   We want to do the necessary training, understanding
 2   clarifications so that it is a smooth and streamlined
 3   process.  I believe that it can be.  I know that today
 4   it's different than it was prior to June 24, but I think
 5   over time, once there's these clear understandings in a
 6   now way of doing business, that we'll get to a point
 7   where we're very efficient with it.  That's the goal.
 8   If we don't meet that goal, then I'll ask that you
 9   continue to bring that to my attention so that we can
10   continually improve until we get to that position.
11                   Thank you for your time and attention
12   today.
13                   Danielle, anything else before we close
14   the record?
15               MR. ALLISON:
16                   I have a quick question.
17               SECRETARY PIERSON:
18                   Yes.
19               MR. ALLISON:
20                   It looks like based on what we heard
21   today and received comments from LIDEA, LABI, LCA and
22   LMOGA.  Did you receive any other comments?
23               MS. CLAPINSKI:
24                   I don't think we received any written
25   comments.
0031
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   Well, we still have mail coming in today
 3   that was just delivered to the Board that can be
 4   attached to this before we close out the record, so we
 5   can't probably accurately tell you all of the input that
 6   we've had because of the mail was just delivered.  But
 7   the permanent record will reflect all of the input that
 8   we receive to include the letters from the various
 9   organizations.
10               MS. SIMS:
11                   And, Danielle, we just come to you to
12   get a copy of the permanent record?
13               MS. CLAPINSKI:
14                   Well, it's going to be at least a couple
15   of weeks we have the -- about two weeks --
16               MS. SIMS:
17                   Before we have the transcript?
18               MS. CLAPINSKI:
19                   -- before we have the transcript from
20   the court reporter.
21               MS. SIMS:
22                   But you're the point person to
23   request --
24               MS. CLAPINSKI:
25                   Yes.  If it's a public records request,
0032
 1   technically it's supposed to start in our communications
 2   division, but I'll be the one pulling all of the
 3   records.
 4               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 5                   But we do plan to aggregate the
 6   information and provide it to the Board members, in
 7   particular the chair of the rules committee and the
 8   rules committee so that the input is utilized to its
 9   fullest advantage.
10               MR. ALLISON:
11                   What about those -- are we going to be
12   able to get a copy of the records?
13               SECRETARY PIERSON:
14                   Yes.  It will be public record, and
15   we'll be happy to provide it.  You don't have to ask us
16   for a copy of what we're going to put together for the
17   rules committee.
18               MR. ALLISON:
19                   Do you know at this time if you received
20   more than just the four today?
21               MS. CLAPINSKI:
22                   Mail is delivered, so I have to see
23   what's in the mail.  We've got to separate it and see
24   what's --
25               SECRETARY PIERSON:
0033
 1                   With the holiday and such, I know mail
 2   has been stacking up, and so Danielle hasn't had a
 3   chance to go through all of that to accurately your
 4   question, but we'll be happy to, you know, share all of
 5   the input that we have.
 6               MS. LAWRENCE:
 7                   And, Danielle, I have a question.  Donna
 8   Lawrence from Denbury.  If there are projects in the
 9   pipeline, you know, that a company is looking at, what
10   is the timeline that we're jumping from pre-June to
11   post-June to have rules under which a new -- a company
12   wants to look at a new project?  How do we know where --
13               SECRETARY PIERSON:
14                   You just call LED and we'll assign a
15   project manager and we'll move you forward.  There's no
16   disparity or -- we have a new set of rules, but we know
17   how to follow those.
18               MS. LAWRENCE:
19                   Okay.
20               SECRETARY PIERSON:
21                   And we don't want to do anything that's
22   going to hold up investments.  Let me know, and we'll
23   jump right on it.
24               MS. LAWRENCE:
25                   Thank you.
0034
 1               SECRETARY PIERSON:
 2                   All right.  With no other comments,
 3   meeting adjourned.
 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:44 a.m.)
 5   
 6   
 7   
 8   
 9   
10   
11   
12   
13   
14   
15   
16   
17   
18   
19   
20   
21   
22   
23   
24   
25   
0035
 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:
 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court
 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the
 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of
 5   Commerce and Industry of the Louisiana Economic
 6   Development Corporation, do hereby certify that this
 7   meeting was reported by me in the stenotype reporting
 8   method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my
 9   personal direction and supervision, and is a true and
10   correct transcript to the best of my ability and
11   understanding;
12               That the transcript has been prepared in
13   compliance with transcript format required by statute or
14   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance
15   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as
16   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article
17   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;
18               That I am not related to counsel or to the
19   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the
20   outcome of this matter.
21   
     Dated this 13th day of January, 2017.
22   
23                               ___________________________
24                                 ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR
25                                 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER



